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Finance Department

December 21, 2012

To the Chairman, Members of County Council, and Citizens of Florence County

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Florence County, South Carolina, for the
year ended June 30, 2012, is submitted herewith. State statutes require Florence County
to annually issue a report on its financial position and activities, and that this report be
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of this presented data and the completeness and fairness of this presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the County’s management. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reporied
in a manner designed to present fairly both the financial position, results of operations
and cash flows of the various funds and component units of Florence County. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the County’s
financial activities have been included.

This annual report is in a format that complies with the financial reporting model
developed by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34. This
model improves financial reporting by including government-wide statements that are
based on full accrual accounting and include capital assets and long-term debt. The
requirements of GASB Statement 34 are explained in some detail within the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which immediately precedes the basic financial
statements in the financial section of this report.

Florence County is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget’s Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations”. Information related to this single audit, including a schedule of
expenditures of federal and state awards and the independent auditors’ report on internal
controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, is included in the single
audit section of this report.

City-County Complex
180 North Irby Street MSC-H + Florence, South Carolina 29501 + (843) 665-3013 - Fax (843) 665-4515



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Florence County, South Carolina is located in the northeast section of the state, and is
bounded on the north and cast by the Pee Dee River, on the south by Williamsburg
County, and the west by Darlington County. The County was established in 1888 as a
railroad community and since that time has grown into the commetrcial, retail, and
medical center for this region of the state. Being at the intersection of U.S. I-95 and 1-20
has facilitated this growth, as well as being the mid-way point on 1-95 between New York
City and Miami, Florida,

Florence County operates under the Council-Administrator form of government. The
County’s Council is comprised of nine single member districts, The Council annually
elects one member 1o serve as Chairman, one member 1o serve as Vice-Chairman, and
one member to serve as Sccretary-Chaplain. County Council is responsible, among other
things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, and appointing the Administrator.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report includes all funds of Florence County that
are controlled by this governing body, and are considered to be the “reporting entity”. The
County provides a fulf range of services including public safety, public works, health and
social service, culture and recreation, cconomic development, family court, magistrates,
probate court, gencral sessions court, solicitor, public defender, and general
administration. Other entities and political subdivisions including the County’s five
school districts and nine cities and towns have been excluded from the County’s funds
and accordingly, each entity has sufficient discretion in the management of its own
affairs. However, the County Treasurer is responsible for the collection of property taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other revenues for the political subdivisions. The year-
end balances and resulls of that fiduciary responsibility are included as agency funds in
the basic financial statements.

A discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it s legally separate from the
primary government (i.e. Florence County, South Carolina as legally defined) and to
differentiate its financial position and results of operations from those of the primary
government. The Florence City-County Building Commission is reported as a discretely
presented component unit.

LOCAL ECONOMY

Florence County is continuing to experience a strong increase in economic growth. This
growth comes from four areas: manufacturing companies, distribution, the medical
community, and tourism,



Manufacturing

The County is becoming an international center for manufacturing. Nan Ya Plastics
Corporation of America, a polyester fiber producing company based in Taiwan, has
become the County’s second largest taxpayer as it continues to grow towards its goal of
investing $1 billion in the Florence County/Williamsburg County Joint Industrial Park.
Over the past few years, Honda Motors Corporation of America expanded its current
facility to include an engine plant for its all-terrain vchicles. Honda now employs
approximately 1,000 people in its assembly and engine plants, This is the first time that
engines for any Honda vehicle have been produced in the United States. Honda has also
constructed a personal watercraft (jet-ski) plant that began production in December 2002,
Also, two suppliers to the Honda plant have located in Flovence County in recent years,
those being South East Express and North American Container Company. In addition,
Angus-Palm, a manufacturer of cabs for heavy equipment, began operation of its plant in
the Pee Dee Commerce Center as well, In late 2012, Johnson Controls opened a battery
recycling facility, the first of its kind permitted in the United States for over a decade. In
September 2011, Otis Elevator announced an investment of $40,000,000 and 360 jobs in
order to construct its next generation of elevators.

As shown above, the County’s manufacturing base is very diversified. Other well known
companies also have plants in the County. These companies include General Electric,
Asea Brown Boveri, and Rock'Tenn.

Distribution

Given its location at the intersection of Interstates 1-95 and [-20, the County is now
becoming a center for distribution facilities as well. IFH, a restaurant food supplier,
recently constructed a new plant that resulted in an investment of more than $20,000,000
and 70 new jobs. Fedlix has also constructed a 75,000 square foot distribution facility
within the past two years. QVC, Inc. recently constructed a 1,000,000 square foot
distribution facility that opened in the spring of 2007. This resulted in an investment of
almost $75,000,000 and the addition of several hundred jobs to the local economy.
Finally, Johnsen Controls, Inc. moved into a 300,000 squarc foot spee. building in the
Pee Dee Touchstone Energy Commerce Center in order to distribute automotive batteries,
This facility also opened in the spring of 2007 and resulted in an investment of
approximately $35,000,000. In June 2008, Heinz, Inc. announced a new investment of
$105,000,000 and 350 new jobs and began production in 2011.



Medical Community

Florence County continues to serve as the medical center for the eastern half of South
Carolina. Mcl.eod Regional Medical Center is the largest employer in the County, with
over 4,000 employees. MclLeod has, in the past few years, constructed a women’s hospital
pavilion as well as a four-story medical office building. McLeod also has completed
construction on an additional five-story medical office building. In 2007, McLeod
completed the expansion of the women’s hospital pavilion from its current five floors to a
total of twelve floors at a cost in excess of $100 million. In 2010, McLeod was awarded
the American Hospital Association-McKesson Quest for Quality Prize. This national
award is presented to one hospital annually and, since its inception in 2002, has been
awarded to major national hospitals such as the Duke University Hospital and The Johns
Hopkins Hospital. Mcl.eod is the first hospital in South Carolina to receive this award.

Carolinas Hospital System is also located in Florence County. Carolinas is a subsidiary of
the mational hospital company Quorum Health Group. In November 1998 Carolinas
dedicated a new nine-story state of the art hospital complex. In the past year, Carolinas
has also constructed facilities for additional bed spacc as well as a new conference center.

Also headquartered in Florence County is Palmetto Government Benefits Administrators,
a division of Blue Cross & Blue Shield of South Carolina. This division processes health
insurance claims from military personnel and their dependents from all across the nation
and around the world. They currently employ over 1,000 people in Florence County. In
addition, American Security Insurance Company (Assurant) has located an insurance
processing facility in Florence that currently employs over 300 people.

Tourism

With such attractions as the Darlington Raceway, the Florence City-County Civic Center,
and Freedom Florence, a nine-field softball complex, I'lorence County continues to see an
increase in tourism every year. This has resulted in the construction of several new hotels
and motels including a new multi-story Hilton Garden Inn as well as a new Holiday Inn
Express.

Florence County’s moderate climate attracts tourists year round to come to the County to
shop, eat, and play golf at one of over 10 golf courses located within 30 miles of the City
of Florence. In addition the Florence City-County Civic Center hosts several conventions
and trade shows cach year, as well as many business meetings and luncheons. The
Freedom Florence recreation complex hosts softball tournaments every weekend during
its 30-week season. These tournaments include a minimum of 15 teams and bring in
players from all over the Southeast to the Florence arca. The City of Florence constructed
a 30 court tennis center that opened in June 2011. This center will attract tenmis
tournaments from many different locations. For the first time, the Darlington Raceway
held a NASCAR Craftsman truck series race in 2001. The Darlington Raceway, which 1s
next door to Florence County, also hosted the largest weekend sporting event in the state



with Busch series and NASCAR series races both on the Mother’s Day weekend. These
races bring international exposure to Florence through ESPN and major network
telecasts. The raceway has also added lights to the track to provide the opportunity for
night-time racing as well.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Ilorence County has embarked on several initiatives that center primarily on increasing
service to the residents of Florence County.

EMS Improvements

During 2000, Florence County made major improvements to its EMS System. Four new
state of the art ambulances were purchased, as well as four new quick response vehicles.
In February 1999 the County broke ground on a new 7,500 square foot LEMS
headquatters. The building was completed in December 1999, In 2004, the County
completed the construction of two new EMS substations in raral areas of the County, and
constructed a third rural substation in early 2012.

Recreation Improvements

During 1999, a recreation master plan for the entire county was prepared by an outside
consulting company. The County had executed a long-term lease for a state park that is
now known as Lynches River County Park. On October 31, 2002, the State of South
Carolina deeded the Lynches River County Park to Florence County. Therefore, the
County now owns a 675 acre park near the geographic center of the county and the
County is moving forward with improvements to the park. A major renovation of the
community building at the park has already been completed. A canoe launch and a 1,200
foot boardwalk have been constructed. In addition, two cabins and a bathhouse have been
purchased and installed and are available to be rented. A splashpad was added to the park
to replace an out-dated swimming pool that was in much need of repair. An
environmental discovery center opened during 2008, and includes a rope bridge walk
through the treetops adjacent to the center. An archery range also opened at the park in
2010. In North Florence a local park has been enhanced by the addition of a community
building and a walking trail. In West Florence, additional land was acquired adjacent to
an existing ball field and several tennis courts, a picnic shelter and a playground were
constructed. In the Lake City area, land was acquired for a local park and a walking trail
was constructed. This land also includes a pond; therefore a fishing deck and a walking
bridge over the pond have been constructed. In 2004 the County acquired three parcels of
land for recreation. Two parcels are for the expansion of two existing baseball leagues
and the third is for a neighborhood park. In 2005 one of these parks was completed and
an existing league was relocated to this new facility. In 2007, the second of these parks
was completed and the other existing league was relocated to this new facility.



Libraries

In 2004, Florence County completed construction of an 80,000 square foot main library.
This new facility more than doubled the existing space of the previous facility and
provides more than three times the number of public access computers. In 2010 the
County completed the last of four branch libraries in the rural arca of the county. Fach of
these hibraries are more than twice as large as the previous facilities and patronage at each
of these new facilities has increased dramatically.

Economic Development

During 1999, Florence County entered into an agreement with a local private business
group to form the Florence County Fconomic Development Partnership. This is a joint
partnership that was formed to increase economic development throughout the county and
is funded equally by public and private funds. During 1999, a strategic plan was
completed by an outside consulting company and the County is currently proceeding with
most of the arcas of the strategic plan, The County issued $1,500,000 of general
obligation bonds to fund the first of three phases of this strategic plan. A portion of these
bonds proceeds have been used to purchase approximately 150 acres for an industrial
park in Johnsonville and develop this patk by installing roads and water and sewer
service.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of Florence County is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure to ensure that assets of the County are protected from loss, thefi,
or misuse, and to ensure that data compiled will allow for the preparation of financial
statements that are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Financial Audit. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, we are also
responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal structure is
subject to periodic evaluation by management of the County and our external auditors.
The results of the County’s financial audit for the year ended June 30, 2012 provided no
instances of material weakness 1n the internal control structure or significant violations of
applicable laws and regulations related to major or non-major federal financial assistance
programs.

Budgetary Controls. A formal budget is adopted for the general fund and various special
revenue funds of the County at the account level. In the General Fund, a budget is
prepared for each department of the County. Encumbrance accounting is used to record
estimated amounts for purchase orders, contracts and other commitments prior to release
to vendors. Commitments that would result in over expended {unds are not made until
available funds are transferred via a budget adjustment approved by the County
Administrator and the Finance Director.




Proprietary Operations. Florence County has three proprietary funds. The Ilorence
County Utility System Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the water and
sewer system. The Florence County Landfill Fund accounts for the operation of the
County’s 15 manned convenience centers and the transportation of the waste from these
centers to a private landfill outside the county and the tipping fee at this private landfill.
The Florence County F911 System Fund accounts for the mapping and establishing of the
E911 system throughout the County.

Debt Administration. In accordance with South Carolina State Law, Florence County
must maintain its general obligation bonded debt within a limit of eight percent of its total
assessed value of its real and personal property. For the ycar ended Fune 30, 2012, this
requirement has been met.

Capital Assets. The capital assets of the County are those used in the performance of
general government functions. These assets are valued at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at
their estimated fair market value on the acquisition date. The County, in accordance with
the Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, began recognizing
depreciation on all its capital assets during the prior fiscal year. In addition, in further
compliance with this statement, the County capitalized all infrastructure assets, including
roads and bridges, during the fiscal year as well.

Independent Audit. The South Carolina Code of Laws requires an annual audit of
financial records and transactions of the County by an independent certified public
accountant selected by County Council. The fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was audited
by the accounting firm of Elliott Davis, LI.C, and their report on the basic {inancial
statements is included in the Financial Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report.

Financial Policies. The primary financial policy of the County is embodied in a resolution
adopted by Florence County Council requiring the maintenance of a General Fund fund
balance in an amount of at least 25% of General Fund expenditures. As a result of various
revenue reductions over the past three years, primarily from the State of South Carolina,
Florence County has used a portion of General Fund fund balance to balance the General
Fund budget each year. In addition, the County included a 3% across-the-board reduction
in the General Fund budget. The impact of these two measures on the financial statements
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012 was a reduction in both General Fund fund
balance and General Fund expenditures.




Certificate of Achievement, The Government Finance Officers Association of the United
States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to Florence County, South Carolina for its compichensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, This was the fourteenth year that
the government has achieved this prestigious award, In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government must publish an casily readable and efficiently orgamzed
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of this Comprechensive Annual Financial Report
could not have been accomplished without the dedicated service of the Finance
Department and the technical expertise and efforts of our independent auditors, Elliott
Davis, LLC. We would like to also commend County Council for realizing the need for,
and the benefits derived from timely {inancial reporting.

Sincerely,
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Kevin V. Yokim, CPA, CGI'O
Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of County Council
Florence County
Florence, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type aclivities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Florence County, South Carolina {the County) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the County, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund, for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 21, 2012 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

Flliott Davis LLC 1 Elliott Davis PLLC | www.elliotidavis.com
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress and employer contributions
for other postemployment benefits be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, We do not express an apinion
or provide any assurance an the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual major and
normajor fund and component unit financial statements; the major and nonmajor fund budgetary
comparison schedules; the schedules of capital assets used in the operation of governmental funds; the
schedule of changes in long-term liahilities; the schedules of property taxes and cash; the schedule of
fibrary revenues and expenditures; and the schedule of fines, assessments and surcharges for the
victim/witness special revenue fund are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards as
required by Office of Management and Budget Circufar A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
infarmation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining and individual major and nonmajor fund and component unit financial statements; the major
and nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedudes; the schedules of capital assets used in the
operation of governmental funds; the schedule of changes in long-term liabilities; the schedules of
property taxes and cash; the schedule of library revenues and expenditures; the schedule of fines,
assessments and surcharges for the victim/witness special revenue; and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory and statistical sections
are presented for purposes of additional anaiysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the hasic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on it.

Columbia, South Carolina éu,my{( B.«Mﬁ. R
December 21, 2012
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Florence County, South Carolina, we offer readers of the Florence County
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Florence
County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. We encourage readers 1o consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in
our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 1 — § of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of Florence County excecded its labilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $76,736,202 (net assets). Of this amount, $3,085,923 represents unrestricted net
assets. The general fund unassigned fund balance was $9,440,583, which may be used to
meet the government’s cash flow management needs and its ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. The remainder represents amounts accounted for in special
revenue, debt service, and capital project funds which are restricted, committed, or
assigned for the specific purposes of each fund.

e The government’s total net assets increased by $3,455,483. Nearly all of this increase is
attributable to an increase of $4,001,258 in capital grants and contributions over the prior
year, primarily related to the new County Museum, offset by the increase in the OPEB
liability in the amount of $1,197,239.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, Florence County’s governmental funds reporied
combined ending fund balances of $36,333,690, an increase of $5,556,584 in comparison
with the prior year primarily as the result of issuance of debt in the net amount of
$3,786,000 for the new County Museum, as well as a grant contribution of $1,800,000
for the same project.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$9,440,583, or a healthy 19 percent of total general fund expenditures and net transfers
out.

¢ TFlorence County’s debt decreased by $101,461 (0.2 percent) during the current fiscal
year. The key factor in this decrcase was the net effect of the issuance of the debt on the
new County Museum and the principal payment during the fiscal year on the capital lease
that funded the law enforcement center and the civic center.

Qverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Florence County basic
financial statements. Florence County’s basic financial statements comprise three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Florence County’s finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all Florence County’s assets and liabilitics,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in
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net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Florence County is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
‘Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash
flows only in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Florence County that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of Florence County
include general government, public safety, economic development, public works, health, welfare,
culture and recreation, and education, The business-type activities of Florence County include a
utility system, a county landfill and an E911 system.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Florence County itself (known as the
primary government), but also a legally separate building commission for which Florence
County is financially accountable. Financial information for this component wunit is reported
separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 25 — 26 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Florence
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of Florence County can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reporied as govermmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government’s near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the governmental-wide financial statements,
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Florence County maintains thirty-nine individual governmental funds. Information is presented

separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the grant special
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revenue fund, and the museum capital project fund, all of which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other thirty-eight governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor govermmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Florence County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with
this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 27 — 31 of this report.

Proprictary funds. I'lorence County maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enferprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. Florence County uses enterprise funds to account for its utility system, its
landfill, and its E911 system.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprictary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the utility system, the landfill, and for the FE911 system, all of which are
considered to be major funds of Florence County.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 32 — 35 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds arc used to account for resources held for the benetit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are nof reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those {funds are nof available to support Florence County’s
own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary
funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 36 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 37 — 75 of this report.

Other information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 77 — 98 of this
report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of Florence County, assets exceeded liabilities by $76,736,202 at the close
of the most recent fiscal year.

‘The largest portion of Florence County’s net assets (65 percent) reflects its investment in capital

assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related outstanding debt used to
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acquire those assets. Florence County uses these capital assets to provide services o citizens;
consequently, these assels are rof available for future spending. Although Florence County’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Florence County’s Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activitics . Aetivitcs o Total
S 1 V. 201} 2012 000 202 2011
Curent angd other assefs $ 48842793 § 41432904 8 0202677 % 6357237 $.53,105470 % 47,790,141
» 77091098 78.384.066 2,381,786 2,510,134 FO472.884 80894200
lotal assels . 1250933 891 119816970 8644463 8867371 134,578,354 128684341
Long-lerm Habilitics outstanding, 41,193952 41295413 890 890 41,194 842 41,296,303
Other FHabilitics 15,369 9934916 LA278.278 1,648,008 16647310 11383014
Total liabilitics e 30,302 31230329 1279168 1,648,988 57.842,152 52879311
Netassels: .
Invested in capital asscts, net
of related debt 41980418 2381780 2510134 46,992,512 44,490,552 )
S | 2,284,844 - . 16,657,767 2284 844
(1897580) 24321379 4.983,509 4,708,249 3.085923 29.029.028

200370907 % 6 e B 1305205 5 7208383 $76.736,202 % 75,805,024 .

An additional portion of Florence County’s nct assets (21.7 percent) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted
net assets ($3,085,923) is comprised of the unrestricted net assets of the proprietary funds of
$4,983,509, which may be used to meel the government’s cash flow management needs and its
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, less the governmental unrestricted net asset balance
of ($1,897,586), which is primarily the result of OPEB liability payable of $5,285,344.

The County’s net assets increased by $3,455,483 during the current fiscal year as a result of an
increase of $4,001,258 in capital granis and contributions over the prior year, primarily related to
the new County Museum, offset by the increase in the OPEB liability in the amount of
$1,197,239. In addition, unrestricted cash and investments increased by $7,079,381 primarily as
a result of this increase in capital grants and contributions and an increase in accounts payable
and other current liabilities of $1,342,752. Net assets invested in capital assets increased by
$12,501,960.

Governmental activities. Governmental activitics adjusted Florence County’s net assets upward
by $3,308,571 to $69,370,907 as a result of the activities described in the previous paragraph,

Business-type activities. Business-lype activities increased Ilorence County’s nel assets by

$146,912, primarily as a result of Florence County E911 System operating income in the amount
of $203,205.
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Florence County’s Changes in Net Assets

Govermmental Business-type
iviti e Activities Tatal
a0z 2011, 2012 2011

Revenwes: ...
Progran revenues: . )
Charges for services . $12,925,833 $13.508.5¢ $ 2,098.218 $16,579903 $10,306.733
Operating grants ang
contribulions 9,645,926 10,368,032 ~ - 9645926 103068032
Capital grants and
contributions 5.437.825 1,436,567 - 210,187 5437825 1646754
General revenues:

27.965.877 20086094 - - 27.965.877 29,086,094
) .. LA8029.596 16,575,596 e 18,029,596 16375596
Other 443045 156612 46374 _.37.817 490,319 194,429
Total revenucs 74,449 .002 71191416 3.,700444 3,246,222 78.149 446 74437638

Expenses; oot et
CGieneral government 25, 135.218 22852227 - - 27,659,523 22.852227
fety 21.074.014 21,186,696 - - 20074000 21186696
development 1006242 650,209 - - 1096242 050,299
o lwblieworks 3380298 3528667 .o ozo.......3380298 5,525,007
Ieaitl 5.201.535 5,307 404 - - 3.201,535 5397494
30833 T T 425,734 430.833
K 1072285 - e 10,541,700 10,972,285
Hducation 2424 803 - - 2,059,515 2.424.803
. Interest on Fong-term deht 1304310 R204965 - - 1,304,310 1,204 965
Utility System v « 387,785 591,542 IR7.785 591,542
_ Lemdfil - - 3.666425 4349487 3660425 A.349487
13911 System - - A2E.190 448,063 421,190 448,063
Totalexpenses ... 70218363 70,645,269 A4T5400 _ _ 5.389.002 14093963 . 76034361
Increase (decrease) in net asscls . . e
__beforetransfers 4230439 546,147 (T74956) _  (2.142.870) 1455483
Transfers ) {_.921.868) CLI92119Yy 921 868 1.192.119 - L
Ingrease (decrease) in net assets 3308571 (645972 146912 (950,750 3455483 (_£.596.723)
Net assets, July I, original o BBO86641 69232613 7218383 8,169,134 15,805.024 77.401.747
Prior period adjustoent { 2.524.305) - - - ( 2.524.305)
Not assets, July I, restated 66,062,336 - 7218383 - 13280709 s
e 0,370.907 368586641 8 7365205 % 7218383 876736202 $75805024

(. 1.396,723)
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Florence County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of Ilorence County’s governmmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing IFlorence County’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for cash flow purposes, to maintain financial stability in the economic downturn
affeeting revenue received from the state government and to fund reimbursement-based grants,
as had oflen been the case in recent years.

As of the end of the fiscal year, Florence County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $36,333,690, an increase of $5,556,584 in comparison with the prior
year primarily as the result of net bond proceeds of $3,786,000 and a capital grant of $1,800,000,
both for the new County museum. Approximately one-quarter of this total amount ($9,411,971)
constitutes unassigned fund balance. The remainder of fund balance is restricted to indicate that
it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate
confracts aid purchase orders of the prior period ($13,6067), 2) to pay debt service ($3,193,493),
3) to pay for various capital improvements or other expenditures in {uture years ($23,714,559).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Florence County. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned {und balance of the general fund was $9,440,583, while total fund balance
reached $11,944,072. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures and net transfers
in. Unassigned fund balance represents 19 percent of total general {und expenditures and net
transfers in, while total fund balance represents 25 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of Florence County’s general fund increased by $201,098 during the current
fiscal year, primarily as a result of a savings from vacant positions during the fiscal year.

The grant special revenue fund has a total fund balance of $2,331,986, all of which is restricted
for subsequent years’ expenditures. This fund balance increased by $205,804, primarily as a
result of grant revenue exceeding grant expenditures during the fiscal year.

The museum capital project fund has a total fund balance of $9,389,867, all of which is restricted
for subsequent years’ expenditures. This fund balance increased by $4,316,765, primarily as a
result of net bond proceeds of $3,786,000 and a capital grant of $1,800,000, both for the new
County museum.

The County debt service fund has a total fund balance of $1,961,118, all of which is restricted for

subsequent years’ expenditures. This fund balance increased by $57.720, primarily as a result of
the excess of property taxes over debt service expenditures.
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Proprietary funds. Florence County’s proprietary funds provide the same type information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the utility system at the end of the year amounted to $1,980,818, those
for the landfill amounted to $670,219, and those for the E911 system amounted to $2,332,472.
The total decrease in net assets for the utility fund was $373,088. The total increase in net assets
for the landfill fund and the E911 system was $366,020 and $153,980, respectively. Other factors
concerning the finances of these three funds have already been addressed in the discussion of
Florence County’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There were minor changes between the original budget and the final amended budget for the
General Fund. Budgeted revenue from intergovernmental revenue from the State of South
Carolina for poll workers was increased by $118,479 and budgeted general government
expenditures were increased by a corresponding amount. Budgeted revenue from
intergovernmental revenue from the State of South Carolina for library books and materials was
increased by $40,324 and budgeted culture and recreation cxpenditures were increased by a
corresponding amount. Budgceted general government expenditures were increased by $240,367
to carry over funds previously appropriated for real property and other purchases. After these
changes to the General Fund budget were made, it was expected that fund balance would
decrease by a total of up to $1,399,869. However, since less money was spent during the year
than was budgeted, primarily as a result of savings from vacant personnel positions, fund balance
increased by $192,417.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Florence County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business
type activitics as of June 30, 2012, amounts to $79,472,884 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and additions, improvements other than
buildings, autos and trucks, furniturc and fixtures, machinery and equiprment, and roads and
bridges.

Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included the folowing:

e Construction was completed on the voter registration and election commission building.
e Various vehicle and equipment purchases were made.

Florenece County’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Giovernmental Business-type
Activitics o Mehivitics _Fotal
A A 2002 2011 2012 2001
Land N $9.262220 % 9258319  §$2308413  $2.308,052 $11.570.633  $11.566.371
Conslruclion-in-progress e AOBONG e R 195,016 o
ds 5 41958613 42,135,000 Lold 1614 41,960,227 42,136,704
ts_other than buildings 3968040 4300439 . T404 1,652 3976050 4,307,791
Autos and trucks 2,805,959 2.087.726 14250 4750 2420200 L2.6924706
Furniture and fixtures S 141,203 167,293 e 2,696 - 140899 167293
Maghinery and equipment 303251 5070765 44,400 194066 4,347,660 5,204,831
Infrastrugiore. 14,856,190 14,758,734 - - 14,856,190 14758134
Fotal oo JST7091,098 . $78.384,060_ $2,381.786  $2.510434 879472884 38089400

22



Additional information on Florence County’s capital assets can be found in Note 2 on pages 55 —
57 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Florence County had total bonded general
obligation debt outstanding of $17,130,609. This entire amount is backed by the full faith and
credit of the government. The remainder of Florence County’s debt represents revenue bonds,
unused vacation pay, and capital leases which are secured by annual appropriations by County
Council.

Florence County’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds and Other Debt

Governmental Business-type
Activitics Aclivitics e N X | )
2012 2011 2112 2001 2012 2011
General obligation bonds $17,130,609  $17472979 % - % e B1 1,130,609 $17.472.979
Reventg bonds 6,630,866 3,858,971 - I 6.630.866 3,358,971
Capital leases o NS988947 18429677 - - 15988947 18429677
Unused vacation pay___ 1,443,530 1,533,786 890 89O 1,444 420 1,534,677
Total oo e $41,193952  F41.295413 8 890 % 890 ... 841194842 341296303

Florence County’s total debt decreased by $101,461 (0.2%) during the current fiscal year. The
key factor in this decrease was the principal payments made on various capital leases during the
course of the fiscal year and the local hospitality tax revenue bond issued for the construction on
the new County muscum,.

Florence County maintains an “A” rating from Standard & Poor’s, and an Aa2 raling from
Moody’s.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 8%
of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for Florence County is $35,149,022,
which is significantly in excess of Florence County’s general obligation debt as of June 30, 2012,
which is $17,130,609.

Additional information on Florence County’s long-term debt can be found in note 2 on pages 61
— 70 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e ‘The unemployment rafe for Florence County is currently 10.2%, which is a decrease from
arate of 11.9% a year ago.

This factor was considered in preparing Florence County’s budget for the 2013 fiscal year.
During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the general fund decreased to
$9,440,583. This fund balance has now reached a threshold of 19 percent of expenditures,

limiting any additional planned drawdowns in future budget years. In addition, given the
possibility of future reductions in state revenue and accompanying increases in premium

23



expenditures for the state health insurance plan, it is possible that future reductions in budgeted
expenditures may be required to maintain a balanced budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Florence County’s finances for
all thosc with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to
the Office of the Finance Director, 180 North Irby St. MSC-H, Florence, South Carolina, 29501.
Financial Statements of Component Unit

The financial statements of Florence County’s component unit, the Ilorence City-County

Building Commission, can be obtained from its administrative office at 180 North Trby Street,
Box VV, Florence, S.C. 29502,
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowance
for uncoliectibles)
Inventories
Prepaids
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash and investments
Capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation):
land
Construction-in-progress
Buildings and additions
Improvements other than buildings
Autos and trucks
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
infrastructure
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and cther

current liabilities
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Noncurrent liabilities:

OPEB liahility payable

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt

Restricted for:
Federal and state grant purposes
Education purposes
Tourism related purposes
Public safety purposes
Delinquent tax collection purposes
Economic development purposes
Road maintenance purposes
Debt service
Capital projects
Other purposes

Unrestricted {(deficit)

Total net assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-Type Building
Activities Activities Total Commission
$ 39,609,084 $ 5,326,494 $ 45,026,478 $ 3,631,207
7.905,382 80,743 7,966,125 119,559
157,019 - 157,019 -
1,080,408 - 1,080,408 14,095
- 875,440 875440 -
9,262,220 2,308,413 11,570,833 521,180
195,016 - 195,016 -
41,958,613 1614 41,960,227 651,519
3,968,646 7,404 3,976,050 33,083
2,405,959 14,260 2,420,209 -
141,203 5,646 146,899 15,643
4,303,251 44,409 4,347,660 -
14,856,190 - 14,856,190 -
125,933,891 8,644,463 134,578,354 4,987,186
10,083,688 402,838 10,486,526 69,607
- 875,440 875,440 -
5,285,344 - 5,285,344 -
6,812,746 890 6,813,636 40,800
34,381,206 - 34,381,206 44,995
56,562,984 1,279,168 57,842,152 155,503
54,610,726 2,381,786 56,992,512 1,136,429
2,331,986 - 2,331,986 -
234,221 - 234,221 -
1,951,078 - 1,951,078 -
262,449 - 262,449 -
170,516 - 170,516 -
396,365 - 396,355 -
1,903,659 - 1,903,659 -
3,193,493 - 3,193,493 -
6,044,078 - 6,044,078 -
169,032 - 169,932 -
{1,897,586) 4,983,509 3,085,923 3,695,254
$ 69,370,907 $ 7,365,205 $ 76,736,202 $ 4,831,683

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012
Grant Museum County Other Total
Special Capital Debt Service Governmentat Governmental
General Revenue Fund Project Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Asgsots:
Cash and investments § 14,144,067 $ 3,073,328 $ 9,418,201 § 1,596,542 $ 11,467 846 $ 30,699,084
Receivables:
Property taxes (net) 282,393 - - - 120,097 402,490
Other governmental units and agencies 4,396,116 452,027 - - 761,986 5,610,129
Others (net) 1,375,003 12,157 - 364,676 141,027 1,892,763
Inventory 14,417 - - - 142,602 167,019
Prepaids 1,080,408 - - - - 1,080,408
Due from other funds 43,768 - - - - 43,768
Total assets $ 24,336,162 $ 3,537,512 $ 9,418,201 $ 1,961,118 $ 12,633,558 $ 48,886,551
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabiities:
Accounts payabile $ 1,665453 $ 140,267 5 28,334 $ - $ 1,669,397 $ 3,503,451
Payroll withholdings and accruals 548,809 21,491 - - 35,750 605,050
Other payables 5,974,187 - - “ - 5,974,187
Due to other funds - - - - 43,758 43,758
Deferred revenues 1,203,641 1,043,768 - - 178,008 2425 415
Total liabilities 9,392,090 1,205,526 28,334 - 1,926,911 12,552,861
Fund batances:
Nonspendahble:
Inventory and prepaids - 1,002,789 - - - 142,602 1,235,391
Restricted:
Faderal and state grant purposes - 2,331,986 - - - 2,331,986
Education purposes - - - - 234,221 234,221
Tourism related putposes - . - w 1,951,078 1,951,078
Library purposes - - - - 93,755 93,765
Victim witness purposes - - - - 75,370 75,370
Public safety purposes - - - - 262,449 262,449
Senior gitizen purposes - ~ - - 807 807
Detinguent tax collection purmoses - - M - 170,516 170,518
Economic development purposes - - - - 396,355 396,355
Road maintenance purposes - - - - 1,903,659 1,903,669
Debt service - - - 1,861,118 1,232,375 3,193,493
Capital project - - 9,389,867 - 3,867,764 13,257,631
Committed:
Road paving purposes 1,397,033 - . - - 1,397,033
Capital project - - - - 404,308 444,308
Assigned:
General goverament 13,667 - - - - 13,667
Unassigned:
General fund 9,440,583 - - - - 9,440,583
Special revenue funds (deficit) - - - - (28,612) (28,612}
Tatal fund balances 11,944,072 2,331,986 9,389,867 1,961,118 10,706,647 36,333,690
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 21,336,162 $ 3,637,612 $ 9,418,201 $ 1,961,118 $ 12,633,558

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 77,091,098
Other long-lerm assets are nol available to pay for current-period

expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 2,425,415
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not dus and payable

in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (41,193,952}
Other post-employment benefit costs are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reparted in the funds. (5,2865,344)
Net assets of governmental activities § 69,370,907

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Grant Museum County Other Total
Special Capital Project Debt Service Governmental Governmenial
General Revenue Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 31,644,959 § 206,646 $ - $ 3,760,263 $ 5775803 $ 41,447 471
Licenses and permits 2,052,100 - - - - 2,052,100
Fines and fees 3,405,100 - - - 6,156,329 9,561,429
intergovernmental 5,406,193 4,903,309 1.800,000 - 1,577,119 13,665,621
Sales and ofher
functional revenues 5,654,006 - - - - 5,654,006
Miscellaneous 479,506 1,168,945 65,886 23,635 105,979 1,843,931
Total revenues 48,640,944 6,338,900 1,865,886 3,783,798 13,615,030 74,244 558
Expenditures:
Current;
General government 18,668,980 4,217,631 - - 1,288,638 24,175,249
Public safety 16,941,585 1,025,489 - - 1,687,942 19,655,016
Econormic and physical
development - 576,170 - - 514,419 1,090,589
Public works 581,784 - - ~ 2,846,509 3,428,293
Health 5,509,720 - - - - 5,509,720
Welfare 425734 - - - - 425,734
Culture and recreation 5,073,857 142,351 - - 1,848,682 7,064,790
Education 4,515 - - - 2,055,000 2,058,515
Capital outlay - - 585,121 - 2,182,072 2,767,193
Drebt service:
Principal refirements - - - 2,884,954 2,261,250 5,146,204
Interest - - - 839,024 490,486 1,329,510
Bond issuance costs - - 114,000 - 132,283 246,283
Paying agent fee - - - 2,100 - 2,100
Total expenditures 47,206,175 5,961,641 699,121 3,726,078 15,307,181 72,900,196
Revenues over (under)
axpeanditures 1,434,769 377,259 1,166,765 57,720 (1,692,151) 1,344,362
Other financing sources (Uses):
Issuance of debt - - 3,900,000 - - 3,900,000
tssuance of refunding debt - - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
Premium on refunding bonds - - - - 40,836 40,836
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - - - {3,817.811) (3.817,811)
Transfer in 755,607 - - - 1,795,323 2,550,930
“Fransfer out {2,000,343) {171,455) (750,000) - {551,000} (3,472,798)
Total other finanging sources (uses} {1,244,736) {171,455) 3,150,000 - 2,467,348 4,201,157
Net change in fund balances 190,033 205,804 4,316,765 57,7120 775,197 5,545,519
Fund balance - beginning
of year 11,742,974 2,126,182 5,073,102 1,903,398 9,931,450 30,777,106
Change in reserve for
inventory 11,065 - - - - 11,065
Fund balance - end of year $ 11,944,072 $ 2,331,986 $ 9,389,867 $ 1,861,118 $ 10,706,647 $ 36,333,690

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENGE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Amounts reporied for governmental activifies in the statement of activities {page 26) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - fotal gevernmental funds {page 28)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. Howaver, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
usedul lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capilal outlays 4,686,527
Less: depreciation expense (page 58) (5,801,195)

The nat effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
{i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets

Disposals of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation {page 55)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reporied as revenues in the funds.

Deferred revenues (page 27) 2,425 415
Less: deferred revenues, June 30, 2011 (2,284,682)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principle of long-term
debt consumes the curent financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds
reporl the effact of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and simitar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activilies. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-ierm debt and related items.

Principal refirements 8,911,205
Net decrease in vacation pay eamed not used 90,256
Less; issuance of debt (8.900,000)

Increase in OPEB fability

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds

Change in reserve for inventory (page 28)

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 26)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
.20 .
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounis
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Taxes $ 33,016,586 % 33,016,586 $ 31,644,959 $ (1,371,627)
Licenses and permits 1,797,978 1,797,978 2,052,100 254,122
Fines and fees 3,561,342 3,561,342 3,405,100 (156,242)
Intergovernmental 5,380,549 5,639,352 5,405,193 {134,159)
Sales and other
functional revenues 5,458,889 5,458,889 5,654,006 195,117
Miscellaneous 840,000 840,000 479,586 (360,414)
Total revenues 50,055,344 50,214,147 48,640,944 (1,573,203)
Expenditures:
Generai government 18,856,962 19,215,808 18,660,774 555,034
Public safety 17,492,380 17,492,380 16,936,329 556,051
Public works 1,918,135 1,918,135 581,784 1,336,351
Heailth 5,859,752 5,859,752 5,520,798 338,954
Welfare 439,075 439,075 425,734 13,341
Culture and recreation 5,267,626 5,307,950 5,073,857 234,093
Education 4515 4,515 4,515 -
Total expenditures 49,838,445 50,237 615 47,203,791 3,033,824
Revenues over {under)
expenditures 216,899 (23,468) 1,437,163 1,460,621
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 623,942 623,942 755,607 131,665
Transfers out (2,000,343) {2,000,343) (2,000,343) -
Net change in fund balance {1,159,502) {1,399,869) 192,417 1,592,286
Fund balance - beginning
of year 11,758,625 11,768,625 11,758,625 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 10,599,123 $ 10,358,756 $ 11,951,042 $ 1,592,286
{Continued)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Continued)

Reconciliation of fund balance:
GAAP basis $ 11,944,072
Increase (decrease):
Due to expenditures:

Encumbrances {13,667)
Inventories (12,381)
Cash - Juror fee accounts 33,018
Budgetary basis $ 11,951,042

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FLINDS
June 30, 2012

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence County
County County E911
Utility System Landfill System Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 2,009,329 $ 1,011,132 $ 2,306,033 $ 5,326,494
Receivables:
Due from customers - 15,927 44,816 60,743
Total current assets 2,009,329 1,027,059 2,350,849 5,387,237
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments - 875,440 - 875,440
Gapital assets:
Land - 2,465,853 - 2,465,853
Buildings & additions - 188,528 - 188,528
improvements other than buildings - 567,096 - 567,096
Autos & trucks - 1,738,972 25,008 1,763,981
Furniture & fixtures - 1,720 21,089 22,809
Machinery & equipment - 45 766 1,124,089 1,169,855
Less accumulated depreciation - (2,698,661) (1,097 675) (3,796,336)
Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) - 2,309,274 72,512 2,381,786
Total noncurrent assets - 3,184,714 72,512 3,257,226
Total assets 2,009,329 4211773 2,423,361 8,644 463
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2851 356,840 16,172 401,523
Accrued payrofl - - 1,315 1,315
Total current liabilities 28,511 356,840 17,487 402,838
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation - - 890 890
Closure and post-closure costs - 875,440 - 875,440
Total lang-term liabilities - 875,440 890 876,330
Total liabilities 28,511 1,232,280 18,377 1,279,168
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - 2,309,274 72,612 2,381,788
Unrestricted 1,980,818 670,219 2,332472 4 983,509
Total net assets $ 1,980,818 $ 2,979,493 3 2,404,084 $ 7,365,285

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROCLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence County  Florence County  Florence County

Utility System Landfill E911 System Totals

Qperating revenues:
Chaiges for services $ - $ 3,029,675 $ 624,395 $ 3,654,070
Total operating revenues - 3,029,675 624,385 3,654,070

Operating expenses:
System maintenance 387,785 3,659,627 293,130 4,340,542
Depreciation - 6,798 128,060 134,858
Total operating expenses 387,785 3,666,425 421,180 4,475,400
Operating income (loss) {387,785) {636,750) 203,205 (821,330)

Non operating revenues:

Interest earned on investments 14,697 12,750 18,927 46,374
Total nonoperating revenues 14,697 12,750 18,927 46,374
Income (loss) before transfers {373,088) (624,000) 222,132 {774,956)
Transfers in - 990,020 - 990,020
Transfers out - - {68,152) {68,152)
Change in net assets {373,088) 366,020 153,980 146,912
Net assets - beginning 2,353,906 2613473 2,251,004 7,218,383
Net assets - ending $ 1,980,818 $ 2,979,493 $ 2,404,984 $ 7,365,295

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence Florence
County County County
Utility System Landfill E911 System Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users $ - $ 3,026,510 $ 820,577 $ 3,647,087
Payments to suppliers {391,711) (4,023,473) (206,456) {(4,621,840)
Payments fo employees - - (88,723) (88,723)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities {391,711) {996,963) 325,398 {1,063,2786)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers it - 890,020 - 980,020
Transfers out - - (68,152) (68,152)
Net cash provided by (used in)
non-capital financing activities - 990,020 {68,152) 921,868
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL and RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capital assets - - (6,512) (6,512)
Net cash provided used in
financing activities - - {6,512) {6,512)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payment received on note 367,436 - - 367,436
interest earned on operating funds 14,697 12,750 18,927 46,374
Net cash provided by investing
382,133 12,750 18,927 413,810
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and restricted cash {9,578) 5,807 269,661 265,890
Cash and restricted cash at beginning of pericd 2,018,907 1,880,765 2,036,372 5,936,044
Cash and restricted cash at end of period $ 2,009,329 $ 1,886,572 $ 2,306,033 $ 6,201,934

{Continued)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-type Activities ~ Enterprise Funds

Florence Florence Florence
County County County
Utility System Landfill E911 System Totais
(Continued)
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income {loss) $  (387,785) $ (636,750) $ 203,205 $ (821,330)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operations:
Depreciation - 6,798 128,060 134,858
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables - (3,165) (3,818) (6,983)
increase (decrease) in accounts payable (3,926) (363,846) 980 (366,782)
Decrease in accrued payroll - - (3,039 (3,039)
Net cash provided by (used in})
operating activities $ (391,711) $  (996,963) 3 325,398 $ (1,063,276)

SCHEDULE of NONCASH INVESTING and FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

NONE

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2012

Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments 26,344,946
Property taxes receivable 3,717,925
Total assets 30,062,871
LIABILITIES
Due to others 2,068,259
Due to other taxing units 27,994,612
Total liabilities 30,062,871
Reconciliation to combining statements:
Total assets and liabilities per above 30,062,871
Amount due to other funds - eliminated from basic financial statements -
Total assets and fabilities per combining statements (page 101) 30,062,871

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

The Financial Reporting Entity

Florence County (County) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected nine
member council. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these
financial statements present the County (the primary government) and its
component unit, a legally separate entity for which the County is financially
accountable. The component unit discussed in Note 1.B. is included in the
County's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial
relationships with the County.

Component Unit

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, the financial
statements of component units have been included in the financial reporting
entity either as blended component units or as discretely presented component
units.

Blended component units: The County has no blended component units.

Discretely presented component units: The component unit column in the
combined financial statements includes the financial data of the County's
component unit. It is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the County.

The Florence City-County Building Commission (the Building Commission) is
responsible for the maintenance and operation of the Florence City-County
Complex building. The County provides approximately 72% of the operating
revenue for the Building Commission under an agreement with the City of
Florence. The Building Commission is governed by a seven member board.
Five members are appointed based on the recommendation of County
Council and two members on the recommendation of Florence City Council.

Complete financial statements of the individual component unit can be obtained
at 180 North Irby Street, Box VV, Florence, S.C. 29502.
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FLLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Related Organizations

The County's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of the
boards of other organizations, but the County's accountability for these
organizations does not extend beyond making the appointments. The County
Council appoints the board members of the Howe Springs Fire District Board, the
Sardis-Timmonsvilte Fire District Board, the Johnsonville Fire District Board, and
the Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse.

Joint Venture

The County is a participant with the City of Florence in a joint venture to operate
the Florence City-County Civic Center. The Florence City-County Civic Center
Commission {the Civic Center Commission) was created for that purpose. The
Civic Center Commission is governed by a nine member board composed of four
appointees from the County and four from the City of Florence with the remaining
member appointed by the members of the board. The County and the City of
Florence are obligated by agreement to contribute $520,000 each annually as its
share of the cost of the Civic Center. Included in the agreement is a provision
that any additional funding shortfall is to be paid equally by the County and the
City of Florence. Neither of the participating governments have any equity
interest in the joint venture, so no equity interest has been reflected in the
financial statements at June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements of the Civic
Center Commission can be obtained from its administrative office at 3300 West
Radio Drive, Florence, S.C. 28501,

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and
the statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component unit. For the
most part, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from a certain legally
separate component unif for which the primary government is financially
accountable.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes
and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

In June 1999, Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis for State and Local Governments and in June 2001, GASB issued
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis for State and Local Governments: Omnibus and Statement No. 38,
Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. These statements established
new requirements for annual financial reports for state and local governments.
The County implemented these statements for the year ended June 30, 2003.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund statements. The agency fund financial statements do not have a
measurement focus; however, they are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term liabilities and acquisitions
under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’'s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

The Grant Special Revenue Fund accounts for the activities relative to various
federal and state grants received throughout the fiscal year.

The Museum Capital Project Fund accounts for the construction of a new museum in
the County.

The County Debt Service Fund accounts for the payments made on the County’s
general obligation bonds and a portion of the payment on the County’s capital lease.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Utility System Fund accounts for the balances remaining after the water and
sewer system were consolidated into the City of Florence utility system.

The County Landfill Fund accounts for the activities of the County landiill and the
operation of 15 manned convenience centers throughout the County.

-40-



F.

FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The E911 System Fund accounts for the operating of the County's
emergency 911 system.

The government also reports the receipt and disbursement of property taxes and
other revenues for school districts, municipalities, fire districts, and other special
purpose districts in its fiduciary funds.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to
December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statemenis to the extent that those standards do not
conflict with or contradict guidance of GASB. Governments also have the option
of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities
and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Enterprise  funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with an
enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Utility System Fund, the County Landfill Fund, and the E911 System Fund
are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

41-



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G.

Budgetary Data

Budget

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected
in the financial statements:

1.

Prior to May 1, the County Administrator and Finance Director
submit to the County Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted by the County to obtain taxpayer
comments.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an
ordinance.

The County Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts
within departments or between departments. Revisions that alter total
expenditures of a fund must be approved by the County Council.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control
device during the year for all funds of the County; however, legal budgets
are adopted only for the General Fund and the following ten Special
Revenue and Capital Project Funds: Capital Improvements Capital Project
Fund, Law Library Special Revenue Fund, Economic Development
Partnership Special Revenue Fund, Victim/Witness Assistance Special
Revenue Fund, Local Accommodations Fee Special Revenue Fund, Local
Hospitality Tax Special Revenue Fund, Sheriff's Camps Special Revenue
Fund, Sheriff Sex Offender Special Revenue Fund, Seized Auction
Special Revenue Fund, and Road System Maintenance Fee Special
Revenue Fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G.

Budgetary Data (Continued)

The County provides that the whole or any part of any appropriation
provided for grants, and S.C. Accommodations tax budgeted amounts for
outlays of any activity remaining unexpended or unencumbered at the
close of the fiscal year shall remain in full force and effect and shall be
held available for the following year, except any such appropriations as
the County Council by ordinance may abandon. All other appropriations,
which are not encumbered, lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

. The budget for the General Fund is adopted on a basis that differs from

generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in that expenditures are
budgeted on a basis that includes encumbrances. Budgetary control over
expenditures is exercised by County Council on a departmental basis to
establish more administrative control than state law requires. Legal level
of budgetary control is at the fund level. The actual results of operations
are presented in the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - in accordance with
the budget basis to provide a meaningful comparison between actual
results and budget. Adjustments necessary to convert the results of
operations and fund balances at year end on the GAAP basis to the
budget basis for the General Fund are as follows:

Fund
Balance
Net Change in at Year
Fund Balance End
General General
Fund Fund
GAAP basis $ 190,033 $11,944,072
Increase (decrease):
Due to expenditures:
Encumbrances (1,554) (13,667)
Inventories - {12,381)
Cash - Juror fee accounts 3,938 33,018
Budgetary basis $ 192,417 $11,951,042
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G.

Budgetary Data (Continued)

The County does not have budgets for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, for the South Carolina Accommodations Tax Special Revenue
Fund, the Treasurer Delinquent Tax Special Revenue Fund, the Grant
Special Revenue Fund, the Jail Debt Service/Operations and Maintenance
(O&M) Special Revenue Fund, the Emergency Management Special
Revenue Fund, the County Library Special Revenue Fund, the Florence-
Darlington Technical Education Center and Library Special Revenue
Fund, the Howe Springs Fire District Special Revenue Fund, the Sardis-
Timmonsville Fire District Special Revenue Fund, the Johnsonville Fire
District Special Revenue Fund, and the Senior Citizens Center Special
Revenue Fund. Individual fund statements of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balance -- budget (budgetary basis) and actual
present financial information for only the following special revenue and
capital project funds which have legally adopted annual budgets: Capital
Improvements Capital Project Fund, Law Library Special Revenue Fund,
Economic  Development Partnership  Special Revenue Fund,
Victim/Witness Assistance Special Revenue Fund, Local Accommodations
Fee Special Revenue Fund, Hospitality Tax Special Revenue Fund,
Sheriff Camps Special Revenue Fund, Sheriff Sex Offender Special
Revenue Fund, Seized Auction Special Revenue Fund, and Road System
Maintenance Fee Special Revenue Fund.

Encumbrances

The County maintains encumbrance accounts which are considered to be
"hudgetary accounts”. Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the
estimated amounts of the expenditures ultimately to be incurred if unperformed
contracts in process at year end are completed. Encumbrances outstanding at
year end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

At June 30, 2012, $13,667 of open purchase orders and conftracts were
outstanding, related to general operations. These amounts are included in
“Assigned Fund Balance” in the fund balance section of the balance sheet.
Encumbrances do not lapse at year end.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances

Deposits and investments

As of June 30, 2012, the County had no investments. All cash balances were
held in either deposit accounts or money market accounts.

Interest Rate Risk — The County does not have a formal investment policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure fo fair value
losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — Statutes authorized the County to invest in obligations of the State
of South Carolina and any of its political units, United States Government
obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States Government,
repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit which are secured by direct
obligations of the State of South Carolina or the United States Government, and
savings and loan associations to the extent that the same are insured by an
agency of the Federal government. The County has no investment policy that
would further limit its investment choices.

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned. The County does
not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2012, the carrying
amount of the County’'s deposits was $72,246,864 and the bank balance was
$72,637,381. State law requires that all of the County’s deposits be covered by
FDIC insurance or by collateral held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department in the County’s name. As of June 30, 2012, all but $115,502 were
fully insured or collateralized.

As of June 30, 2012, the County had the following balances in cash and
investments:
Cash, including restricted cash and investments $72,246,864

Investments

Total cash and investments $72,246,864
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued)

Property Taxes Receivable

Ad valorem taxes receivable are accrued as revenue for collections 60 days
subsequent to year end; the balance is not accrued because it is not considered
to be both "measurable and available". The amount of the receivable is reduced
by an allowance for doubtful accounts and is based on historical collection
experience (Note 2). An amount equal to the net receivable less the 60 days
subsequent collections is shown as deferred revenue in the liability section of the
balance sheet. The following dates are applicable to property taxes:

Lien date December 31
Levy date July 1

Due date January 15
Collection date March 15

According to South Carolina law, ad valorem taxes levied on July 1, the
beginning of the fiscal year, are due January 15. Penaities accrue at that time.
On March 15 delinquent costs also begin to accrue. On June 30, they are
materially past due and, consequently, cannot be considered as a resource
which can be used to finance the government operations for the current year
although the amount due is measurable.

For collection purposes, ad valorem taxes receivable are written off at the end of
ten years in accordance with South Carolina law.

For reporting purposes this receivable also includes costs and fees relating to
property taxes.

Sales Tax Receivable

In November 1993, the County's voters approved a referendum to impose a one
percent local option sales tax. This tax was imposed beginning May 1, 1994, All
of the revenue collected from this tax is being used as a credit against ad
valorem taxes and vehicle taxes. This credit first appeared on ad valorem tax
notices mailed November 1994 and on vehicle tax notices beginning with those
notices for January 1995.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued)

According to GASB Statement 22, "Sales taxes collected by merchants but not
yet required to be remitted to the taxing authority at the end of the fiscal year and
taxes collected and held by one government agency for another at year-end
should be accrued..." Therefore, May and June taxes which were received by
the County within 60 days after fiscal year-end are shown as sales tax receivable
in the asset section of the balance sheet.

Included in other payables at June 30, 2012, are local option sales tax collections
in excess of local option sales tax credits applied on property tax notices as
follows:

General fund $2,417,075
Special revenue fund 790,565
$3,207,640

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for property taxes, Emergency
Medical Services (EMS), Vehicle Registration Fees, Florence County Utility
System, and Landfill receivables which historically experience uncollectible
accounts. All other receivables are generally collectible and any doubtful
accounts are considered immaterial.

Inventory

Inventories are maintained for major items used by the governmental funds and
enterprise funds. Inventories of the governmental funds are valued at cost. The
purchase method is used to account for most inventories of the governmental
funds. The purchase method is not used for the drug and supply inventory of the
EMS system since this inventory is held for use for EMS patients and is not
expended until used. The purchase method is not used for the fuel truck
inventory as well and is not expended until used. The amount of these
inventories at June 30, 2012, is $2,036. Therefore, the total General Fund
inventory balance at June 30, 2012, of $14,417 is not equally offset by the
General Fund fund balance reserved for inventory of $12,381. Under the
purchase method, disbursements for inventory-type items in the General Fund
are considered to be expenditures at the time of purchase. Supplies transferred
to and consumed by the individual departments are considered a reduction of the
inventory expenditure account and an expenditure of the department.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued)

Reported inventories accounted for using the purchase method in the
governmental funds are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates
the assets are unavailable for appropriation even though they are a component
of reported assets.

Inventories of proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out)
or market.

Restricted Assets - Cash and Investments

The balance shown in restricted assets - cash and investments at June 30, 2012,
is the balance required for closure and post-closure costs of the County Landfill.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads and bridges), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued)

Property, plant, and eguipment of the primary government is depreciated using
the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20
Roads 20
Bridges 40
Machinery & equipment 10
Vehicles 5
Furniture & fixtures 10
Computer equipment 5

Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current
period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Deferred Revenues

As discussed on page 46, ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as
revenue because they are not considered to be both "measurable and available”.
NCGA Statement 3 states that property taxes that are measurable but not
available should be initially recorded as deferred revenues. In addition, property
taxes collected in advance of the fiscal year to which they apply should also be
recorded as deferred revenues.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued)

The balance in deferred revenues at June 30, 2012, is composed of the foliowing
elements:

Prepaid

Receivables Vehicle Unearned

From Other Taxes Grant

Governments & Fees Revenue Other
General fund $ 188,622 $1,007 684 $ - $ 7,335
Special revenue funds - 172,927 1,043,768 -
Debt service funds - 5079 - -

Total $ 188,622 $1,185.690 $1,043,768 $ 7335

Fund Balances

The GASB has issued Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and
Govermnmental Fund Type Definitions”, The objective of this Statement is to
enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund
balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the
existing governmental fund type definitions. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.
The following categories of fund balance are now being used in the fund level
financial statements of the government funds:

Nonspendable Fund Balance

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. The "not spendable for" criterion includes items
that are not to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid
amount. It also includes the long-term amounts of loans and notes receivable, as
well as property acquired for resale.

Restricted Fund Balance

The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are either
restricted externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or restricted by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued)

Committed Fund Balance

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be
used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of
the County's highest level of decision making authority, the County Council.
Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
County Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of
action it employed to previously commit those amounts. Committed fund
balances also incorporate contfractual obligations to the extent that existing
resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those
contractual requirements. The County recognizes committed fund balances that
have been approved for specific purposes by County Council before year end.

Assigned Fund Balance

The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained
by the County's intent to be used for specific purposes but are not restricted or
committed. The authority for making an assignment is not required to be the
County's highest level of decision-making authority and as such, the nature of
actions necessary to remove or modify an assignment does not require the
County’s highest level of authority. Assigned fund balance amounts in the
County's financial statements represent amounts approved by the County
Council to be transferred and spent after year end. In the special revenue funds,
assigned fund balances represent amounts to be spent for specific purposes.

Unassigned Fund Balance

The unassigned fund balance classification includes amounts that have not been
assigned to other funds and has not been restricted, committed, or assigned for
specific purposes within the General Fund.

Based on the County's policies regarding fund balance classifications as noted
above, the County considers amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned
to be spent when the corresponding expenditures that have been designated by
County Council or donors have been incurred. After these fund balances have
been depleted, unassigned fund balance will be considered to have been spent.

Government-wide and fund financial statements must be presented using an all-
inclusive format. That is, the results of the current period's activities are to be
reported as an addition to (or a deduction from) equity at the beginning of the
period to arrive at the closing equity balance. Thus changes in net assets on the
government-wide statement of activities is added to (or deducted from) net
assets - beginning of the fiscal year to arrive at net assets - end of the fiscal year.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued)

Net assets are defined as the difference between assets and liabilities in the
government-wide statement of net assets.

The government-wide statement of net asset reports all government's assets;
therefore, a significant portion of the net assets reported there typically reflects a
government's investment in capital assets. To draw financial statement users'
attention to this important information, GAAP requires the amount of net assets
invested in capital assets to be reported as a separate category of net assets.
Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt includes all capital
assets less accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal of related debt.

Restrictions may be imposed on a portion of a government's net assets by
parties outside the government, such as creditors, grantors, and contributors. In
some cases, such restricted assets are directly associated with particular
liabilities, such as restricted assets associated with revenue bonds. An amount
equal to these restricted assets, less any related liabilities, is reported as
restricted net assets.

GAAP directs that the difference between total net assets and the two categories
discussed above (invested in capital assets, net of related debt and restricted net
assets) be reported as unrestricted net assets.

The amounts shown in the fund balance section of the balance sheet reflect fund
balance as defined by GAAP in NCGA Statement 1. Portions of fund balance
have also been reserved for inventories, encumbrances and debt service.

Equity includes the following:

1. Net assets - represents the cumulative net earnings of the enterprise funds.

2. Fund balance - represents the fund balances as defined by GAAP in
governmental accounting and financial reporting standards.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

H.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Balances (Continued)

Deficit Fund Balances

The 5.C. Accommodations Tax Special Revenue Fund and the Johnsonville Fire District
Special Revenue Fund had a deficit fund balance of $13,862 and $14,750, respectively,
as of June 30, 2012. These deficits will be funded through future operations.

Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses

Vacation and Sick Pay

The County's vacation policy provides for the accumulation of up to twenty-five
days earned vacation as of the end of the calendar year with such leave being
fully vested when earned. Depending on years of service, ten days (for service
years 1-10), fifteen days (for service years 11-20) or twenty days (for service
over twenty years) may accrue for the current year. Accumulated earned
vacation at June 30, 2012, amounted to $1,443,530 in total, all of which relates to
the governmental funds. The liability of the governmental funds is recorded as a
long-term obligation in the government-wide financial statements. The current
portion is not considered to be material.

The County's sick leave policy provides for accumulation of ninety days earned
sick leave. Depending on years of service, additional days are allowed to accrue
for the current year but must be used within that year or they will be lost. Sick
leave does not vest; any unused sick leave at retirement is lost and is not used in
determination of length of service for retirement purposes. Since the County has
no obligation for accumulated sick leave until actually taken, no accrual has been
made.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations in Individual Funds

The following table shows the excess of expenditures over appropriations in
individual funds for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Appropriations Expenditures  Excess

VictimAitness Assistance Special

Revenue Fund $ 187,594 $ 188,247 ($653)
Local Hospitality Tax Special
Revenue Fund $ 655,116 $ 828458  ($173,342)

For the Victim/Witness Assistance Special Revenue Fund, the excess of expenditures
was the result of excess salary cost above what was budgeted. For the Local Hospitality
Tax Special Revenue Fund, the excess of expenditures was the result of an oversight in
budgeting for a debt service payment.
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A. Assets

Receivables - Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The amount shown on page 27 for property taxes receivable is net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,060,262 for property taxes not related to
vehicles. The breakdown of this allowance is as follows:

General Fund $ 945670
Special revenue funds 589
Debt service funds 114,003

$1.060,262

Included in the amount shown as property taxes receivable are vehicle taxes
receivable net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $520,715. The
breakdown of this allowance is as follows:

General Fund $ 384,112
Special revenue funds 75,215
Debt service funds 61,388

$ 520715

Certain receivables included in other receivables are net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts as follows:
General Fund

Vehicle General
Registration Fund Enterprise
Fee EMS Funds
Gross receivables $852,081 $8,174,267 $1,234,630
Less: allowance for
doubtful accounts 852 081 7.918.074 1,173,887
$ - $ 256,193 §$ 60,743

Due from Other Governments and Agencies
General Fund amounts due from other governments include the following:

State — taxes and licenses $4,313,993
State — other 82,123
$4,396,116
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
A. Assets (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Description Balance Additions Disposals Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 92583192 % 3,901 § - $ 9,262,220

Construction-in-progress - 195,016 - 195,016
Total capital assets not being

depreciated 9,258,319 198,917 - 8,457,236
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings & additions 57,411,195 1,191,126 - 58,602,321

Improvements other than

buildings 6,951,517 17,770 - 6,969,287

Autos & trucks 10,599,029 829,296 (977,273) 10,451,052

Furniture & fixtures 428,099 - - 428,099

Machinery & equipment 23,674,717 802,147 (223,453) 24,253,411

Infrastructure 52,946,961 1,647,271 - 54,594,232
Total capital assets being

depreciated 152,011,518 4,487 610 (1,200,726) 155,298,402
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings & additions (15,276,104) (1,367,604) - (16,643,708)

Improvements other than

buildings (2,645,378) (355,263) - (3,000,641)

Autos & trucks (7,911,303)  (1,0569,528) 025,738 (8,045,093}

Furniture & fixtures (260,806) (26,090) - (286,896)

Machinery & equipment (18,603,952) (1,542,896) 196,688  (19,950,160)

Infrastructure (38,188,228) (1,549,814) - (39,738,042)
Total accumulated depreciation (82,885,771) (5,901,195) _1,122.426 _ (87,664,540)
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 69,125,747  (1,413,585) (78,300) _ 67,633,862

Governmental activities capital

assets, net $ 78,384,066 ($1,214,668)
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Assets (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Description Balance Additions Disposals Balance

Business-type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:

Land $2,465,853 $ - - $2,465,853

Buildings & additions 188,528 - - 188,528

Improvements other than

buildings 567,096 - - 567,096

Autos & trucks 1,763,981 - - 1,763,981

Furniture & fixtures 20,432 2,377 - 22.809

Machinery & equipment 1,165,720 4135 - 1,169,855
Total capital assets being

depreciated 6,171,610 6,512 - 6,178,122
Less accumulated depreciation for;

Land (1567,402) {(38) ~ (157,440)

Buildings & additions (186,633) (281) - (186,914)

Improvements other than

buildings (657,962) (1,730) - (559,692)

Autos & trucks (1,744,981) (4,750) - (1,749,731}

Furniture & fixtures (15,686) (1,427) - (17,113)

Machinery & equipment (998,814) (126,632) - (1,125,446)
Total accumuiated depreciation {3,661,478) (134,858) - (3.796,336)
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 2,510,132 (128,346) - 2,381,786
Business-type activities capital

assets, net $2,510132  $(128,346) $ - $2,381,786

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 770,317
Public safety 1,914,352
FPublic works, including depreciation of infrastructure assets 1,919,268
Heaith 482,742
Culture & recreation 814,516
Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $5.901,195
Business-type activities:
Landfill $ 6,798
E911 128,060
Total depreciation expense — business type activities $134,858
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
A. Assets (Continued)

The Civic Center is operated as a joint venture between the City of Florence and
the County. Accordingly, the capital assets of the Civic Center are not included
in the capital assets of the County.

The portion of the land in the Landfill Fund that was used for landfill purposes is
being depreciated over a period of twenty-five (25) years since the future use of
the land has been impaired due to its previous use as a municipal solid waste
landfill. The remaining fand in the Landfill Fund is vacant and has not been used
for landfill purposes and therefore is not being depreciated.

B. Liabilities

Pension Plans

The County is a member of the South Carclina Retirement System (SCRS) and
the South Carolina Police Officers' Retirement System (SCPORS). Both systems
are cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement systems (PERS)
and are administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. Benefit
provisions, contribution rates and amendment authority are established under the
authority of Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.

Generally, all employees are required to participate and contribute to the SCRS
as a condition of employment. The normal cost is funded by contributions from
the members at a rate of 6.5% of wages earned for the year. The employer's
contribution rate is 9.39%. Employees who retire at or after age 65 or with 28
years of credited service are entitled to full retirement benefits, payable for life,
with an annual rate equal to 1.82% of average final compensation, for each year
of credited service. Vested employees are entitled to a deferred annuity
commencing at age 60.

Generally, all full-time employees whose principal duties are the preservation of
public order, protection or prevention and control of property destruction by fire
are eligible to participate in the SCPORS. The basic pension program is funded
by contributions from the members at a 6.5% rate. The employer’s contribution
rate is 11.53%. There are no early retirement provisions under the SCPORS. A
member must have 25 years of service for full retirement or must be age 55 with
5 years of service, both criteria provide for full formula benefit, payable for life
with an annual rate equal to 2.14% of average final compensation, for each year
of credited service.
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

The County’'s contributions to the SCRS for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and
2010 were $1,750,224, $1,695,940, and $1,723,477, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year. The County's contributions to the SCPORS for the years
ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $1,006,862, $962,076, and $922,908,
respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. Contributions by
employees during the year were $1,193,126 to the SCRS and $556,372 to the
SCPORS. The County's covered payroll for the SCRS and SCPORS was $18,355,780
and $8,559,572, respectively. Total current year payroll for all employees was
$27,967 129.

A Comprehensive Annual Financial Report confaining financial statements and required
supplementary information for the South Carolina Retirement System and South
Carolina Police Officers Retirement System is issued and publicly available by writing
the South Carolina Retirement System, Post Office Box 11960, Columbia, South
Carolina 29211-19860.

Other Post Employment Benefits (OFPEB)

Plan Description

The County provides post-retirement health insurance benefits for qualifying retirees as
required by County Ordinance #15-87/88. Qualifying retirees are those who retired after
September 1, 1987, with at least 15 years of continuous employment service with the
County. The County will contribute the cost of insurance coverage as carried by the
County for regular full-time employees according to the following scale which is based
on years of service, for employees hired prior to July 1, 2011.

% Of Coverage Paid For

Years Of Service By The County
35 years 100%
30 years 90%
25 years 80%
20 years 70%
15 years 60%

For employees hired after June 30, 2011, The County will contribute the cost of
insurance coverage as carried by the County for regular full-time employees according
to the following scale which is based on years of service.

% Of Coverage Paid For

Years Of Service By The County
25 years 75%
20 years 50%
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. Liabilities (Continued)

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

The County’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of accrual
that is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded
actuarial fiabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The County's annual OPEB cost for the current year is as follows:

Employer normal cost $ 889,682
Amortization of UAL 721,032
Annual required contribution 1,610,714
Interest on OPEB obligation 183,965
Adjustment to ARC { 170.441)
Annual OPEB cost - end of year 1,624,238
Employer contributions { 426,999)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,197,239
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 4,088,105
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $5,285,344

The County’'s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012 and the preceding two fiscal years were as follows:

Employer
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Amount Percentage Net OPEDB
Ended Cost Contributed Contributed Ohligation
June 30, 2010 $1,770,142 $318,011 18.0% $2,869,588
June 30, 2011 $1,573,292 $354,775 22.5% $4,088,105
June 30, 2012 $1,624,238 $426,999 26.3% $5,285,344

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The funding status of the County’s retiree health care plan, under GASB Statement No.
45 as of June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Actuarial value of plan assets {a) -
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) {b) $16,301,502
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) (b — a) $16,301,502
Funded ratio {actuarial value of plan assets / AAL) (b /! a) 0.00%
Covered payroil (active plan members) {d) $27,967 129
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll {b - a)/d 58.29%
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

Actuarial methods and assumptions

The projected unit credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for
the County's retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health
premiums and a set of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future payments are
projected. The projected unit credit actuarial cost method then provides for a systematic
funding for these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of
benefits being earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the
unfunded accrued liability.

Projections of health benefits are based on the plan as understood by the County and
include types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit
costs between the County and the County’s employees to that point. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that
are designhed fo reduce shori-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuarial value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

investment rate of return 4.50%, net of expenses

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Cost Credit Method
Amortization method Level as a percentage of employee payroll
Amortization period Open 30 year period

Payroll growth 3.00% per annum

inflation 3.00% per annum

Medical trend Starting at 7.5% and remaining level for 3

years, then decreasing by 0.5% per year
to 5.0% per year after & years

Drug trend Starting at 8.9% and remaining level for 3
years, then decreasing to 5.0% for years
after 2016

Dental trend 3.0% per year

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funding
status and the annual required confributions of the County’s retiree health care plan are
subject to continual revision as actual resuits are cormpared to past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress
presented as required supplementary information provides multiyear trend information
that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

Long-Term Liabilities

The general obligation bonds shown as long-term liabilities in the government-wide
financial statements are collateralized by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the
County. They bear interest payable semiannually, at rates varying from 3.00% to 5.50%.
Principal and interest payments are to be made from the applicable Debt Service Funds.

On June 21, 2000, the County issued $500,000 of Florence County General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2000A (Johnsonville Fire District). These bonds bear interest at 5.30%.
The first interest payment of $18,403 was due March 1, 2001 and semi-annually
thereafter. The first principal payment was due March 1, 2002 and annually thereafter,
with the final payment for both principal and interest due March 1, 2015. The proceeds of
these bonds are being used to fund the purchase of new fire trucks and equipment.

On October 15, 2003, the County issued $210,000 of Florence County General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2003 (Hannah-Salem-Friendfield Fire District). These bonds
bear interest at a rate of 4.71%. Principal and interest payments were due annually
beginning on October 15, 2004, with the first payment being in the amount of $17,891.
The final payment is due October 15, 2013. The proceeds of these honds are being
used to fund the construction of a new fire substation.

On February 5, 2004, the County issued $950,000 of Florence County General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2004 (Howe Springs Fire District). These bonds bear interest
at a rate of 4.20%. Principal and interest payments were due annually beginning on
February 5, 2005, with the first payment being in the amount of $118,295. The final
payment is due February 5, 2014. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund
the purchase of new fire trucks and equipment.

On March 16, 2005, the County issued $4,200,000 of Florence County Advance
Refunding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005. These bonds bear interest at rates
ranging from 3.00% to 4.00%. The first interest payment of $243,883 was due October
1, 2005, and semiannually thereafter. The first principal payment was due April 1, 2006,
and annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due April 1,
2020. The proceeds of the bonds were used fo refund $3,935,000 of the Florence
County General Obligation Bonds, Series 2000. The aggregate debt service of the
Refunding Bonds is $5,743,595. The aggregate debt service of the refunded bonds was
$5,811,640, for an aggregate difference of $68,045. The economic gain from this
refunding transaction was $252 317.
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continyed)

On December 19, 2008, the County issued $7,600,000 of Florence County General
Ohbligation Bonds, Series 2006. These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 3.50%
to 3.85%. The first interest payment of $189,990 was due August 1, 2007, and
semiannually thereafter. The first principal payment was due February 1, 2008, and
annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due February 1,
2019. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund various capital projects.

On August 29, 2008, the County issued $600,000 of Florence County General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2008 (Windy Hill/Olanta Rural Volunteer Fire District). These bonds bear
interest at a rate of 4.65%. Principal and interest payments were due annually beginning
on April 1, 2009, with the first payment being in the amount of $55415. The final
payment is due April 1, 2023. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund the
construction of a new fire station.

On April 1, 2009 the County issued $1,500,000 of Florence County General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2009 (Howe Springs Fire District). These bonds bear interest at a rate of
3.235%. Principal and interest payments were due annually beginning on April 1, 2010,
with the first payment being in the amount of $177,961. The final payment is due April 1,
2019. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund fire-fighting equipment,
vehicles, and related equipment.

On September 29, 2010, the County issued $900,000 of Florence County General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2010 (Windy Hill/Olanta Fire District). These bonds bear
interest at a rate of 2.66%. Principal and interest payments were due annually beginning
on September 29, 2011, with the first payment being in the amount of $79,745, The final
payment is due September 29, 2020. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to
fund the purchase of two new fire trucks.

On November 22, 2011, the County issued $5,000,000 of Florence County General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2011. These bonds bear interest rates ranging from
2.00% to 2.75%. The first interest payment of $29,733 was due on March 1, 2012, and
semiannually thereafter. The first principal payment was due March 1, 2012, and
annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due March 1,
2026. The proceeds of these bonds were used to refund the remaining outstanding
portion of the Series 2002 Florence County General Obligation Bonds and for various
capital improvement projects. The aggregate debt service of the refunding bonds is
$4,384,674. The aggregate debt service of the refunded bonds was $4,914,635, for an
aggregate difference of $529,961. The economic gain from this refunding transaction
was $473,136.
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. Liabilities (Continued)

General obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2012, are comprised of the
following individual issues:

Current
Final Maturity of
Interest Maturity Amount Principal
Rates Date Qutstanding Installments
Johnsonville Fire
District Bonds:
$500,000, Series 2000A 5.30% 2013 $ 50,000 $ 50,000
5.30% 2014 50,000
5.30% 2015 55,000
155,000 50,000
Hannah-Salem-Friendfield
Fire District Bonds:
$210,000, Series 2003 4.71% 2013 $ 55000 $ 55,000
4.71% 2014 60,000
115,000 55,000
Howe Springs Fire
District Bonds:
$950,000, Series 2004 4.20% 2013 $ 108,951 % 108,951
4.20% 2014 113,528

222,479 108,951

Florence County Advance
Refunding Bonds:

$4,200,000, Series 2005 3.63% 2013 $ 320,000 $ 320,000
3.63% 2014 335,000
3.63% 2015 345,000
3.63% 2018 360,000
3.75% 2017 375,000
3.80% 2018 390,000
3.90% 2019 400,000
4.00% 2020 420,000

2,945,000 320,000
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. Liabilities (Continued)

Current
Final Maturity of
Interest Maturity Amount Principal
Rates Date Quistanding Installments
Florence County General
Bonds
$7,600,000, Series 2006 3.75% 2013 $§ 535000 §$ 535,000
3.75% 2014 760,000
3.75% 2015 790,000
3.75% 2016 1,020,000
3.75% 2017 1,060,000
3.75% 2018 1,185,000
3.85% 2019 1,235,000

6,585,000 535,000

Windy Hili/Olanta Fire
District Bonds

$600,000, Series 2008 4.65% 2013 $ 33612 $ 33612
4 65% 2014 35,175
4.65% 2015 36,811
4.65% 2016 38,523
4.65% 2017 40,314
4.65% 2018 42,188
4.65% 2019 44,150
4.65% 2020 46,203
4.65% 2021 48,352
4.65% 2022 50,600
4.65% 2023 52,952

468,880 33,612

Howe Springs Fire
District Bonds

$1,500,000, Series 2009 3.235% 2013 § 1424090 $ 142409
3.235% 2014 147,016
3.235% 2015 161,772
3.235% 2016 156,681
3.235% 2017 161,750
3.235% 2018 166,983
3.235% 2019 172,384

1,098,995 142,409
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

Current
Final Maturity of
Interest Maturity Amount Principal
Rates Date Qutstanding Instaliments
Windy Hill/Olanta Fire District
District Bonds
$900,000, Series 2010 2.66% 2013 $ 81,866 $ 81,866
2.66% 2014 84,044
2.66% 2015 86,279
2.66% 2016 88,574
2.66% 2017 90,930
2.66% 2018 93,349
2.66% 2019 95,832
2.66% 2020 98,381
2.66% 2021 101,000
820,255 81,866
Florence County General
Refunding Bonds
$5,000,000, Series 2011 2.00% 2013 $ 300,000 $ 300,000
2.00% 2014 305,000
2.00% 2015 315,000
2.00% 2016 320,000
2.00% 2017 330,000
2.00% 2018 340,000
2.00% 2019 345,000
2.00% 2020 355,000
2.00% 2021 365,000
2.13% 2022 370,000
2.38% 2023 385,000
2.50% 2024 320,000
2.63% 2025 330,000
2.75% 2026 340,000
4,720,000 300,000
Total general obligation bonds $17.130,609 $1,626.838
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

Amount of long-term liability due within one year, by class:

General obligation bonds
Special source revenue bond
Hospitality tax revenue bond

Capital leases

Vacation pay (estimated)

Total

$ 1,626,838
1,033,946
205,000
2,503,432
1,002,122

$ 6,370,338

Changes in long-term liabilities during fiscal year 2012 are summarized as follows:

By type of debt:
General obligation
bonds
Revenue bonds
Capital leases
Vacation pay
Total

July 1, 2011 _ Additions Retirements June 30, 2012
$17.472,979% 5,000,000 $ 5,342,370 $17,130,609
3,858,971 3,900,000 1,128,105 6,630,866
18,429,677 - 2,440,730 15,988,947
1,633,786 1,001,122 1,091,378 1,443,530
$41,295413 $9,901,122 $10,002 583 $41,193,952
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

July 1, 2011 __Additions

Retirements June 30, 2012

By purpbse:
General government;
County general

capital projects $14,220,232 $5,000,000 $ 1,607,819 $17,612413
County vehicles - - - -
Energy management - - - -
Public safety:
Fire protection 3,357,979 - 477,370 2,880,609
County jail and
radio system 9,583,432 - 1,249,920 8,333,512
Economic and physical
development:
Economic development 3,858,971 - 976,105 2,882,866
Culture & recreation:
County library 3,765,000 - 3,765,000 -
Civic Center 4,976,013 - 682,991 4,293 022
Museum - 3,900,000 152,000 3,748,000
Vacation pay 1,533,786 1,001,122 1,091,378 1,443,530
Total $41.295413 $9,901,122 $10,002,583 $41,193,952
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NOTE 2. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. Liabilities (Continued)

Annual principal and interest requirements of general obligation bonds are summarized

as follows:
Hannah/Salem/
Johnsonville Friendfield Howe Springs
Fire Fire Fire
District District District
Bonds Bonds Bonds
Year Ending
June 30,
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 50,000 $8,215 $ 55,000 $ 5,417 $ 251,360 $ 44,806
2014 50,000 5,665 60,000 2,826 260,544 35,714
2015 55,000 2,915 - - 151,772 26,190
2016 - ~ - - 156,681 21,280
2017 - - - - 161,750 16,211
2018-2022 - - - - 339,367 16,655
2023-2027 - - - - - -
$155,000 $16,695 $115,000 58243 $1321474 $160.846
Florence Windy Hill/
County Olanta Fire
General District
Bonds Bonds
Year Ending
June 30,
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 835,000 $ 350,601 $ 115,478 $ 43622
2014 1,065,000 324,629 119,220 39,881
2015 1,105,000 290,029 123,091 36,010
2016 1,340,000 254,104 127,097 32,003
2017 1,390,000 209,454 131,244 27,856
2018-2022 4,195,000 425726 620,053 71,761
2023-2027 1.375.000 88,531 52,952 2462
$11.305000  $1,943164  $1,289,135 $263.695
Florence
County
Advance Refunding
Bonds Totals
Year Ending
June 30,
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 320,000 $ 110,583 $ 1,626,838 $ 563424
2014 335,000 98,983 1,888,764 507,598
2015 345,000 86,8392 1,779,863 441,983
2016 360,000 74,333 1,983,778 381,720
2017 375,000 61,283 2,057,004 314,804
2018-2022 1,210,000 96,420 6,364,420 610,462
2023-2027 - - 1,427,952 90,993
$2,945,000 $.528.441 $17,130.609  $2,910,984
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B. Liabilities (Continued)

General
Principal Interest Totals
Reconciliation:
Current portion $ 1626838 $ 563424 $ 2,190,262
Subsegquent years 15,503,771 2,347,560 17,851,331
Total $17,130,609  $2,910,984 $20,041,593

On March 15, 2007, the County issued $2,800,000 of Florence County Special
Source Revenue Bonds, Series 2007. These bonds bear interest at a rate of
6.24%. The first interest payment of $174,720 was due March 15, 2008, and
annually thereafter. The first principal payment was due March 15, 2009, and
annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due
March 15, 2013. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund incentives
for two industries in the County.

On April 30, 2010, the County issued $3,000,000 of Florence County Special
Source Revenue Bonds, Series 2010. These bonds bear interest at a rate of
5.44%. The first interest payment of $163,200 was due April 30, 2011, and
annually thereafter. The first principal payment was due April 30, 2011, and
annually thereafter, with the final payment for both principal and interest due April
30, 2017. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund incentives for
three industries in the County.

Annual principal and interest requirements of special source revenue bonds are
summarized as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2013 $1,033,046 $161,867 $ 1,195,813
2014 426,176 100,581 526,757
2015 449,360 77,397 526,757
2016 473,805 52,952 526,757
2017 499 579 27177 526,756
Total $2,882.866 $419.974 §$ 3,302,840
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On December 22, 2011, the County issued $3,900,000 of Hospitality Fee
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011. These bonds bear interest at a rate of 4.00%.
The first interest payment of $29,900 was due on March 1, 2012, and
semiannually thereafter. The first principal payment was due on March 1, 2012,
and annually thereafter, with the final payment for both interest and principal due
March 1, 2026. The proceeds of these bonds are being used to fund a portion of
the cost of the construction of a new museum.

Annual principal and interest requirements of hospitality fee revenue bonds are
summarized as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2013 $205,000 $149920 $ 354,920
2014 213,000 141,720 354,720
2015 222,000 133,200 355,200
2016 231,000 124,320 355,320
2017 240,000 115,080 355,080
2018-2022 1,350,000 423,680 1,773,680
2023-2026 1,287,000 131,240 1,418,240
Total $3,748,000 $ 1,219,160 $4,967,160

On November 23, 2010, the County issued a $21,158,666 capital lease with a
fixed interest rate of 2.49% to refinance the outstanding certificates of
participation in the amount of $21,077,530, including interest. The remaining
proceeds of the lease were used to fund the costs of issuance of the new lease.
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under this capital
lease as of June 30, 2012.

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 2,503,432 $ 398,125 $ 2,901,657
2014 2,569,704 335,789 2,905,493
2015 2,629,457 271,804 2,901,261
2016 2,692,707 206,330 2,899,037
2017 2,764,364 139,282 2,903,646
2018 2,829,283 70,449 2,899,732
Minimum capital
lease payments $15,988,947 $1,421,779 $17,410,726
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B. Liabilities {Continued)
The County is obligated under other leases accounted for as noncancellable operating

leases. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under
noncancellable operating leases as of June 30, 2012:

Year Ending
June 30
2013 $ 41,500
2014 24,042
: $ 65,042
Due toffrom Other Funds

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2012, is as follows:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund S.C. Accommodations Tax Special Revenue Fund  $§ 43,758

The outstanding balance between these funds results from the time lag between the
dates that payments between funds are made.

Interfund Transfers

Transfer Iin:

Nonimajor
General Enterprise Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total

Transfer out.
General Fund $ " $990,020 $1,010,323 $2,000,343
Grant Special

Revenue Fund 171,455 - - 171,455
Museum Capital

Praject Fund - 750,000 750,000
Enterprise Fund 68,152 - 68,152
Nonmajor

Governmental Funds 516,000 - 35,000 551,600

Total 375 $990.020 $1,795,323 $3,540,950

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization fo
the Debt Service Fund as debt service principal and interest payments become due, 2)
move unrestricted General Fund revenues to finance various programs that the
government must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations and 3) move revenues from various funds into the General Fund also in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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The balances of the restricted asset accounts in the enterprise funds are as follows;
Restricted cash — held for closure and postclosure costs $875,440
NOTE 4. SUMMARY DISCLOSURE of SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

The County is a defendant in several miscellaneous litigations. Any losses which may
be incurred and are not fully covered by County insurance are not expected to be
material. Legal fees related to these litigations are also not expected to be material.

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from several Federal and State grants. Periodic
audits of these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being
appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the
refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required
refunds would be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying
financial statements for the refund of grant monies.

NOTE 5. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The County has entered into an operating lease agreement with a fire district whereby
the district will pay the County for renting a portion of the Lower Florence County Public
Service Building. At June 30, 2012, the minimum future rentals under this lease are
$22,483 annually for 7 years or $157,381 in the aggregate. The revenue from these
rentals is recorded by the County in the General Fund.

NOTE 6. NO-COMMITMENT DEBT

At June 30, 2012, approximately $251,240,000 of industrial and hospital revenue bonds
bearing the County's name was outstanding. This debt is repayable only by the entities
for whom the debt is issued and the County assumes no responsibility for repayment.

NOTE 7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing the financial statements, the County evaluated events and transactions for
potential recognition or disclosure through December 21, 2012, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS

Of the total unrestricted General Fund balance of $11,944,072, $9,440,583 is
unassigned. The remaining $2,503,489 is either committed or assigned fo finance
current and future capital improvement needs of the County, or is nonspendable.

The County has two active construction projects as of June 30, 2012. These two
projects are the expansion of a branch library and the construction of a new museum. At
year end the County's commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-Date Commitment
Branch library expansion $ 109,448 $ 394,952
New museum construction 85,568 8,788,422

During fiscal year 1993, County Council approved an ordinance and certain agreements
authorizing the sale of $45,880,000 of refunding series certificates of participation. The
proceeds of this issue were placed in an irrevocable frust to provide for all future debt
service payments of the 1990 certificates of participation. The County's obligation to
repay these certificates is dependent upon annual appropriations being made by the
County for that purpose. Although this obligation of the County does not constitute a
pledge of the full faith, credit, or taxing power of the County within the meaning of any
state constitutional or statutory provision, the County is financially obligated for
repayment and has set up certain special revenue and debt service funds from which it
contemplates making the annual appropriations. The proceeds of these certificates
were used to finance the construction of a Law Enforcement Center, a Civic Center, a
radio transmission tower, and to purchase other County equipment.

On March 3, 2003, the first call date for the 1992 certificates of participation, the County
issued $29,515,000 variable rate refunding certificates of participation to pay the entire
outstanding balance of the 1992 certificates of participation, as well as the issuance
costs of the new 2003 certificates of participation.

Principal and interest payments for the refunding series of certificates of participation
are being funded by annual appropriations made by County Council.

On April 30, 2008, the County issued a $25,000,000 capital lease with a fixed interest
rate of 3.52% to refinance the outstanding certificates of participation in the amount of
$17,628,714, including interest, and to pay a swap termination payment in the amount
of $1,933,400. The remaining proceeds of the lease were deposited into the 2008
County Capital Project Fund to be used for various capital projects.
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NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

On November 23, 2010, the County issued a $21,158,666 capital lease with a fixed interest rate
of 2.49% to refinance the ouistanding certificates of participation in the amount of $21,077,530,
including interest. The remaining proceeds of the iease were used to fund the costs of issuance
of the new lease.

The debt service costs and the operation and maintenance costs for the Civic Center are being
jointly paid by the City of Florence and the County. The two entities have entered into a service
agreement whereby each are making equal annual payments into a Civic Center Debt Service
and Operations and Maintenance Fund from which these costs will be paid. All Civic Center
revenues are to be used to offset operation and maintenance costs, thereby reducing the
amounts needed from the Debt Service and Operations and Maintenance Fund. In fiscal year
2003, the County began using revenues from the Local Accommodations Tax Special Revenue
Fund to meet its obligations under this service agreement. The City-County service agreement
requires that, if the annual payments and balances on hand in the Debt Service and Operations
and Maintenance Fund are not sufficient in any year to pay the debt service and net operations
and maintenance costs, the County and City of Florence must make equal additional payments
to fund the deficiency. The annual payment from both the County and the City of Florence was
approximately $1,300,000 each for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. It is expected that the
City of Florence's and County's annual payments will remain approximately $1,300,000 per year
beginning in fiscal year 2013.

NOTE 9. CONTINGENCIES

Pursuant to the Solid Waste Management Act (the Act) of 1991, the County must operate a
Sub-title D landfill in compliance with the provisions of the Act, to continue to accept solid waste
into its landfill after October 1995. Among the requirements of a Sub-title D operation are
instaliation of synthetic liners in all filled areas, installation of a cap over the filled areas at the
time of closure, and funding of a post-closure account to defray costs of monitoring and
compliance after closure.

On Qctober 5, 1995, the County received a six-month extension on compliance with the Act and
did not have to operate a Sub-titie D landfill until April 9, 1996.

On April 9, 19986, the County closed the vertical expansion portion of the landfill and contracted
with a private company to transport the County's solid waste to another landfill.

Because the County elected to close the vertical expansion portion of the landfill, the County will
now incur costs for closure of this portion of the landfill as well as post-closure care costs such
as the purchase of liability insurance to protect the County in the event of an incident of
contamination and the monitoring of this portion of the landfill for a thirty year period. These
costs are estimated at approximately $875,440 at June 30, 2012, and have been funded by user
fees which were being collected through September 1895. Since the vertical expansion portion
of the landfill was closed on April 8, 1996, the estimated amount for closure and post closure
costs have been fully accrued at June 30, 2012. Costs for closure and post-closure care are
based on engineering estimates and are subject to change based on various factors some of
which include inflation, deflation, changes in technology, and changes in laws or regulations.

-74-



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 9. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

The Act, which was amended on June 23, 1995, requires the County to adopt one, or a
combination of a few, financial assurance mechanisms that would bind and legally enforce the
County to make the payments necessary for closure and post-closure care costs. The County
has restricted the cash necessary for the payment of the closure and post-closure care costs in
the Landfili Fund and has chosen the local government financial test as its financial assurance
mechanism. This test requires that the Finance Director provide certification annually that the
County meets certain financial ratios and certain other criteria in order to comply with financial
assurance under the Act.

NOTE 10. RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
County maintains commercial insurance coverage covering each of those risks of loss. The
County participates in certain state-wide funds for the purchasing of workers compensation
insurance and liability insurance. The County's primary risk with regard to these funds is only
for the annual premiums. However, the County does bear a secondary risk if the funds were to
default due to either a wide-spread increase in claim experience or mismanagement of the
funds' assets. If this event were to occur, the County, along with all other participants in the
funds, would be charged additional assessments. Management believes such coverage is
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the County. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 11. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The County found that its prior year government-wide statements’ liabilities were understated,
and correspondingly its net assets were overstated by $2,524,305, as a result of understating
the County’s OPEB liability payable as of June 30, 2011.

NOTE 12. NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCES

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. The restricted net asset
amounts were as foliows:

Governmental Business-type
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt;
Net capital assets $77.091,098 $2,381,786
Less: Related bonds payable, net { 21,360,413) -
Related capital lease payable { 8,333,512) -
Add:  Unspent bond proceeds 7,213,553 -
54,610,726 2,381,786
Restricted for capital projects and other purposes 23,871,320 -
Deductions ~ Unspent bond proceeds (_7.213.853) -
16,657,767 -
Unrestricted {deficit) (..1.897,586) 4.983 509
Total net assets $68,370.907 $7.365,295
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS -

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
712010
7712010
71172008

7172008

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Value of Liability {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered
Assets (a) (AAL) (b) {bh-a) (afb) {c) Payroll {(b-a)/c)
$ - $ 16,301,502 $ 16,301,502 0% $ 27,967,129 58.29%
3 - $ 16,301,502 $ 18,301,502 0% $ 27,744,669 58.76%
3 - $ 18,033,142 $ 18,033,142 0% $ 27520475 65.53%
$ - $ 18,033,142 $ 18,033,142 0% $ 26,471,722 68.12%
SCHEDULE OF ENMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Annual Employer
Year Required Amount Percentage Net CPEB
Ended Contribution Contributed Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2012 $ 1,610,714 $ 426,999 26.5% $ 5,285,344
June 30, 2011 $ 1.563,800 $ 354775 22.7% $ 4,088,105
June 30, 2010 $ 1,765,453 $ 318,011 18.0% $ 2,869,588
June 30, 2009 5 1,714,032 $ 206,575 17.3% $ 1,417,457
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for revenues from earmarked revenue sources
which by law are designated to finance particular functions or activities of the government and
which, therefore, cannot be diverted to other uses.

Florence Dartington TEC Fund - To account for the receipt of tax revenues and the disbursement
of these revenues fo Florence Darlington TEC.

S.C. Accommodations Tax Fund - To account for the receipt of accommodations faxes and the
disbursement of these taxes to various cultural and tourism related organizations.

Law Library Fund - To account for the receipt of fee revenue and the expenditures of the law li-
brary.

Victim/Witness Assistance Fund - To account for the receipt of fines and fees charges in magis-
trate court and general sessions court and the expenditures {0 assist victims and witnesses of
various crimes,

Treasurer Delinguent Tax Fund - To account for the collection of delingquent tax costs and fees
and the expenditures of the delinquent tax office.

Jail Debt Service G&M Fund - To account for the remaining balances in this fund after the opera-
tion of the sheriff's office was transferred to the General Fund.

Howe Springs Fire District Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax revenue and the dis-
bursement of this revenue to the fire district.

Sardis ~ Timmonsville Fire District Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax revenue and
the disbursement of this revenue to the fire district.

Johnsanville Fire District Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax revenue and the dis-
hursement of this revenue to the fire district.

Economic Development Partnership Fund - To account for the receipt of both private revenue
sources as well as a matching transfer from the General Fund and the disbursement of these
revenues for economic development purposes.

Emergency Management Fund — To account for the receipt of property tax revenue and other rev.
enues and the expenditures of the radio system, central dispatch, and the emergency man-
agement department.

County Library Fund — To account for the operation of the County library system.

Senior Citizens Center Fund - To account for the operation of the senior citizens center.

Local Hospitality Tax Fund —~ To account for the receipt of local hospitality taxes and the expendi-
tures for tourist-related activities.

Local Accommodations Fee Fund — To account for the receipt of local accommaodations fees and
the expenditures for tourist-related activities.

Sheriff's Camps Fund — To account for the operation of the Sheriff's camps.




NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The capital projects funds are used to account for the receipt and disbursement of
resources for the purpose of building or buying major capital assets.

The following funds are reported in this section:

County General Capital Project Fund - To account for various projects funded by
the 2000 Florence County General Obligation Bond.

Windy Hill/Olanta Fire District Capital Project Fund - To account for the various
capital projects of the fire district.

2008 County General Capital Project Fund - To account for the expenditures of
the proceeds of a capital lease for various capital projects.

Radio System Upgrade Capital Project Fund - To account for the installation of an
additional radio tower and various other radio and dispatch equipment in order
to upgrade the County radio system.

Hannah/Salem/Friendfield Fire District Capital Project Fund - To account for the
various capital projects of the fire district.

Johnsonville Fire District Capital Project Fund - To account for the various capital
projects of the fire district.

Howe Springs Fire District Capital Project Fund — To account for the various capi-
tal projects of the fire district.

Capital Improvements Fund - To account for specific capital projects of the Coun-
ty.

2006 County General Capital Project Fund - To account for the expenditures of
the proceeds of a general obligation bond for vartious capital projects.

2011 County General Capital Project Fund - To account for the expenditures of
the proceeds of a general obligation bond for various capital projects.




NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Sheriff Sex Offender Fund — To account for the operation of the sex offender registry.

Seized Auction Fund — To account for the receipt and disbursement of proceeds of the auction of
seized vehicles and equipment.

Road System Maintenance Fee Fund - To account for the receipt of road system maintenance
fees and the operation of the public works department.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The debt service funds are used to accounffor the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, general long-term debt and long-term obligation principal, in-
terest, and related costs.

The 'foliowing funds are reported in this section:

Hannah/Salem/Friendfield Fire District Debt Service Fund - To account for the receipt of
property tax revenue and the payment of debt service for the fire district.

Johnsonville Fire District Debt Service Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax
revenue and the payment of debt service for the fire district.

Howe - Springs Fire District Debt Service Fund - To account for the receipt of property
tax revenue and the payment of debt service for the fire district.

Windy Hill/Olanta Fire District Debt Service Fund - To account for the receipt of property
tax revenue and the payment of debt service for the fire district.

South Lynches Fire District Debt Service Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax
revenue and the payment of debt service for the fire district.

Civic Center Debt Service Fund - To account for the receipt of the annual appropriation
from the County and the City of Florence and the payment of the annual debt service
for the Civic Center.,

Special Source Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund — To account for the receipt of a por-
tion of the fee in lieu of taxes from two industries and the payment of debt service on
the bond which was issued to fund incentives for these two industries.

Energy Management Debt Service Fund — To account for the annual appropriation from
the General Fund and the payment of debt service on the lease which was entered in-
to for energy management purposes.




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Florence S.C. Law
Darlington Accommedations Library
TEC Fund Tax Fund Fund

ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 359,979 $ - $ 78,024
Receivables:
Property taxes (net) - -
Cther governmental units and agencies - 116,645 -
Others (net) - - -
Inventory

Total assets $ 359,979 % 116,645 $ 78,024

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
{ fabilities:
Accounts payable $ - & 86,749 3 1,820
Payroll withholdings and accruals -
Due to other funds

- 43,758 -
Deferred revenues 126,758

Total liabilities 125,758 130,507 1,820

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
inventory and prepaids - - -
Restricted:
Education purposes 234,221 - -
Tourism related purposes - - -
Library purposes - - 76,204
Victim witness purposes - - -
Public safety purposes - - -
Senior citizen purposes - - -
Delinguent tax collection purposes - - -
Economic development purposes - - -
Road maintenance purposes - - -
Debt service - - -
Capital project - - -
Commitied:
Capital project - - -
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds {deficit) - {13,862} -

Total fund balances 234,221 {13,862) 76,204

Total liabilities and fund balances % 359,979 $ 116,645 $ 78,024

(Continued)
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2042

{Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Victim/
Witness
Assistance
Fund

Treasurer
Delinguent
Tax
Fund

Jail
Debt Service
O&M
Fund

ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Property taxes (net)
Other governmental units and agencies
Others (nef)
Inventory
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payrolt withholdings and accruals
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory and prepaids
Restricted:
Education purposes
Tourism related purposes
Library purposes
Victim witness purposes
Public safety purposes
Senior citizen purposes
Delinquent tax collection purposes
Economic development purposes
Road maintenance purposes
Debt service
~Capitad project
Committed:
Capital project
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds (deficit)
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

$ 66,518

11,888

$

178,432

$

760,873

79,135

$ 78,403

$

178,432

$

840,008

$ 189
2,834

$

(67)

7,983

$

677,690

3,033

7,916

677,690

170,516

75,370

170,516

162,318

$ 78,403

$

178,432

$

840,008

{Continued)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

(Continued)
Special Revenue Funds
Howe Sardis-
Springs Timmonsville Johnsonville
Fire Fire Fire
District District District
Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments 3 16,461 $ 33878 $ 5,567
Receivables:
Property taxes {net} - - -
Other governmental units and agencies - - -
Others (net) - - -
Inventory - - -
Total assets $ 16,461 $ 33,878 $ 5,567
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ -
Payroll withholdings and accruals - - -
Due o other funds - - -
Deferred revenues - 18,869 20,317
Total liabilities - 18,869 20,317

Fund balances:
Nonspendable;
Inventory and prepaids - - -
Restricted:
Education purposes - - -
Tourism related purposes - - -
Library purposes - - -
Victim witness purposes - -
Public safety purposes 16,461 15,009 -
Senior citizen purposes - - -
Delinquent tax collection purposes - - -
Econemic development purposes - - -
Road maintenance purposes - - -
Debt service - - -
Capital project - - -

Committed:
Capital project - - -
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds {deficit) - - {14,750)
Total fund balances 16,461 15,009 {14,750)
Total liahilities and fund balances $ 16,461 $ 33,878 % 5,567

{Continued)
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{Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Economic
Development Emergency County
Partnership Management Library
Fund Fund Fund

Senior
Citizens
Center
Fund

ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 403,327 3 95,564 $ 8323
Receivables:
Property taxes (net) - 15,326 25,092
Other governmental units and agencies {657) - -
Others (net) - - -
Inventory

$

10,567

544

Total assets $ 402,670 $ 110,890 $ 33415

$

11,111

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liahilities:
Accounts payable $ 411 $ 103,793 $ 15864
Payroll withholdings and accruals 5,904 - -
Due to other funds - - -
Deferred revenues

3

10,304

Total liabilities 6,315 103,793 15,864

10,304

Fund batances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory and prepaids - - -
Restricted:
Education purposes - - -
Tourism related purposes - - -
Library purposes - - 17,651
Victim witness purposes - -
Public safety purposes - 7,067 -
Senior ¢itizen purposes - - -
Delinguent tax collection purposes -
Economic development purposes 396,355 - -
Road maintenance purposes - - -
Debt service - - -
Capital project - - -
Committed:
Capital project - - -
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds (deficit) -

Total fund balances 396,355 7,097 17,551

807

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 402,670 $ 110,880 $ 33415

$

11,111

(Continued)
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{Continued)
Special Revenue Funds
Local Local
Hospitality Accommadations Sheriff's
Tax Fee Camps
Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 1,413,888 $ 61,677 $ 10,215
Receivables:
Property taxes (net) - - -
Other governmental units and agencies 141,756 491,659 695
Others (net) - 141,027 -
Inventory - - -
Total agsets $ 1,555,644 $ 694,363 $ 10,910
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liahilities:
Accounts payable $ 290,735 $ 4,966 3 501
Payroll withholdings and accruals 3,228 - 167
Due fo other funds - - -
Deferred revenues - ~ -
Total liabilities 293,963 4,966 658
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory and prepaids - - -
Restricted:
Education purposes - - -
Tourism related purposes 1,261,681 689,357 -
Library purposes - - -
Victim witness purposes - - -
Public safety purposes - - 10,252
Senior ¢itizen purposes - - -
Delinquent tax collection purposes - - -
Economic development purposes - - -
Road maintenance purposes - - -
Debt service - - -
Capital project - - -
Committed:
Capital project - - -
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds (deficit) - - -
Total fund balances 1,261,681 689,397 10,252
Total liabilities and fund batances $ 1,555,644 $ 694,363 % 10,910
{Continued)
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(Continued})
Special Revenue Funds
Sheriff's Road System
Sex Seized Maintenance
Offender Auction Fee
Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Assets;
Cash and investments 3 52,764 $ 313 $ 1,967,428
Receivables:
Property taxes {net) - - -
Other governmental units and agencies - - -
Others (net) - - -
inventory - - 142,602
Total assets $ 52,764 $ 313 $ 2,110,030
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 1,765 $ - $ 40,142
PayroH withholdings and accruals - - 23,627
Due fo other funds - - -
Deferred revenues - - -
Total liabilities 1,765 - 63,769
Fund balances:
MNonspendable:
Inventory and prepaids - - 142,602
Restricted:

Education purposes - - -
Tourism related purposes - - -
Library purposes - - -
Victim withess purposes -
Public safety purposes 50,999 313 -
Senior citizen purposes - - -
Pelinquent tax collection purposes - - -
Economic development purposes - - -
Road maintenance purposes - - 1,903,659
Debt service - - -
Capitat project - - -
Committed:
Capital project - - -
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds (deficit)

Total fund balances 50,999 313 2,046,261

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 52764 $ 313 $ 2,110,030

(Continued)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

{Continued)

Debt Service Funds

Hannah/
Salem/

Friendfield
Fire District
Fund

Johnsonville
Fire District
Fund

Howe Springs
Fire District
Fund

ASSETS
Agsets:
Cash and investments % 80,086 $ 22410 $ 83,451
Receivables:
Property taxes (net) - - -
Other governmental units and agencies - - -
Others {net) - - -
inventory

Total assets $ 80,086 $ 22,410 $ 83,451

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ -
Payrotll withholdings and accruals - - -
Due to other funds - -
Deferred revenues - 5,079 -

Totai liabilities - 5,079 -

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory and prepaids - - -
Restricted:
Education purposes - - -
Tourism related purposes - - -
Library purposes - - -
Victim witness purposes - - -
Public safety purposes - - -
Senior citizen purposes
Delinguent tax collection purposes - - -
Economic development purposes - - -
Road maintenance purposes - - -
Debt service 80,086 17,331 83,451
Capital project - - -
Committed:
Capital project - - -
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds (deficit) - - -
Total fund balances : 80,086 17,331 83,451
Totai liabilities and fund balances $ 80,086 $ 22,410 $ 83,451

(Continued)
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{Continued)

Debt Service Funds

Windy Hill/ South Lynches
Olanta Fire District

Fire District Debt Service
Fund Fund

Civic Center
Fund

ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Property taxes {net)

Other governmental units and agencies

Others (net)
Inventory
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable

Payroll withholdings and accruals

Due to other funds
Deferred revenues
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

$ 149,830 $ 199,022

$ 625,586

$ 149,830 $ 199,922

$ 625,586

Inventory and prepaids

Restricted:

Education purposes

Tourism related purposes

Library purposes

Victim withess purposes

Public safety purposes

Senior citizen purposes
Delinquent tax collection purposes
Economic development purposes
Road maintenance purposes
Debt service

Capital project

Committed:

Capital project

Unassigned:

Special revenue funds (deficit)
Total fund balances

Total lizabilities and fund balances

148,830

199,922

625,686

149,830

199,922

625,586

§_ 148,830

$ 199,822

$ 625586

(Continued}
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

(Continued)
Capital Project
Debt Service Funds Funds

County

Special Source Energy General

Revenue Bond Management Capital

Debt Service Debt Service Project
Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments % 3,332 $ 72,837 $ 160,565
Receivables:
Property taxes (net) - - -
Other governmental units and agencies - - -
Others (net) - - -
Inventory

Total assets $ 3,332 $ 72837 $ 160,565

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ 220
Payroll withholdings and accruals - - -
Due to other funds - - -
Deferred revenues - - -
Total liabilities - - 220

Fund halances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory and prepaids - - -
Restricted:
Education purposes - - -
Tourism related purposes - - -
Library purposes - - -
Victim witness purposes - - -
Public safety purposes - - -
Senior citizen purposes - - -
Delinquent tax collection purposes - - -
Economic development purposes - - -
Road maintenance purposes - -
Debt service 3,332 72,837 -
Capital project - - -
Committed:
Capital project - - 160,345
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds (deficit) - -
Total fund balances 3,332 72,837 160,345
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,332 $ 72,837 $ 160,565

(Continued)
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FLORENCE GOUNTY, SOUTH CARQOLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2012

{Continued)

Capital Project Funds

Windy Hill!
Olanta
Fire District
Fund

2008 County
General Capital
Project
Fund

Radio System
Upgrade
Fund

ASSETS
Assets:

Cash and investments
Receivables:;

Property taxes (net)
Gther governmental units and agencies
Others (net)

Inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Payroll withholdings and accruals

Due

to other funds

Deferred revenues

Totat liabilities

Fund halances:
Nonspendable:

Rest

Inventory and prepaids

ricted:

Education purposes

Tourism related purposes

Library purposes

Victim witness purposes

Public safety purposes

Senior citizen purposes
Delinquent tax collection purposes
Economic development purposes
Road maintenance purposes
Debt service

Capital project

Committed:

Capital project

Unassigned:

Special revenue funds (deficit)
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund bafances

$ 15754

$ 15,754

15,754

15,754
5 15754

{Continued)
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$ 1,180,134

$ 209,011

$ 1,180,134

$ 209,011

1,180,134

209,011

1,180,134

209,011

$ 1,180,134

$ 209,011




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

{Continued)

Capital Project Funds

Hannah/
Salem/
Friendfield
Fire District
Fund

Johnsonville

Fire District

Fund

Howe Springs

Fire District

Fund

Capital
Improvements
Fund

ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Property taxes (net)
Other governmental units and agencies
Others (net)
inventory
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues
Total liabilities

Fund batances:
Nonspendable:
inventory and prepaids
Restricted:
Education purposes
Tourism related purposes
Library purposes
Victim witness purposes
Public safety purposes
Senior citizen purposes
Delinguent tax collection purposes
Economic development purposes
Road maintenance purposes
Debt service
Capital project
Committed:;
Capital project
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds (deficit)
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

$ 240

$

7,949

B

11,009

$ 1,035,081

$ 1,035,081

$ 39,350

39,350

240

7,949

11,009

985,731

240

7,949

11,009

995,731

$ 240

$

7,949

$

11,009

$ 1,035,081

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNNIENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2012

{Continued)

Capital Project Funds

2006 County 2011 County
General Capital  General Capital

Project . Project
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Assets: :
Cash and investments $ 1,650,549 $ 436,305 $ 11,467,846
Receivables:
Property taxes (net) - - 120,097
Other governmental units and agencies - - 761,986
Others (net) - - 141,027
Inventory - - 142 602
Total assets $ 1,650,549 $ 436,305 $ 12,633,558
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 20404 $ 374,551 $ 1,669,397
Payroit withhofdings and accruals - - 35,750
Due to other funds - - 43,758
Deferred revenues - - 178,006
Total liabilities 20,404 374,551 1,826,911
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory and prepaids - - 142 602
Restricted:
Education purposes . - 234,221
Tourism related purposes - - 1,951,078
Library purposes - - 93,755
Victim witness purposes - - 75,370
Public safety purposes - - 262,449
Senior citizen purposes - - 807
Delinquent tax collection purposes - - 170,516
Economic development purposes - - 396,355
Road maintenance purposes - - 1,903,659
Debt service - - 1,232,375
Capital project 1,630,145 61,754 3,867,764
Committed:
Capital project - - 404,308
Unassigned:
Special revenue funds (deficit) - - {28,612)
Total fund balances 1,630,145 61,754 10,706,647
Total jiabilities and fund balances $ 1,650,549 $ 436,305 $ 12,633,558
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUNID BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Flerence S.C. Law
Darlington Accommodations Library
TEC Fund Tax Fund Fund

Victim/
Witness
Assistance
Fund

Revenues:
Taxes $ 2,353,686 $ - 3 -
Fines and fees - - 54,236
Intergovernmental - 334,566 -
Miscellaneous 2,704 61

261,522

74

261,506

Total revenues 2,356,390 334,627 54,236

Expenditures:

Current:
General government - - 41,828
Public safely - - -
Economic and physical

development - 126,492 -

Public works - -
Cuiture and recreation - 250,000 -
Education 2,055,000 - -

Capital outlay - - -

Debt service:
Principal retirements - - -
Interest - - -
Bond issuance costs

70,9562
117,205

Total expenditures 2,055,000 376,492 41,828

188,247

Revenues over (under)
expenditures 301,380 (41,865) 12,408

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of refunding debt - - -
Premium on refunding bonds - - -

Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - - -
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out - - -

73,349

Net change in fund balances 301,390 (41,865) 12,408

Fund balance (deficit) - beginning
of year (67,169} 28,003 63,796

73,349

2,021

Fund balance {deficit) -
end of year $ 234,221 $ {13,862) $ 76,204

$

75,370

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CARCLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Continued)
Special Revenue Funds
Howe Sardis-
Treasurer Jail Springs Timmonsville
Delinquent Debt Service Fire Fire
Tax Q&M District District
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
Taxes 3 - $ (8,330) $ 920227 $ 259611
Fines and fees - - - -
intergovernmentat - - 28,797 -
Miscellaneous ~ - 538 476
Total revenues - {8,330) 958,562 260,087
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - -
Public safety - - 957,501 298,178
Economic and physical
development - - - -
Public waorks - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -
Education - - - -
Capital outlay - - - -
Debt service;
Principal retirements - - - -
interest - - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - -
Total expenditures - - 957,501 298,178
Revenues over (under)
expenditures - (8,330) 1,061 (38,091)
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of refunding debt - - - -
Premium on refunding bonds - - - -
Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - - - -
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Net change in fund batances - (8,330) 1,061 (38,091)
Fund balance (deficif} - beginning
of year 170,516 170,648 15,400 53,100
Fund balance (deficit) -
end of year $ 170,516 $ 162,318 $ 16,461 $ 15,009
{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Johnsonville Economic Senior
Fire Development Emergency County Citizens
District Partnership Management Library Center
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
Taxes $ 227797 3 - $ (1,539 § - $ -
Fines and fees - 50,827 - - -
Intergovernmental 4,097 - - - -
Miscellaneous 39,751 1,714 - - -
Total revenues 271,645 52,541 (1,539) - -
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - - -
Public safety 267,639 - - - -
Economic and physical ‘
development - 387,927 - - -
Public works - - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - - -
Education - - - ~ -
Capital outlay - - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - - -
Interest - - - - -
Bond issuance costs ~ - - - -
Total expenditures 267,639 387,927 - ~ -
Revenues over {under)
expenditures 4,006 (335,386) (1,539) - -

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of refunding debt - - - - -
Premium on refunding bonds - - - - -
Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - -
Transfers in - 389,253 - - -
Transfers out - - - - -

Net change in fund batances 4,006 53,867 (1,539) - -
fund balance (deficit) - beginning
of year (18,758) 342,488 8,636 17,551 807
Fund halance {deficit) -
end of year $ (14,750) $ 396,355 $ 7,097 $ 17,551 $ 807
{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Continued)

Special Revenue Funds

Local Sheriff
Hospitality Sheriff's Sex Seized
Tax Camps Offender Auction
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenuss:
Taxes 3 - $ - % - -
Fines and fees 1,363,730 33,859 17,235 -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Miscellaneous 5,862 146 - -
Total revenues 1,369,592 34,005 17,235 -
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 649,158 - - -
Public safety - 37.857 9,472 -
Economic and physical - ~ -
development - - - -
Public works - - - -
Cuiture and recreation - “ - -
Education - - . -
Capital outlay - - - -
Debt service;
Principal retirements 152,000 - “ -
Interest 27,300 - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - -
Total expenditures 828,458 37,857 9,472 -
Revenues over (under)
expenditures 541,134 {3,852) 7,763 -
Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of refunding debt - - - -
Premium on refunding bonds - - - -
Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - - - -
Transfers in 750,600 - - -
Transfers out {250,000} - - -
MNet change in fund balances 1,041,134 {3,852} 7,763 -
Fund balance (deficit) - beginning
of year 220,547 14,104 43,236 313
Fund balance (deficit) -
end of year $1,261,681 $ 10,252 $ 50,999 313

(Continued)
Q2.



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Continued)
Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds
Hannah/
Locat Road System Salem/
Accommodations Maintenance Friendfield Johnsonville
Fee Fee Fire District Fire District
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
Taxes - $ - $ 62432 $ 61,810
Fines and fees 1,541,820 2,833,100 - -
Intergovernmental 1,209,659 - - -
Miscellaneous 8,749 15,580 819 203
Total revenues 2,760,228 2,848,680 63,051 62,013
Expenditures;
Current:
General government 89,491 - - -
Public safety - - - -
Economic and physical
development - - - -
Public works - 2,846,509 - -
Culture and recreation 1,598,582 - - -
Education - - - -
Capital outlay - - - -
Debt service:
Principat retirements 655,776 - 78,000 45,000
Interest 123,225 - 8,706 10,559
Bond issuance costs - - - -
Total expenditures 2,467,074 2,846,509 86,706 55,559
Revenues over (under)
expenditures 293,154 2,181 {23,655) 6,454
Other financing sources (Uses):
Issuance of refunding debt - - - -
Premium on refunding bonds - - - -
Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - - - -
Transfers in - 306,070 - -
Transfers out (266,000) - - -
Net change in fund balances 27,154 308,251 {23,655) 6,454
Fund balance (deficit) - beginning
of year 662,243 1,738,010 103,741 10,877
Fund balance {deficit) - '
end of year 689,397 $ 2,046,261 $ 80,086 $ 17,33
{Continued)
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FLORENCE COQUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Continued)

Debt Service Funds

Windy Hillf South Lynches
Howe Springs Otanta Fire District
Fire District Fire District Debt Service Civic Center
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
Taxes $ 306,116 % 189,788 $ 199,192 $ -
Fines and fees - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Miscellaneous 1,083 994 730 -
Total revenues 307,199 190,782 199,622 -
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - - -
Public safety - - - -
Economic and physical
development - - - -
Public works - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -
Education - - - -
Capital outlay - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirements 242,506 111,864 - -
Interest 53,751 47,236 - -
Bond issuance costs - - - -
Total expenditures 296,257 169,100 - -
Revenues over {under)
expenditures 10,942 31,682 199,922 -
Other financing sources (uses).
Issuance of refunding debt - - - -
Premium on refunding bonds - - - -
Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - - - -
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Net change in fund balances 10,942 31,682 199,922 -
Fund batance (deficif) - beginning
of year 72,509 118,148 - 625,586
Fund halance {deficit} -
end of year $ 83,451 $ 149,830 $ 199,922 $ 625586
{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

(Continued)
Debt Service Funds Capital Project Funds
County
Special Source General Windy Hill/
Revenue Bond Energy Capital Olanta
Debt Service Management Projects Fire District
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
Taxes $ 1,195,813 $ - $ - $ -
Fines and fees - - - -
intergovernmental - - - -
Miscellaneous - - 3,627 137
Total revenues 1,195,813 - 3,827 137
Expenditures;
Curreni:
General government - - - -
Public safety - - . -
Economic and physical
development - - - -
Public works - - ~ -
Cuiture and recreation - - - -
Education - - - -
Capital outlay - - 497 941 -
Debt service:
Principal retirements 076,104 - - -
Interest 219,709 - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - -
Totat expenditures 1,195,813 - 497 941 -
Revenues over {under)
expenditures - - (494,314) 137
Cther financing sources (uses):
Issuance of refunding debt - - - -
Premium on refunding bonds - - - -
Payment to refunded bond
escrow agent - - - -
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - (35,000) -
Net change in fund balances - - (529,314) 137
Fund balance {deficit) - beginning
of year 3,332 72,839 689,659 15,617
Fund balance {deficit) -
end of year % 3,332 $ 72,839 % 160,345 $ 15,754
(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CARCGLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES [N

FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

{Continued)

Capitatl Project Funds

2008
County
General
Capital Upgrade

Project Fund Fund

Radio System

Harnnah/
Salem/
Friendfield
Fire District

Fund Fund

Johnsonville
Fire District

Revenues:
Taxes
Fines and fees
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Currert:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical
development
Public works
Culture and recreation
Education
Capital cutiay
Debt service:
Principal retirements
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of refunding debt
Premium on refunding bonds
Payment to refunded bond

escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance {deficit} - beginning
of year

Fund halance {deficif) -
end of year

$ - $ -

1,628 1,819

1,628 1,819

250,224 -

(248,596) 1,819

(248,596) 1,819

1,428,730 207,192

238 7,880

$ 1,180,134 $ 209,011

$

240 $ 7,949

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Continued)

Capital Project Funds

2008 2011
Howe Springs Capital County General County General
Fire District Improvements Capital Capital
Fund Fund Project Fund Project Fund Total
Revenues:
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 5,775,603
Fines and fees - - - - 6,156,329
Intergovernmental - - - - 1,577,119
Miscellaneous 96 - 16,410 2,897 105,979
Total revenues 96 - 16,410 2,897 13,615,030
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - 437,208 - - 1,288,638
Public safety - - - - 1,687,942
Economic and physical
development - - - - 514,419
Public works - - - - 2,846,509
Culture and recreation - - - - 1,848,582
Education . - - - 2,055,000
Capital outlay - - 367,020 1,066,887 2182072
Debt service:
Principal retirements - - - - 2,261,250
interest - - - - 490,486
Bond issuance costs - - - 132,283 132,283
Total expenditures - 437,209 367,020 1,199,170 16,307,181
Revenues over {under)
expenditures 96 (437,209) {350,610} (1,196,273) {1,692,151)
Other financing sources {uses):
Issuance of refunding debt - - - - 5,000,000 5,000,000
Premium on refunding bonds - - - 40,836 40,836
Payment {o refunded hond
escrow agent - - - (3,817,811) (3,817,811)
Transfers in - 315,000 - 35,000 1,795,323
Transfers out - - - - (551,000)
Net changse in fund balances 95 (122,209} (350,610) 61,752 775,197
Fund balance (deficit) - beginning
of year 10,913 1,117,940 1,980,755 - 9,931,450
Fund balance (deficit) -
end of year $ 11,009 $ 995731 $ 1,630,145 $ 61,752 $ 10,706,647
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The County maintains twelve agency funds. They are used to account for the collection and
payment to the County school district funds, municipalities, and special assessment districts
of property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and interest on investments of amounts col-
lected by the County for their behalf.

The foliowing activities of the County are reported in this section;
School General Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax and federal and state

aid revenue and other revenuas and the dishursement of these revenues to the schoo!
districts.

School Debt Service Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax and other revenues
and the payment of debt service for the school districts.

School Capital Project Fund - To account for the receipt of the proceeds from various
bond issues and the disbursement of these receipts to the school districts.

Municipalities Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax and other revenues and
the disbursement of these revenues to the municipalities.

Lynches Lake Camp Branch Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax revenue
and the disbursement of this revenue to Lynches Lake Camp Branch.

Fire Board Fund - To account for the receipt of properiy tax and other revenue and the
disbursement of this revenue to the fire districts.

Salem Watershed Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax and other revenue
and the disbursement of this revenue to the watershed.

Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Fund - To account for the receipt of state reve-
nue and the dishursement of this revenue to the Commission on Alcohol and Drug
Abuse.

Williamsburg County Fund - To account for the receipt of property tax revenue and the
dishursement of this revenue to Williamsburg County.

Magistrate Fund - To account for fines and fees collected but not yet remitted to the
County or to the State of South Carolina.

Clerk of Court Fund - To account for fines and fees collected but not yet remitted to the
County or to the State of South Carolina.

Sheriff Fund - To account for money received but not yet disposed of by the court sys-
tem.




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
June 30, 2012

Agency Funds
School School Lynches
Schoot Debt Capital Fire LakefCamp
General Service Project Municipalities Board Branch
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments kS 958,166 $ 3,081,914 $19.215,641 $ 74,852 $ 36,899 % 802
Property taxes receivable 2,924 077 610,663 - - 180,650 256
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,882,243 $ 4,592 577 $19,215,641 $ 74,852 $ 217,549 $ 1,058
LIABILITIES
Bue to
Others 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Other faxing units:
School District One 2,925,275 3,410,431 18,961,693 - - -
School District Two 108,670 270,349 198,992 - - -
School District Three 513,091 277,236 53,734 - - -
School District Four 164,418 371,243 195 - - -
School District Five 170,789 263,318 27 - - -
Municipalities - - ~ 74,852 - -
Fire Boards - - - - 217,549 -
Lynches Lake/Camp Branch - - - - - 1,058
Salem Watershed - - - - - -
Commission on Alcohol
and Drug Abuse - - - - . -
Williamsburg County - - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 3,882,243 $ 4,592,577 $49,215,641 $ 74,852 $ 217,549 $ 1,058
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Commission Williams-

Salem on Alcohol burg
Watershed and Drug County Magistrate Clerk of Court Sheriff
Fund Abuse Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ 8,084 5 - % 329 $ 354,890 $ 684,033 $ 1,029,336 $726,344,946
2,279 - - - - - 3,717,925
$ 10,363 $ - $ 329 $ 354,890 $ 684,033 $ 1,029,336 $30,062,871
$ - £ - ¥ - $ 354,890 $ 684033 $ 1,029,336 $ 2,068,259
- - - - - - 25,297,399
- - - - - - 579,011
- - - - - - 844,081
. - . - . - 535,856
- - - - - - 434,134
- - - - - - 74,852
- - - - - - 217,549
- - - - - - 1,068
10,363 - - - - - 10,363
- - 329 - - - 329
$ 10,363 $ - $ 329 $ 354,890 $ 684,033 $ 1,029,336 $30,062,871
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SQUTH CAROLINA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Agency Funds
School School Lynches
School Debt Capital Fire Lake/Camp
General Service Project Municipalities Board Branch
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Beginning balances of assets
and liabilities 3 094 222 § 3,555,814 $20 537,602 $ 102401 § 35918 $ 1,321
Additions of assets and liabilities:
Current properly taxes 40,585,518 11,481,370 - 9,921,223 2,379,172 6,685
Inventory exemption 570,369 204,268 - - 27 197 -
Vehicle taxes 8,970,646 1,623,318 - 1,127,337 324,316 23
Delinguent property taxes 2,486,075 699,635 - 597 482 143,108 624
Penalties 96,106 40,231 - 14,818 9,247 638
Fee transfer (19,149) {1,249) - ~ - -
State and federal aid 118,496,178 - - - 256,880 -
Interest on investments 28,225 99,731 281,273 - 1,750 44
Proceeds from bond issue - - 20,228,950 - - -
Sfate homestead exemption 24,258 832 545,890 - - 115,618 793
Fees in lieu of taxes 3,536,365 404,077 - 50,957 191,027 -
Increase in due to other funds - 43,600 - - - -
Cash received from others - 761,305 - - - -
Less local aption sales tax credits - - - (6,509,948) - -
Total additions 199,020,165 15,922,196 20,510,223 5,201,869 3,449,215 8,237
Reductions of assets and liabilities:
Claims paid 195,975,584 - 21,050,779 5,210,300 3,263,273 8,500
Cash paid to others - - - - - -
Refunds 156,560 27,764 - 19,118 4,311 -
Bond principal paid - 13,956,892 - - - -
Interest payments - 897,952 - - - -
Paying agent fee - 3,025 - ~ - -
Transfers out ' - 781,305 - - -
Total reductions 196,132,144 14,885,433 21,832,084 5,229 418 3,267 584 8,500
Ending balances of assets
and labilities $ 3,882,243 $ 4,592,577 $19,215,641 % 74,852 $ 217,549 $ 1,058
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Commission Williams-

Salem on Alcahol burg
Watershed and Drug Counly Magistrate Clerk of Court Sheriff
Fund Abuse Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ 9712 3 - $ 14 $ 361,143 $ 1,089,768 $ 993,846 $27.681,661
66,006 - 3,373,220 - - - 67,823,194
- - - - - - 801,854
233 - - - - - 12,045,873
5,683 - - - - - 3,932,607
475 - - - - - 160,945
- - - - - - (20,398)
- 207,958 - - - - 118,961,016
415 - - - - - 412 437
- - - - - - 20,228,950
9,339 - - - - - 24,930,472
- - - - - - 4,183,326
- - 25,090 . - - - 68,690
- - - 3,302,795 471,425 1,499,344 6,054,869
- - - - - - (6,509,948}
82,151 207,958 3,398,310 3,302,795 471,425 1,499,344 253,073,888
81,500 207,958 3,397,995 - - - 229,195,889
- - - 3,309,048 877,160 1,463,854 5,850,062
- - - - - - 207,753
- - - - - - 13,956,692
- - - - - - 897,952
- - - - - - 3,025
- - - - - - 781,305
81,500 207,958 3,397,995 3,309,048 877,160 1,463,854 250,692 678
$ 10,363 $ - $ 329 $ 354,890 $ 684,033 % 1,029,336 $30,062,871
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COMPONENT UNITS

Component units are entities which are legally separate from the County but are includ-
ed in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or fi-
nancial relationships with the County.




FL.ORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPONENT UNIT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2012
Florence
City-County
Building
Commission
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 3,631,207
Intergovernmental receivable 119,559
Prepaid items 14,095
Total current assets 3,764,861
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 1,222,325
Total noncurrent assets 1,222,325
Total assets 4,987,186
LIABILITIES
Current {iabilities:
Accounts payable 36,287
Accrued payroll taxes and employee withholdings 5,500
Accrued salaries 6,700
Accumulated unpaid vacation pay 21,120
Current maturities of long-term debt 40,900
Total current liabilities 110,507
lL.ong-term debt, fess current maturities 44,596
Total liabitities 155,503
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,136,429
Unrestricted 3,695,254
Total net assets $ 4,831683
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPONENT UNIT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Florence
City-County
Building
Commission
Operating revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 1,362,189
Other revenues 115,837
Total operating revenues 1,478,026
Operating expenses:
Building operation and maintenance 1,460,159
Depreciation 209,398
Total operating expenses 1,659,557
Operating loss (181,531)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
interest income 5,157
Interest expense (12,308)
Litigation settlement 3,462,149
Total nonoperating revenue {expenses) 3,454,998
Changes in net assets 3,273,467
Total net assets - beginning 1,558,216
Total net assets - ending $ 4,831,683

-103 -



FI.LORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

COMPONENT UNIT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Florence
City-County
Building
Commission
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from operations $ 1,430,499
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (1,439,274)
Net cash used in operating activities {8,775)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (9,948)
Proceeds from asbestos lawsuit 3,462,149
Interest paid on long-term debt (12,308)
Principal paid on capital debt (37,181)
Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities 3,402,712
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest received 5,157
Net cash provided by investing activities 5,157
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,399,094
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 232,113
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $ 3,631,207

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating loss $ (181,531)
Adjustments 1o reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense 209,398
Increase in accounts receivable (47,527)
Decrease in prepaid items 3,389
Increase in accounts payable 4,378
Increase in accrued payroll taxes
and employee withholding 1,522
Increase in accrued salaries 877
Increase in accumulated unpaid
vacation pay 719
Total adjustments 172,756
Net cash used in operating aclivities $ (8,775)

Non-cash investing, capital, and financing activities:

(NONE)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State aid $ - $ - $ -
Total intergovernmental - - -
Total revenues - - -
Expenditures:
General government:
Other 1,719,884 437,209 1,282,675
Total general government 1,719,884 437,209 1,282,675
Total expenditures 1,718,884 437,209 1,282,675
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,719,884) (437,209) 1,282,675
Other financing sources:
Transfer in 315,000 315,000 -
Total other financing
sources 315,000 315,000 -
Net change in fund halance $  (1,404,884) (122,209) $ 1,282,675
Fund halance - beginning of year 1,117,940
Fund batance - end of year $ 995,731
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

LAW LIBRARY
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

Original Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Fines and fees:
Law fibrary surcharge $ 25000 54,236 29,236
Total fines and fees 25,000 54,238 29,236
Total revenues 25,000 54,236 29,236
Expenditures:
General government
Other 82,648 41,828 40,720
Total general governmeni 82,648 41,828 40,720
Total expenditures 82,548 41,828 40,720
Net change in fund batance $ (57,548) 12,408 69,956
Fund balance - beginning of year 63,796
Fund balance - end of year
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

VICTIM/WITNESS ASSISTANCE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL.
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Fines and fees $ 202,100 $ 261522 $ 59422
Intergovernmental - - -
Miscellaneous:
Interest on investments - 74 74
Total miscellaneous - 74 74
Total revenues 202,100 261,596 58,496
Expenditures:
General Government:
Clerk of Court 31,758 33,109 {1,351}
Solicitor 30,070 30,189 (119)
Magistrates 8,470 7,654 816
Other - ~ -
Total general government 70,298 70,952 (654)
Public Safety:
Sheriff 117,296 117,295 1
Total public safety 117,296 117,295 1
Total expenditures 187,594 188,247 (853)
Net change in fund balance $ 14,506 73,349 $ 58,843
Fund balance - beginning of year 2,021
Fund balance - end of year $ 75,370
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

LOCAL HOSPITALITY TAX
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET {BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Fines and fees $ 1,275,000 $ 1,363,730 $ 88730
Total fines and fees 1,275,000 1,363,730 88,730
Miscellaneous:
Interest on investments - 5,862 5,862
Total miscellaneous - 5,862 5,862
Total revenues 1,275,000 1,369,592 04,592
Expenditures:
General Government:
Other 655,116 649,158 5,958
Principal retirement - 152,000 {(152,000)
Debt service - 27,300 (27,300)
Total general government 655,116 828,458 (173,342)
Total expenditures 655,116 828,458 {173,342)
Revenues over {under) expenditures 619,884 541,134 (78,750)
QOther financing sources (uses):
Transfer in - 750,000 750,000
Transfer out {250,000) (250,000) -
Total other financing sources (Uses) {250,000) 500,000 750,000
Net change in fund balance $ 369,884 1,041,134 $ 671,250
Fund balance - beginning of year 220,547
Fund balance - end of year $ 1,261,681
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Fines and fees:
{ ocal contributions $ 45,000 $ 50,827 $ 5,827
Total fines and fees 45,000 50,827 5,827
Miscellaneous
Interest on investments - 1,714 1,714
Total miscellaneous - 1,714 1,714
Total revenues 45,000 52,641 7.541
Expenditures.
Economic and physical development:
Economic development promotion 434,253 387,927 46,326
Total economic and physical development 434,253 387,927 46,326
Total expenditures 434 253 387,927 46,326
Revenues over {under) expenditures {389,253} (335,386) b3,867
Other financing sources:
Transfer in 389,253 389,253 -
Total other financing scurces 389,253 389,253 -
Net change in fund balance $ - 53,867 $ 53,867
Fund balance - beginning of year 342 488
Fund balance - end of year $§ 396,355
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

LOCAL ACCOMMODATIONS FEE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDIULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues;
Fines and fees $ 1,370,000 $ 1,541,820 $ 171,820
Municipality Revenue 1,171,938 1,208,659 37,721
Total fines and fees 2,541,938 2,751,479 209,541
Miscellaneous:
Interest on investments 20,000 8,749 {11,261)
Total miscellaneous 20,000 8,749 {(11,251)
Total revenues 2,561,938 2,760,228 188,290
Expenditures:

Gengral Government:

Other 95,000 89,491 5,609
Total general government 95,000 89,491 5509
Culture and recreation 1,571,000 1,598,582 (27,582)
Debt Service:
Principal retirements 655,776 655,776 @
Interest 152,099 123,225 28,874
Paying agent fee - - -
Total debt service 807,875 779,001 28,874
Total expenditures 2,473,875 2467 074 6,801
Revenues over expenditures 88,063 293,154 205,091
Other financing uses:

Transfer out {268,000) {266,000) -
Total other financing uses (266,000) {266,000) -
Net change in fund balance $ (177,937) 27,154 $ 205,091
Fund balance - beginning of year 662,243
Fund balance - end of year $ 689,397
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ROAD SYSTEM MAINTENANCE FEE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Criginal Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Licenses and permits $ 2,760,000 $ 2,833,100 $ 73,100
Total licenses and permits 2,760,000 2,833,100 73,100
Miscellaneous:
Interest on investments - 15,590 15,590
Other - - -
Total miscellaneous - 15,590 15,580
Total revenues 2,760,000 2,648,690 88,690
Expenditures:

Public Works:

Public Works operating 3,081,973 2,846,509 235,464

Total public works 3,081,973 2,846,509 235,464

Total expenditures 3,081,973 2,846,509 235 464

Revenues over (under) expenditures (321,973) 2,181 324,154
Other financing sources:

Transfer in 308,070 306,070 -
Total other financing sources 306,070 306,070 -
Net change in fund balance $  (15,903) 308,251 $ 324,154
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,738,010
Fund balance - end of year $ 2,046,261
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SHERIFF'S CAMPS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Criginal Variance
and Final : with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Fines and Fees $ 54,000 $ 33,859 $ (20,141)
Total Fines and Fees 54,000 33,859 {20,141)
Miscellaneous:
Interest on investments - 146 146
Total miscellaneous - 146 148
Total revenues 54,000 34,005 (19,995)
Expenditures:
Public Safety
Sheriff 54,000 37,857 16,143
Total public safefy 54,000 37,857 16,143
Total expenditures 54,000 37,857 16,143
Net change in fund balance $ - (3,852) $ (3,852)
Fund balance - beginning of year 14,104
Fund balance - end of year $ 10,252
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SHERIFF SEX OFFENDER
- SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Fines and Fees $ 19,000 $ 17,235 $ (1,765)
Total Fines and Fees 19,000 17,235 {1,765)
Miscellaneous:
Interest on investments - - -
Total miscellanecus - - -
Total revenues 19,000 17,235 (1,765)
Expenditures:
Fublic Safety
Sheriff 54,000 9,472 44 528
Total public safety 54,000 0472 44 528
Total expenditures 54,000 9472 44 528
Net change in fund balance $ (35,000) 7.763 $ 42,763
Fund balance - beginning of year 43,236
Fund balance - end of year $ 50,999

113 -



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SEIZED AUCTION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Variance
and Final with Final
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Fines and Fees $ 40,000 $ - $  (40,000)
Total Fines and Fees 40,000 - {40,000)
Miscellaneous:
Interest on investmenis - - -
Total miscellaneous - - -
Total revenues 40,000 - {40,000)
Expenditures:
Public Safety
Sheriff 40,000 - 40,000
Total public safety 40,000 - 40,000
Total expenditures 40,000 - 40,000
Net change in fund balance $ - - $ -
Fund balance - beginning of year 313
Fund balance - end of year $ 313
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CAPITAL. ASSETS

USED IN THE OPERATION

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL. ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY SOURCE

June 30, 2012

Governmental Funds Capital Assets:

L.and $ 9,262,220
Construction-in-progress 185,016
Buildings and Additions 58,602,321
Improvements Other Than Buildings 6,969,287
Autos and Trucks 10,451,062
Furniture and Fixtures 428,099
Machinery and Equipment 24,253,411
Infrastructure 54,594 232

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 164,755,638

Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source:

General Fund $ 100,798,862
Special Revenue Funds 37,614,779
Capital Project Funds 26,341,997

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets $ 164,755,638
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FLLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIMITY

Function and Activity

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

General government:
Council
Administrator
Finance
Treasurer
Data Processing
Auditor
Tax Assessor
Planning
Central Services
Clerk of Court
Court of Commaon Pleas
Solicitor

Human Resources Management

Family Court

Judge of Probate

Public Defender
Engineering

Magistrates’ Offices
Building Inspections
Public Services Buildings
Other

Total general government

Public Safety:
Sheriff
County Jail

Radio System and Central Dispatch

Total Public Safety
Economic Davelopment

FPublic Works:
Central Maintenance
Public Works Operating
Total public works

118 -

July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012
$ 1412171 $ 12,283 $ - $ 1,424,454
3,459,569 - - 3,459,569
135,482 - - 135,482
67,584 - - 67,584
1,922,222 338,657 - 2,260,779
34,561 - - 34,561
179,031 - - 179,031
15,713 - - 15,713
143,070 - - 143,070
243,039 - 13,494 229,545
12,305 - - 12,306
58,780 15,784 7,351 67,213
25,226 - - 25,226
189,635 - - 189,635
46,048 - - 46,048
24,537 - - 24,637
22,482 - - 22,482
648,920 - 38,484 610,436
1,062,082 34,550 17,288 1,079,344
5,203,799 8,812 - 5,212,611
6,874,958 152,936 - 7,027,894
21,781,214 562,922 76,617 22,267 519
6,253,366 408,079 383,419 6,278,026
20,749,480 17,249 21,371 20,745,358
7,068,400 120,130 29411 7,149,119
34,061,246 545,458 434,201 34,172,503
3,508,769 - - 3,908,769
3,908,769 - - 3,908,769
96,846 ~ 43,728 53,118
60,206,384 1,994,833 363,671 61,837,646
60,303,230 1,994,833 407,299 61,890,764
{continued)



Health:

FLLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

Health Department
Environmental Services
Ermergency Medical Services
Rescue - Ambulance Squads
Coraoner

Total Health

Culture and Recreation:

Totatl Governmentail Funds Capital Assets

Recreation

Freedom Florence
Lynches River County Park
County Library

Museum

Total Culture and Recreation

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012
{continued)
$ 2,399,519 $ - $ 69,591 $ 2,320,928
1,692,406 55,498 - 1,747,904
3,396,972 717,267 148,380 3,965,859
909,351 23,300 - 932,651
102,772 - - 102,772
8,501,020 796,065 217,971 9,079,114
6,722,899 38,397 43,852 6,717 644
1,488,198 - 20,986 1,467,212
24,503,261 183,542 - 24,686,803
- 565,310 565,310
32,714,358 787,249 64,638 33,436,969
$ 161,269,837 $ 4,686,527 $ 1,200,726 $ 164,755,638
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Issue Amount
Interest Date Outstanding

Description Rate % issued 6/30/2011
Johnsonville Rural Fire District Bonds 5.30% 2000 45,000
5.30% 2000 50,000
5.30% 2000 50,000
5.30% 2000 55,000
Subtotal 200,000
Hannah-Salem-Friendfield Fire 4.10% 2001 63,000

District Bonds
Subtotal 63,000
Florence County General Bonds 4.00% 2002 235,000
4.10% 2002 250,000
4.20% 2002 260,000
4.30% 2002 275,000
4.40% 2002 285,000
4.45% 2002 300,000
4.55% 2002 315,000
4.65% 2002 330,000
4.70% 2002 350,000
4.75% 2002 370,000
4.75% 2002 385,000
4.75% 2002 410,000
Subtotal 3,765,000
Hannah-Salem-Friendfietd Fire 4.71% 2004 16,000
District Bonds 4.71% 2004 55,000
4.71% 2004 60,000
Subtotal 130,000
Howe Springs Fire District Bonds 4.20% 2004 104,560
4.20% 2004 108,951
4.20% 2004 113,528
Subtotal 327,039
(Continued)
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Amount Next Fiscal Year

Charges Retired Qutstanding Reguirements

Issued During Year 6/30/2012 Principal Interest
- $ 45,000 $ - $ - $ -
- - 50,000 50,000 8,215
- - 50,000 - -
- - 55,000 - -
- 45,000 155,000 50,000 8,215
- 63,000 - - -
- 63,000 - - -
- 235,000 - - -
- 250,000 - - -
- 260,000 - - -
- 275,000 - - -
- 286,000 - - -
- 300,000 - - -
- 315,000 - - -
- 330,000 - - -
- 350,000 - - -
- 370,000 - - -
- 385,000 - - -
- 410,000 - - -
- 3,765,000 - - -
- 15,000 - - -
- - 55,000 55,000 5,417
- - 60,000 - -
~ 15,000 115,000 55,000 5417
- 104,560 - - -
- - 108,951 108,951 9,344
. - 113,528 - -
- 104,560 222,479 108,951 9,344

{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Issue Amount
Interest Date Outstanding

Description Rate % Issued 6/30/2011

{Continued)
Florence County Advance Refunding Bonds 3.50% 2006 305,000
3.63% 2005 320,000
3.63% 2005 335,000
3.63% 2005 345,000
3.63% 2005 360,000
3.75% 2005 375,000
3.80% 2005 390,000
3.90% 2005 400,000
4.00% 2005 420,000
Subtotal 3,250,000
Florence County General Bonds 3.75% 2006 915,000
3.75% 2006 535,000
3.75% 2006 760,000
3.75% 2006 790,000
3.75% 2006 1,020,000
3.75% 2006 1,060,000
3.75% 20086 1,185,000
3.85% 2006 1,235,000
Subtotal 7,100,000
Howe Springs Fire District Bonds 3.235% 2009 137,946
3.235% 2009 142,409
3.235% 2009 147,016
3.235% 2009 181,772
3.235% 2009 166,681
3.235% 2009 161,750
3.235% 2009 166,983
3.235% 2009 172,384
Subtotal 1,236,941
(Continued)
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Amount Next Fiscal Year
Charges Retired Qutstanding Requirements
Issued During Year 6/30/2012 Principal Interest

(Continued)

- 305,000 - - -
- - 320,000 320,000 110,583
- - 335,000 - -
- - 345,000 - -
- - 360,000 - -
- - 375,000 - -
- - 390,000 - -
- - 400,000 - -
- - 420,000 - -

- 305,000 2,945,000 320,000 110,583

- 515,000 - - -
. - 535,000 535,000 248,173
- - 760,000 - -
. - 790,000 - -
, - 1,020,000 - -
- - 1,060,000 . -
- - 1,185,000 - .
. - 1,235,000 - -

- 515,000 6,585,000 535,000 248,173

- 137,946 . - -
- - 142,409 142,409 35,562
; - 147,016 - -
- - 151,772 - .
- - 156,681 ; )
; - 161,750 . -
- - 166,983 - -
- ) 172,384 - -

- 137,946 1,088,995 142,409 35,562

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULLE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Issue Amount
Interest Date Outstanding
Description " Rate % Issued 6/30/2011
{Continued)
Windy Hill/Olanta Fire District 4.65% 2009 32,119
4.65% 2009 33,612
4.65% 2009 35,175
4.65% 2008 36,811
4.65% 2008 38,623
4.65% 2009 40,314
4.65% 2009 42 188
4.65% 2009 44 150
4.65% 2009 46,203
4.65% 2009 48,352
4.65% 2009 50,600
4.65% 2009 52,952
Subtotal 500,999
Windy HillfOlanta Fire District 2.66% 2010 79,745
2.66% 2010 81,866
2.66% 2010 84,045
2.66% 2010 86,280
2.66% 2010 88,574
2.66% 2010 90,930
2.66% 2010 93,349
2.66% 2010 95,832
2.66% 2010 98,381
2.66% 2010 100,998
Subfotal 900,000
(Continued)
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Charges
Issued

Amount
Retired Outstanding
During Year 6/30/2012

Next Fiscal Year
Requirements

Principal

interest

{Continued)

32,119

33,612
35,175
36,811
38,523
40,314
42,188
44,150
46,203
48,352
50,600
52,952

32,119 468,880

81,866
84,045
86,280
88,574
90,930
93,349
95,832
98,381

- 100,998

79,745 820,255

81,866

21,819

{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Issue Amount
Interest Date Cutstanding

Description Rate % Issued 6/30/2011

{Continued)

Florence County General Bonds 2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.00% 2012 -

2.13% 2012 -

2.38% 2012 -

2.50% 2012 -

2.63% 2012 -

2.75% 2012 -

Subtotal -
Total general bonded indebtedness 17,472,979
Special Source Revenue Bonds 6.24% 2007 1,222,628
5.44% 2010 2,636,443

Hospitality Tax Revenue Bonds 4.00% 2012 -
Capital leases 2.49% 2010 18,429,677
Vacation pay earned but not used 1,633,786
Total $ 41,295,413
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Amount Next Fiscal Year

Charges Retired Qutstanding Requirements
Issued During Year 673072012 Principal Interest
{Continued)
280,000 280,000 - - -
300,000 - 300,000 300,000 102,519
305,000 - 305,000 - -
315,000 - 315,000 - -
320,000 - 320,000 - -
330,000 - 330,000 - -
340,000 - 340,000 - -
345,000 - 345,000 - -
355,000 - 365,000 - -
365,000 - 365,000 - -
370,000 - 370,000 - -
385,000 - 385,000 - -
320,000 - 320,000 - -
330,000 - 330,000 - -
340,000 - 340,000 - -
5,000,000 280,000 4,720,000 300,000 102,519
5,000,000 5,342,370 17,130,609 1,626,838 563,425
- 592,770 629,758 629,758 39,297
- 383,335 2,253,108 404,188 122,569
3,900,000 152,000 3,748,000 205,000 149,920
- 2,440,730 15,968,947 2,503,432 398,125
1,001,122 1,091,378 1,443,530 1,001,122 -
$ 0,901,122 $ 10,002,583 $ 41,193,952 $ 6,370,338 $ 1,273,336
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ADDITIONAL ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and investiments

Receivables:
Properiy taxes (net)
Other governmental units and agencies
Other {net)

Prepaids

Inventory

Bue from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payroll withholdings and accruals
Other payables
Deferred revenues
Total liabilities

Fund balance:

Nonspendable:

Inventory and prepaids
Committed
Assigned:

Encumbrances
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance
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$ 14,144,067

282,393
4,396,116
1,375,003
1,080,408

14,417
43,758

$ 21,336,162

$ 1,665,453
548,809
5,074,187
1,203,841

9,392,000

1,002,789
1,397,033

13,667
9,440,683

11,944,072

$ 21,336,162



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Taxes $ 33,016,586 $ 31,644,959 $ (1,371.827)
Licenses and permiis 1,797,978 2,052,100 254,122
Fines and fees 3,561,342 3,405,100 {156,242)
Intergovernmental 5,539,352 5,405,193 {134,159)
Sales and other functional revenues 5,458,889 5,654,006 195,117
Miscellaneous 840,000 479 586 {360,414)
Total revenues 50,214,147 48,640,944 (1,573,203)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 19,215,808 18,660,774 555,034
Public safety 17,492,380 16,936,329 556,051
Public works 1,918,136 581,784 1,336,351
Health 5,859,752 5,520,798 338,954
Welfare 439,075 425,734 13,341
Culture and recreation 5,307,850 5,073,857 234,093
Education 4,515 4,515 -
Total expenditures 50,237,615 47,203,791 3,033,824
Revenues over {under) expenditures (23,468) 1,437,153 1,460,621
(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET {BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
{Continued)
Cther financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 623,942 755,607 131,665
Transfer out (2,000,343) (2,000,343} -
Net change in fund balance $ (1,399,869) 192,417 $ 1,592,286
Fund balance - beginning of year 11,758,625
Fund balance - end of year $ 11,951,042

Reconciliation of fund halance:
GAAP basis $ 11,944,072
Increase (decrease):
Due to expenditures:

Encumbrances (13,667)
Inventories (12,381)
Cash - Juror fee accounts 33,018
Budgetary basis % 11,951,042
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
General government:
County Council $ 356,108 324,547 31,561
Attorney 144,650 119,441 25,209
Administrator 635,162 611,625 23,537
Finance 743,944 724,405 19,5630
Treasurer 1,188,141 1,144,450 44,691
Data processing 1,323,786 1,304,838 18,948
Auditor 473,893 451,390 22,503
Tax assessor 1,280,644 1,212,614 68,030
Procurement and facilities 212,090 137,085 75,005
Clerk of Court 960,670 974,465 {13,795)
Court of Common Pleas 172,697 163,304 19,283
Solicitor 1,064,277 1,015,289 48,988
Human resources management 248,163 246,128 2,035
Family court 620,622 610,861 9,761
Judge of Probate 501,075 501,188 {(113)
Public defender 758,618 713,358 45 260
Master in Equity 51,414 51,240 174
Magistrates' offices 2,175,294 2,149,489 25,805
Building inspections 2,054,406 1,673,752 380,654
GIS 372,156 372,418 (262)
Voter registration and election commission 581,719 550,821 30,898
Veterans' affairs 146,112 144,186 1,926
Public services buildings 730,031 651,923 78,108
Senior Cifizens Center 177,549 160,811 16,738
Lake City Senior Center 160,188 150,188 -
Direct asgsistance 1,411,460 1,465,187 (63,727)
Other 679,939 1,045,771 (365,832)
Total general government 19,215,808 18,660,774 555,034
Public safety:
Sheriff's office 8,356,578 8,225,361 131,217
County jail 6,671,674 6,385,485 286,189
Radic System 358,175 356,850 1,325
Central Dispatch 1,815,389 1,694,904 120,485
Emergency Preparedness 275,424 261,445 13,979
Direct assistance 15,140 12,284 2,856
Totat public safety 17,492,380 16,936,329 556,051
Public works:
Public works operating 1,540,650 189,885 1,350,765
Central maintenance 377,485 391,889 (14,414)
Total public works 1,918,135 581,784 1,336,351

{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
{Continued)
Health:
Health depariment $ 80,934 $ 80,934 $ -
Environmental services 725,507 714,958 10,549
Emergency medical services 4,371,988 4,066,815 305,173
Rescue - ambulance squads 388,635 382,776 5,258
Coroner 278,786 262,865 15,921
Direct assistance 14,502 12,450 2,052
Total health 5,859,752 5,520,798 338,954
Welfare:
Indigent care 382,821 373,821 9,000
Social services 47,134 42 793 4,341
Direct assistance 9,120 9,120 -
Total welfare 439,075 425734 13,341
Culture and recreation:
Library 3,564,081 3,525,025 39,056
Recreation 1,354,654 1,208,788 145,866
Lynches River County Park 384,215 335,044 49171
Museum 5,000 5,000 -
Total culture and recreation 5,307,950 5,073,857 234,093
Education;
Direct assistance 4,515 4,515 -
Total education 4,515 4,518 -
Total expenditures $ 50,237,615 $ 47,203,791 $ 3,033,824
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET {BUDGETARY BASIS})
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual - Budget
Taxes:
Property tax $ 20,040,014 $ 17,807,361 $ (2,232,653)
Sales tax 10,956,572 11,733,368 776,796
Fees in fieu of tax 2,020,000 2,104,230 84,230
Total taxes 33,016,586 31,644,959 {1,371,627)
Licenses and permits:
Tax assessor fees 8,176 6,444 (1,732)
Cable TV fees 720,000 909,273 189,273
Scrap tire fees 4,500 1,500 (3,000)
Building permit fees 604,500 665,713 61,213
Landfilt permits 5,000 5,243 243
Road system maintenance fees 449,302 461,202 11,900
Planning commission fees 6,500 2,725 {3,775)
Total licenses and permits 1,797,978 2,052,100 254,122
Fines and fees:
Library fines 100,000 106,456 6,456
Tax collector's costs and fees 377,962 215,654 {162,308)
Magistrates' fines 1,808,116 1,792,962 (16,154)
Clerk of Court fines 34,478 21,951 (12,527)
Clerk of Court fees 574,692 697,563 122,871
Master in Equity fees 87,028 48,241 {(38,787)
Judge of Probate fees 190,000 180,287 (9,713)
Family court fees 388,066 341,986 (46,080)
Total fines and fees 3,561,342 3,405,100 (156,242)
Intergovernmental:
Library state and federal 208,824 100,326 (108,498)
State revenue - local government fund 4,000,000 4,213,418 213,418
Election commission 166,979 46,530 {120,449)
Veterans' affairs 8,500 6,184 {2,318)
Public defender 325,000 190,866 {134,134)
Solicitor 170,000 186,312 16,312
Municipalities 71,743 70,054 {1,689)
Merchant inventory exemption 356,006 356,008 -
Agcommodations tax 44,000 42,609 (1,391)
Others 188,300 192,888 4,588
Total intergovernmental 5,539,352 5,405,193 {134,159)

{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
{Continued)
Sales and other functional revenues;
Rent $ 258,283 $ 293,134 $ 34,851
Hospital reimbursements/MIAF
administration 52,000 49,331 {2,669)
Vital Statistics 50,000 60,565 10,565
Emergency medical services 2,875,000 3,287,340 412,340
Recreation 518,008 439,511 (78,497)
inmate per diem 1,493,800 1,331,179 {(162,621)
Sheriff serving fees 35,000 39,672 4,672
Commissary sales 44,000 37,346 {6,654)
Inmate telephone system 95,273 94,000 {1,273}
Other 37,525 21,928 (15,597)
Total sales and other
functional revenues 5,458,689 5,654,006 185,117
Miscellaneous:
Interest on investments 619,000 200,523 (418,477)
Tax sale escrow accounts held five years 10,000 71,561 61,561
Sales of abandoned property 200,000 93,732 {106,268)
Others 11,000 113,770 102,770
Total misceltaneous _ §40,000 479,586 {360,414)
Total revenues $ 50,214,147 $ 48,640,944 $ {1,573,203)
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FLLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
General government:
County Council:
Personnel services $ 215,813 $ 213686 $ 2,127
Supplies 9,658 8,067 1,591
Other service and charges 116,435 88,617 27,818
Capital outlay 2,051 2,026 25
Direct assistance 12,191 12,151 -
Total County Councif 356,108 324,547 31,561
Attorney:
Other service and charges 144,660 119,441 25,209
Total attornay 144 650 118,441 25,200
Administrator;
Personnel services 580,987 585,031 15,956
Supplies 9,805 6,000 3,815
Other service and charges 29,348 25,698 3,650
Capital outlay 14,922 14,808 116
Total administrator 635,162 611,625 23,637
Finance:
Personnel services 554,332 551,619 2,713
Supplies 35,477 32,373 3,104
Other service and charges 143,985 130,448 13,537
Capital outlay 10,150 9,965 185
Total finance 743,944 724 405 19,539
Treasurer;
Personnel services 832,054 821,730 10,324
Supplies 71,579 71,230 349
Other service and charges 271,408 243,740 27 668
Capital outlay 14,100 7,750 6,350
Total treasurer 1,189,141 1,144 450 44 691
information Technology:
Personnel services 521,468 518,638 2,830
Supplies 8,710 7,307 1,403
Other service and charges 650,849 637,967 12,882
Capital outlay 142,759 140,926 1,833
Total data processing 1,323,786 1,304,838 18,048
Auditor:
Personnel services 442 056 422,250 19,806
Supplies 13,740 13,674 66
Other service and charges 17,288 14,657 2,631
Capital outlay 809 808 -
Total auditor 473,803 451,390 22,503

{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS})
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
Tax assessor:
Personnel services $ 1,183,724 $ 1,142 337 $ 41,387
Supplies 13,480 13,300 160
Other service and charges 74,240 47,959 26,281
Capital outlay 9,200 9,018 182
Total tax assessor 1,280,644 1,212,614 68,030
Procurement:
Personnel services 199,086 124,558 74,528
Supplies 4,004 4,001 3
Other service and charges 9,000 8,526 474
Capital outlay - - -
Total central services 212,080 137,085 75,005
Clerk of Court:
Personnel services 872,966 888,768 {15,802)
Supplies 33,694 33,681 13
Other service and charges 54,0110 52,016 1,994
Capital outtay - " -
Total Clerk of Court 980,670 Q74,465 {13,795)
Court of Common Pleas
Personnel services 118,651 112,349 6,302
Other service and charges 54,046 40,955 13,091
Total court of common pleas 172,697 183,304 19,303
Solicitor:
Personnel services 005,400 856,508 48,982
Supplies 16,610 16,602 8
Other service and charges 111,678 111,899 (21}
Capital outiay 30,499 30,480 19
Total solicitor 1,064,277 1,015,289 48,088
Human resources management: ‘
Personnel services 231,275 231,115 160
Supplies 8,543 7,896 647
Other service and charges 8,345 7,117 1,228
Capital outiay - - -
Total human resources management 248,163 246,128 2,035
Family court:
Personnel services 605,944 597,792 8,152
Supplies - 13,064 (13,089}
Other service and charges 14,678 - 14,678
Total family court 620,622 610,861 9,761

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL. FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
Judge of Probate:
Personnel services $ 472213 $ 468,268 $ 3,945
Supplies 7.979 7,843 136
Other service and charges 20,883 25,077 {(4,194)
Total Judge of Probate 501,075 501,188 {113)
Public defender:
Personnel services 722,164 682,606 39,559
Supplies 2,618 2,689 19
Other service and charges 33,836 28,154 5,682
Capital outfay - - -
Total public defender 758,618 713,358 45,260
Master in Equity:
Personnel services 50,433 50,825 (392)
Supplies 246 218 28
Other service and charges 735 197 538
Total Master in Equity 51,414 51,240 174
Magistrates' Offices
Personnel services 1,010,146 1,885,046 25,100
Supplies 18,658 17,351 1,307
Other service and charges 246,490 247,092 (602)
Capital outlay - - -
Total magistrates’ offices 2,175,294 2,149,489 25,805
Building inspections:
Personnel services 1,694,704 1,407,310 287,394
Supplies 18,223 15,381 2,842
Other service and charges 311,829 229,084 81,045
Capital outlay 20 550 21,077 8,473
Total building inspections 2,054,406 1,673,752 380,654
GIs:
Personnel services 299,990 301,598 (1,608)
Supplies 1,860 1,745 115
Other service and charges 68,726 67,527 1,199
Capital outlay 1,580 1,548 32
Total GIS 372,158 372,418 (262)
Voter registration and election commission:
Personnel services 254,409 265,845 (11,438)
Supplies 19,568 17,800 1,788
Other service and charges 305,822 267,023 38,789
Capital outlay 1,900 153 1,747
Total voter registration and election commission 581,719 550,821 30,898

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
Veterans' affairs:
Personnel services $ 127,892 $ 125859 $ 2,033
Supplies 1,707 1,701 6
Other service and charges 10,503 10,639 (138}
Capital outlay 6,010 5,087 23
Total veterans' affairs 146,112 144,186 1,926
Facilities Management:
Personnel services 249 145 212,456 36,689
Supplies 6,948 5,750 1,198
Other service and charges 439,038 405,002 34,936
Capital outlay 34,000 28,715 5,285
Total public services buildings 730,031 651,923 78,108
Senior Citizens Center:
Personnel services 80,008 69,834 10,174
Supplies 450 444 6
Other service and charges 95430 88,873 8,557
Capital outlay 1,661 1,660 1
Total Senior Gitizens Center 177,549 160,811 16,738
Lake City Senior Center:
Supplies 10,316 10,316 -
Other service and charges 134,487 134,487 -
Capital outlay 5,385 5,385 -
Total {.ake City Senior Center 160,188 150,188 -
Direct assistance:
City-County Complex 1,193,463 1,247,191 (53,728)
Council of Governments 82,131 82,131 -
Senior Citizens Association 9,120 9,120 -
Pes Dee CAA 9,120 9,120 -
City-County Stadium Commission 4,662 4,652 -
Others 112,974 112,973 1
Total direct assistance 1,411,460 1,465,187 (63,727)
Other:
Personnel services 428177 911,827 (485,750)
Supplies - - -
Other service and charges 253,762 133,844 119,918
Direct assistance - - -
Total other 679,939 1,045 771 (365,832)
Total general government 19,215,808 18,660,774 555,034

{Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
Public safety:
Sheriff's office:
Personnel services $ 6,274,516 6,169,318 $ 105,198
Supplies 56,707 56,151 556
Other service and charges 1,775,396 1,751,189 24,207
Capital outlay 215524 214,270 1,254
Direct assistance 34,435 34,433 2
Total sheriff's office 8,356,578 8,225,361 131,217
County Jail:
Personnel services 4,440,897 4,287 159 153,738
Supplies 80,345 70,327 10,018
Other service and charges 2,044 565 1,841,516 103,048
Capital outtay 105,867 86,483 19,384
Total county jai 8,671674 6,385,485 286,189
Radio System:
Personnel services 51,606 51,606 -
Supplies 1,344 1,343 1
Other service and charges 308,226 303,901 1,324
Capital outlay - - -
Total radio system 358,175 356,850 1,325
Central Dispatch;
Personnel services 1,766,312 1,849,029 117,283
Supplies 5,545 5,637 8
Other service and charges 43,209 40,015 3,194
Capital outlay 323 323 -
Total central dispatch 1,815,389 1,694,904 120,485
Emergency Preparedness:
Personnel services 241,661 235,348 6,313
Supplies 5919 4,579 1,340
Other service and charges 27.844 21,518 6,326
Capital outlay - - -
Total emergency preparedness 275,424 261,445 13,979
Direct assistance:
Rural fire departments 15,140 12,284 2,858
Total direct assistance 15,140 12,284 2,856
Total public safety 17,492,380 16,936,329 566,061

(Continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
Public works:
Public works operating:
Other service and charges $ 1,540,650 $ 189,885 $ 1,350,765
Total public works operating 1,540,850 189,885 1,350,765
Central maintenance:
Cther service and charges 377,485 391,809 (14,414)
Totat central maintenance 377,485 391,899 {14,414)
Total public works 1,918,135 581,784 1,336,351
Health:
Health department:
Other service and charges 80,934 80,934 -
Total health department 80,934 80,934 -
Environmental services:
Personnel services 465279 480,177 (14,828)
Supplies 8,529 8,526 3
Other service and charges 184,244 159,441 24,803
Capital outlay 67,455 66,814 641
Total environmental services 725,507 714,958 10,549
Emergency medical services:
Personnel services 3,335,869 3,120,754 215,115
Supplies 11,300 8,852 2,448
Other service and charges 678,394 608,639 69,755
Capital outfay 346,425 328,570 17,855
Total emergency medical services 4,371,988 4,066,815 305,173
Rescue - ambulance squads:
Supplies 34,717 28,085 6,652
Other services and charges 2,645 - 2,645
Capital outlay 112,377 118,343 (5,968)
Direct assistance 238,296 236,368 1,928
Total rescue - ambulance squads 388,035 382,776 5,259
Coroner:
Personnel services 193,978 191,226 2,752
Supplies 1,657 1,495 162
Other service and charges 83,11 70,144 13,007
Total coroner 278,786 262,865 15,921
Direct assistance:
Direct agsistance 14,502 12,450 2,052
Total direct assistance 14 502 12,450 2,062
Totatl heaith 5,859,752 5,520,798 338,954

{Continued)
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FI.ORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
Welfare:
Indigent care:
Other services and charges $ 382,821 $ 373,821 9,000
Total indigent care 382,821 373,821 9,000
Social services:
Other services and charges 47,134 42793 4,341
Total social services 47,134 42,793 4,341
Direct assistance:
Pee Dee Coalition 9,120 8,120 -
Total direct assistance 9,120 9,120 -
Total welfare 439,075 425,734 13,341
Culture and recreation;
Library:
Personnel services 2,578,937 2,556,479 22,458
Supplies 63,184 58,857 4,327
Other service and charges 900,304 889,282 11,022
Capital outlay 21,656 20,407 1,249
Total Library 3,564,081 3,525,025 39,056
Recreation:
Personnel services 467,081 454,343 12,738
Supplies 58,337 54,928 3,409
Other service and charges 403,756 396.485 7,271
Capital outlay 30,776 (18,270) 49,046
Direct assistance 304,704 321,302 73,402
Total recreation 1,354 654 1,208,788 145,866
Lynches River County Park:
Personnel services 247 A77 217,601 29,876
Supplies 12,196 8,757 3,439
Other service and charges 106,542 98,704 7,838
Capital outlay 18,000 9,982 8,018
Total Lynches River County Park 384,215 335,044 48171
Direct assistance;
Museum 5,000 5,000 -
Total direct assistance 5,000 5,000 -
Total culfure and recreation 5,307,950 5,073,857 234,093

(Continued}
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (BUDGETARY BASIS)
AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
with
Budget Actual Budget
Education;
Direct assistance:
Literacy Coungcil $ 4,515 $ 4515 $ -
Total direct assistance 4515 4,515 -
Total education 4,515 4,515 -
Total expenditures $ 50,237,615 $ 47,203,791 $ 3,033,824
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT LEVY

June 30, 2012

Original assessment

Regular

Mill exemption
Homestead exemption
Local option sales tax
School exemption

Additions

Reguilar

Mill exemption
Homestead exemption
l.ocal option sales tax
School exemption

Abatements

Regular

Mill exemption
Homestead exemption
Local option sales tax
School exemption

Collections and credits

Regular

Mill exemption
Homestead exemption
l.ocal option sales tax
School exemption

Executions

143 -

$ 77,330,024
698,571

535
11,254,788
27,962,601

117,246,519

8,020,067
215,396
3,474
678,345
1,179,136

10,096,418

11,109,812
210,894
19,474
784,149
631,498

12,765,827

69,098,306
714,770
(15,465)

10,496,550

28,510,239

108,804,400

$ 5,782,710




FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF TAXES RECEIVABLE - DELINQUENT
June 30, 2012

Uncollected Uncollected

Balance Balance

July 1, Credits June 30,

2011 Additions Collections (Debits) 2012
2011 $ - $ 5,748,379 $ 1,860,656 $ 285,201 $ 3,602,522
2010 3,540,243 - 2,692,717 107,676 739,850
2009 641,427 - 53,667 25494 562,266
2008 433,249 - 23,624 397,387 12,238
2007 3,356 8,149 3,617 5,410 2,478
2006 545 5,353 949 2,792 2,157
2005 (59) 10,978 7,682 2,032 1,205
2004 722 9,851 6,764 1,906 1,903
2003 2,783 - 306 1,444 1,033
2002 1,618 - 59 778 781

2001 429 - - 429 -

$ 4,624,313 $ 5,782,710 $ 4,650,041 $ 830,549 $ 4,926,433

The schedule is not reduced for an allowance for uncollectible taxes, nor does it include costs and
execution fees relating to the above receivables nor accounts nulla bonnaed. It includes delinquent
taxes and penalties.

The schedule also includes $3,534,740 of receivables relating to school districts.
Reconciliation follows:

Per balance sheet (page 27) $ 402,490
Add:

Allowance for delinquent doubtful accounts 1,060,262

Fiduciary funds 3,717,925

Less costs and fees receivable (254,244)

As above $ 4,926,433
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ASSESSED VAILUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY IN FLORENCE COUNTY
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

The assessed value of all taxable real and personal property (non-industrial property)
and the assessed value of all real and personal industrial property in the County for each
of the last 10 years is set forth below:

Tax Non-manufacturing Manufacturing® Total

Year Real Personal Real Personal  Assessments
2002 $217,688,421 $80,118,648 $18,032,345 $59,088,736 $375,828,150
2003 223,070,997 77,901,350 16,106,416 60,269,076 377,347,839
2004 227 683,167 74,195938 16,259,777 62206241 380,245,124
2005 250255734 71,126,584 14,148,439 62,217,151 406,747,908
2006 266,847,880 70,351,210 13,942,482 62,382,660 413,524,232
2007 276,846,384 68,453,945 12,855,378 60,191,283 418,347,000
2008 287,100,121 63,328,539 12,587,362 63,031,680 426,047,712
2009 294,977 277 57,365,455 12,707,346 66,279,908 431,329,986
2010 306,767,976 56,057,235 10,609,807 63,225204 436,560,322
2011 310,283,149 58,680477 9,765,127 60,634,022 439,362,775

*  Assessed values for Utilities and Railroads property are included in Manufacturing
personal. The breakdown between personal and real property for Ulilities and
Railroads is not readily available from the South Carolina Department of Revenue
and Taxation.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

MARKET AND ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY IN FLORENCE
COUNTY
TAX YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, BY PROPERTY CLASSIFICATION
(UNAUDITED)

The assessed value of all taxable property in the County for tax year 2011, according to
classification of property, is set forth below:

Classification of Property Market Value Assessment
Real Estate (Non-manufacturing) Farm $ 247,689,963 $ 10,119,728
Real Estate (Non-manufacturing) Non-farm 6,140,570,762 292 955,487
Mobile Homes 163,063,595 7,207,934
Business Personal 45,818,554 4,810,949
Watercraft 23,914,491 1,434,870
Aircraft 5,192,000 207,680
Utilities 241,081,988 25,313,610
Manufacturers’ Furniture & Fixtures 149,167,733 15,662,613
Manufacturers’ Real Estate 96,644,062 9,765,127
Manufacturers’ Personal 156,076,182 16,388,000
Railroads 34,418,929 3,269,799
Vehicles 807,843,341 52226978

Totals $8,111,481,600 $439,362,775

Exempt Manufacturing Property
Article X, Section 3 of the Constitution provides that all new manufacturing
establishments located in any county after July 1, 1977, and all additions (in excess of
$50,000) to existing manufacturing establishments are exempt from ad valorem taxation
for five years for county taxes only. No exemption is granted from school or municipal
taxes.

The following table provides a breakdown of the fotal assessment between property
subject to the exemption and property which is fully taxable for each of the last ten (10)
years for which the information is available:

Year Exempt
Ended Manufacturing  Total Assessment
December 31 Property Not Exempt Total Assessment

2002 $11,012,180 $364,815,970 $375,828,150
2003 10,439,940 366,907,899 377,347,839
2004 12,384,860 367,860,264 380,245,124
2005 11,717,650 395,030,258 406,747,908
2006 9,871,210 403,653,022 413,524,232
2007 8,498,440 409,848,560 418,347,000
2008 9,301,650 416,746,062 426,047,712
2009 11,247,510 420,082,476 431,329,986
2010 11,362,204 425198,118 436,560,322
2011 9,130,200 430,232,575 439,362,775
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY IN FLORENCE COUNTY

TAX YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 BY TAX DISTRICT

{(UNAUDITED)

The assessed value of all taxable property in the County for tax year 2011, by tax district and according to
majar category, is set forth below:

Real Personal
District Property Property
100  West Florence Rural Fire District $ 73,439,909 $ 1,084,512
110 City of Florence 125,799,957 4,181,833
120 Town of Quinby 1,983,528 5711
130  Howe Springs Fire District 33,016,642 403,024
140  Windy Hill Fire District 23,416,542 143,407
School District #1 257,656,578 5,818,487
200 Hannah-Salem-Friendfield 2,761,694 38,935
210 Town of Pamplico 1,479,341 18,447
220 Howe Springs Fire District 1,150,184 7420
230 Hannah-Satem-Friendfield 3,143,596 56,580
School District #2 8,534,815 121,382
300  South Lynches Fire District 2,372,830 31,988
301 SLFD/Salem Watershed 1,886,512 950
310  South Lynches Fire District 5,881,808 87,858
311 SLFD/Salem Watershed 2,166,982 230
319  SLFD/Joint ind Park 50,610 791
320 City of Lake City 9,815,309 119,444
330 Town of Olanta 995,716 7,877
340  Town of Coward 650,062 6,654
341 Town of Coward/Salem Watershed 86,053 -
350 Town of Scranton 347,022 19,403
351 Town of Scranton/Salem Watershed 532,190 790
360 SLFD/Lynches Lake Camp Branch 784 570
361 SLFD/Lynches Lake Camp Branch 45,170 -
371  SLFD/Lynches Lake Camp Branch 64,059 -
380 Olanta Rural Fire District 1,514,796 13,952
381 ORFD/Salem Watershed 121,834 -
380 ORFD/Lynches Lake Camp Branch 258 470
331  ORFDiLynches Lake Camp Branch 310,744 -
Schoaol District #3 26,042 739 290,977
400  Sardis-Timmonsville Fire District 6,540,359 63,866
410  Town of Timmonsville 2,769,748 11,273
420  West Florence Rural Fire District 143,640 42 010
School District #4 9,453,747 117,149
500 Johnsonville Rural Fire District 4,852 656 57,894
510 Town of Johnsonville 2,842 614 47 610
School District #5 7,695,270 105,504
Total County $ 310,283,149 $ 6,453,499
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Tax Total
Commission Vehicles Assessment
$22,512,134 $ 14,109,150 $ 111,145,705

15,001,740 14,523,690 158,507,220
226,320 297,640 2,513,199
4,934,428 6,640,280 44 994 374
10,709,533 4,039,598 38,308,080
53,384,155 39,610,358 356,469,578
1,657,380 748,150 5,206,159
595,110 303,240 2,396,138
60,070 294,230 1,511,904
197,580 875,220 4,272 986
2,510,150 2,220,840 13,387,187
1,288,207 862,760 4,555,785
- - 1,887,462
2,152,033 2,733,670 10,955,369
3,380 - 2,170,592
3,808,881 - 3,858,282
2,047,819 1,312,680 13,205,252
315,870 157,310 1,476,873
220,795 87,440 964,951

- - 86,053
141,669 137,710 645,804

- - 532,980

- - 1,354

- - 45,170

- - 64,059

78,740 538,190 2,145,678

- - 121,834

40 10,890 11,858

- - 310,744
10,055,534 5,840,650 43,129,900
1,487,540 2,068,780 10,160,545
416,050 395,120 3,592 191
4160 7,510 197,320
1,807,750 2,471,410 13,950,056
1,621,910 1,622,240 8,154,700
919,650 461,480 4,271,354
2,541,860 2,083,720 12,426,054
$70,399,149 $52,226,978 $ 439,362,775
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF SCHOOL GENERAL FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

District District District
One Two Three
Cash due from Treasurer - beginning 780,629 $ 37,717 $ 101,958
Add receipts:
Current property taxes 30,302,222 933,102 4,472,772
inventory exemption 440,969 9,789 94,239
Vehicle taxes 6,767,594 390,528 1,031,381
Delinquent property taxes 1,803,414 83,384 296,066
Penalties 79,299 2,621 7,800
Fee transfer - - (19,149)
State and federal aid 74,170,962 6,860,376 24,922 041
Inferest on investments 22,758 741 3,185
Proceeds of Bond Issue - - -
State homestead exemption 19,053,619 957 A66 2,527,371
Fees in lieu of taxes 2,208,491 1,078 533,737
Total receipts 134,847 328 9,239,085 33,869 443
Less dishursements:
Claims paid to School Districts 134,809,234 9,226,182 33,840,298
Refunds 125,100 4678 17,732
Total disbursements 134,934,334 9,230,860 33,858,030
Cash due from Treasurer - ending 693,623 $ 45,942 $ 113,371
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District District
Four Five Total
3 33,784 % 40,134 $ 004,222
789,488 1,173,857 37,671,441
17,467 7,905 570,369
329,727 451,416 8,970,646
170,118 133,093 2,486,075
2,888 3,498 96,106
- - (19,149)
4,485,248 8,057,551 118,496,178
1,674 867 29,225
713,572 1,006,804 24,258,832
768,474 36,585 3,536,365
7,268,656 10,871,576 196,006,088
7,253,272 10,846,598 195,075,584
2,914 6,136 166,560
7,256,186 10,852,734 196,132,144
$ 46,254 $ 58,976 $ 958,166
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FLLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF SCHOOL DEBT SERVICE FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

District District District
One Two Three
Cash due from Treasurer - beginning $ 2,622,020 $ 187,266 $ 234066
Add receipts:
Current property taxes 8,925,329 529,870 425378
Inventory exemption 175,434 1,240 22,165
Vehicle taxes 1,196,008 118,343 65,5684
Delinquent property taxes 489,373 49 297 30,532
Fee transfer - - (1,249)
State and Federal aid - - -
Penalties 28,379 3,644 1,855
Interest on investments 59,047 31,136 2,843
Homestead exemption 363,209 58,302 33,757
Fees in lieu of taxes 293,324 154 21,257
Transfer in bond premiums 781,305 - -
Miscellaneous - - -
Total receipts 12,291,498 793,076 602,222
Less disbursements;
Bond principal paid 11,500,000 615,000 505,000
Interest payments 431,340 126,133 84,644
Paying agent fees - 1,025 1,000
Refunds 22514 1,406 1,126
Total disbursements 11,953,854 743,564 591,770
Cash due from Treasurer - ending $ 2,959,673 $ 236,778 $ 244,518
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District District

Four Five Total
$ 335,420 $ 177,033 $ 3555814
559,027 431,103 10,870,707
2,015 3,434 204,288
140,181 103,112 1,623,318
102,392 48,041 699,635
- - (1,249
3,857 2,396 40,231
4,033 2,672 99,731
51,775 37,757 545 890
82,443 6,899 404,077
- - 781,305
- 43,600 43,600
045,723 679,014 15,311,533
809,069 527,623 13,956,692
159,316 96,520 897 052
- 1,000 3,025
1,294 1,424 27,764
969,678 626,567 14,885,433
$ 311,465 $ 229,480 $ 3981914
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF SCHOOL. CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

District District District
Cne Two Three
Cash due from Treasurer - beginning $ 19,527,150 3 598,611 $ 411,621
Add receipts:
Interest on investments 273,765 4,716 2,790
Proceeds from bond issue 20,228,950 - -
Total receipts 20,502,715 4,716 2,790
Less disbursements:
Claims paid to School Districts 20,286,867 403,335 360,577
Transfer out for bond premium 781,306 - -
Total disbursements 21,068,172 403,335 360,577
Cash due from Treasurer - ending $ 18,961,693 $ 199,992 $ 53,734
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District District
Four Five Total

193 $ - 27 $ 20,537,502

2 - 281273
- - 20,228,950

2 - 20,510,223

- - 21,050,779
- - 781,305

- - 21,832,084

195 $ 27 $ 19,215,641
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF MUNICIPALITIES FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Florence Quinby Pamplico
Cash due from Treasurer - beginning $ 75432 3 (294) $ 833
Add receipts:
Current property taxes 7,569,234 61 165,514
Vehicle taxes 795,721 - 27,802
Delinquent property taxes 320,529 - 10,237
Penalties 8,372 - 79
Fees in lieu of taxes 50,957 - -
| ess local option sales tax credits (5,197,098) (61) {150,136)
Total receipts 3,547,715 - 53,496
Less disbursements:
Payments to municipality 3,568,074 - 53,142



Lake City Olanta Coward Scranton Timmonsville  Johnsonville Total
$ 19628 $ 21 3 13 $ 190 $ 6359 $ 101 $ 102,401
1,661,008 61,760 - - 304,008 159,638 9,921,223
224,736 8,819 - - 48,048 22,211 1,127,337
187,512 5,119 - - 60,545 13,540 597,482
5514 i - - 850 2 14,818
- - - - - - 50,957
(660,857) {69,483) - - (246,751) (185,562) {6,509,948)
1,417,913 6,216 - - 166,700 9,829 5,201,869
1,403,913 6,229 - - 169,069 9,873 5,210,300
3,824 - - - 150 - 19,118
1,407,737 6,229 - - 169,219 9,873 5,229,418
$ 20,804 $ 8 $ 131 $ 190 $ 3,840 $ 57 $ 74,852
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL. SCHEDULE OF FIRE BOARD FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

South West Windy Hill/
i.ynches Florence Olanta
River Rural Rural Pamplico
Fire Fire Fire Fire
District District District District
Cash due from Treasurer - beginning $ 7,310 $ 10643 $ 13,937 $ 11
Add recsipts:
Current property faxes 403,743 728,626 945 513 -
Inventory exemption 11,208 15,762 227 -
Vehicle taxes 65,162 110,404 119,983 -
Definquent property taxes 21,358 32,521 77,835 -
Penalties 1,606 1,730 5,063 -
Interest on investments 315 534 801 2
State aid 15,720 66,595 45,933 1,467
Homestead exempfion 26,344 25797 49 956 -
Fee in lieu of property tax 92,607 2,063 97,257 -
Toftal receipts 638,063 984,032 1,342,568 1,469
Less disbursements:
Claims paid to Fire Board 637,292 981,545 1,340,890 1,467
Refunds 1,113 1,368 1,495 -
Penalty abatements - - - -
Total disbursements 638,405 082,913 1,342,385 1,467
Cash due from Treasurer - ending $ 6,968 $ 11,762 $ 14,120 13
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Hannah-

Salem-
Friendfield City City City City City
Fire of of of of of
District Florence Lake City Scranton Timmonsviile  Johnsonville Total
$ 320 $ 702 $ 63 $ 15 $ 17 $ 19 $ 35,918
120,640 - - - - - 2,198,622
- - - - - - 27,197
28,767 - - - - - 324,316
11,394 - - - - - 143,108
848 - - - - - 9,247
89 9 - - - - 1,750
4,768 110,642 8,380 866 - 2,509 256,880
13,521 - - - - - 115,618
- - - - - - 191,927
180,027 110,651 8,380 866 - 2,508 3,268,565
179,681 110,642 8,381 866 - 2,509 3,263,273
335 - - - - - 4,311
180,018 110,642 8,381 866 - 2,509 3,267,584
$ 3,212 3 711 $ 62 $ 15 $ 17 $ 19 $ 36,899
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF LYNCHES LLAKE/ICAMP BRANCH FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash due from Treasurer - beginning $ 1,321

Add receipts:

Current property taxes 6,429
Vehicle taxes 23
Delinquent property taxes 624
Homestead exemption 793
Penalties 68
interest on investments 44
Total receipts 7,981

Less disbursements:
Claims paid to Lynches Lake/Camyp Branch 8,500
Total dishursements 8,500
Cash due from Treasurer - ending $ 802
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF SALEM WATERSHED FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash due from Treasurer - beginning

Add receipts:
Current property taxes
Vehicle taxes
Delinquent property taxes
Penalties
Homestead exemption
Interest on investments

Total receipts

less disbursements:
Claims paid to Satem Watershed

Total disbursements

Cash due from Treasurer - ending

-160 -

$

$

9,712

63,727
233
5,683
475
9,339
415

79,872

81,600

81,500

8,084



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash due from Treasurer - beginning $ -

Add receipts:

State aid 207,958
Total receipts 207,958
l.ess disbursements:
Claims paid to Commission 207,958
Total dishursements 207,958
Cash due from Treasurer - ending $ -
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF WILLIAMSBURG COUNTY FUND
CASH DUE FROM TREASURER
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash due from Treasurer - beginning $ 14
Add receipts:
Current property faxes 3,373,220
Miscellaneous 25,000
Total receipts 3,398,310
Less disbursements:
Claims paid to Williamsburg County 3,397,995
Total disbursements 3,397,985
Cash due from Treasurer - ending $ 329
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF MAGISTRATE FUND

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

CASH DUE TO OTHERS

Cash due to cthers - beginning

Add receipts:
Cash received from others

Total receipts

Less dishursements:
Cash paid fo others

Total disbursemeants

Cash due to others - ending

~163 -

$

$

361,143

3,302,795

3,302,795

3,309,048
3,309,048

354,890



FILORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL SCHEDULE OF CLERK OF COURT FUND
CASH DUE TO OTHERS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Cash due to others - beginning $ 1,089,768
Add receipts:
Cash received from others 471,425
Total receipts 471,425
Less disbursements:
Cash paid to others 877,160
Total disbursements 877,160
Cash due to others - ending $ 684,033
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
DETAIL. SCHEDULE OF SHERIFF FUND

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

CASH DUE TO OTHERS

Cash due to others - beginning

Add receipts:
Cash received from others

Total receipts

Less dishursements:
Cash paid to others

Taotal disbursements

Cash due to others - ending

-165 -

$

093,846

1,489,344

1,498,344

1,463,854

1,463,854

1,029,336







FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAN. SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2012

Treasurer
General and
Operations Tax Sale
ASSETS
Cash and investments 10,036,955 $ 2,697,432
Receivables:
Property taxes (net) 282,393 -
Other governmental units and agencies 4,396,116 -
Other (net) 1,375,003 -
Prepaids 1,080,408 -
inventory 14,417 -
Due from other funds 43,758 -
Total assets 17,229,050 $ 2,697,432
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,665,453 -
Payroll withholdings and accruals 548 809 -
Other payables 3,209,307 2,752,233
Deferred revenues 1,203,641 -
Total liabilities 6,627,210 2,752 233
Fund balance:
Nonspendable:
inventory and prepaids 1,002,789 -
Committed - -
Assigned:
Encumbrances 13,667 -
Unassigned 5,495,384 (54,801)
Total fund balance 10,601,840 {54,801)
Total liabilities and fund balance 17,229,050 $ 2,697,432
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Road
Paving

Total

$ 1,409,680

$ 14,144,067

282,393
4,396,116
1,375,003
1,080,408

14,417
43,758

$ 1,409,680

$ 21,336,162

$ -

12,647

$ 1,665,453
548,809
5,974,187
1,203,641

12,647

9,302,080

1,397,033

1,092,789
1,397,033

13,667
9,440,683

1,397,033

11,944,072

$ 1,409,680

$ 21,336,162
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

DETAIL. SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FUND
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Treasurer
General and
Operations Tax Sale
Revenues:
Taxes $ 31,644,959 $ -
Licenses and permits 1,590,898 -
Fines and fees 3,405,100 -
Intergovernmental 5,405,193 ~
Sales and other functional revenues 5,654,006 -
Miscellaneous 479,586 -
Total revenues 48,179,742 -
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 18,668,980 -
Public safety 16,941,585 -
Public works 391,899 -
Health 5,609,720 -
Welfare 425,734 -
Culture and recreation 5,073,857 -
Education 4515 -
Total expenditures 47,016,290 -
Revenues over expenditures 1,163,452 -
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in 755,607 -
Transfer out (2,000,343) -
Revenues and other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses (81,284) -
Fund balance (deficit) - beginning of year 10,672,059 {54,801}
Change in reserve for inventory 11,085 -
Fund balance ({deficit) - end of year $ 10,601,840 $(54,801)
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Road
Paving Total

$ - $ 31,644,959
461,202 2,052 100

- 3,405,100

- 5,405,193

- 5,654,006

479,586

461,202 48,640,944

- 18,668,980

- 16,941,585
189,885 581,784
- 5,509,720

- 425,734

- 5,073,857
4,515

189,885 47,206,175

271,317 1,434,769

- 755,607
- (2,000,343)

271,317 190,033
1,125,716 11,742,974

- 11,065

$ 1,397,033 $ 11,944,072
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY
BASIS TO ACCRUAL BASIS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Budgetary Encumbrances Juror Accrual
Basis 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 Fees Basis
General government:
County Council $ 324,547 $ - $ - $8 - $ 324,547
Attarney 119,441 - - - 119,441
Administrator 611,625 - - - 611,625
Finance 724,405 - - - 724,405
Treasurer 1,144,450 - - - 1,144,450
Infermation Technology 1,304,838 4383 - - 1,308,221
Auditor 451,390 - - - 451,390
Tax assessor 1,212,614 - - - 1,212,614
FProcurement 137,085 - - - 137,085
Clerk of Court 974,465 - - - 974,465
Court of common pleas 153,304 - - 9,890 163,194
Solicitor 1,015,289 - - - 1,015,289
Human resources management 246,128 - - - 246,128
Family court 610,861 - - - 610,861
Judge of Probate 501,188 - - - 501,188
Public Defender 713,358 - - - 713,358
Master in Equity 51,240 - - - 51,240
Magistrates' offices 2,149,489 - - (5,951) 2,143,538
Building inspections 1,673,762 - (312) - 1,673,440
GIS 372,418 - - - 372,418
Voter registration & election commission 550,821 - - - 550,821
Veterans' affairs 144,186 - - - 144,186
Public services buildings 651,923 . - - 651,923
Senior Citizens Center 160,811 - - - 160,811
Lake City Senior Center 150,188 - - - 150,188
Direct assistance 1,465,187 - - - 1,465,187
Cther 1,045,771 196 - - 1,045,967
Total general government 18,660,774 4 579 {312) 3,939 18,668,980
Public safety:
Sheriff's office 8,225,361 - - ~ 8,225,361
County jail 6,385,485 7,431 (2,175) - 6,390,741
Radio system 356,850 - - - 356,850
Central dispatch 1,694,904 - - - 1,694,904
Emergency preparedness 261,445 - - - 261,445
Direct assistance 12,284 - - - 12,284
Total public safety 16,938,329 7,431 (2,175) - 16,941 585
Public warks:
Public works operating 189,885 - - - 189,885
Central maintenance 391,899 - - - 391,899
Total public works 581,784 - - - 581,784
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
DETAIL SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURES - RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY
BASIS TO ACCRUAL BASIS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012
Budgetary Encumbrances Juror Accrual
Basis 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 Fees Basis
Health:
Health Department 80,934 - - - 80,934
Environmental services 714,958 - - - 714,958
Emergency medical services 4,066,815 - - - 4,066,815
Rescue-ambulance squads 382,776 102 (11,180 - 371,698
Coroner 262,865 - - - 262,865
Direct assistance 12,450 - - - 12,450
Total health 5,620,798 102 (11,180} - 5,509,720
Welfare;
Indigent care 373,821 - - - 373,821
Social Services 42,793 - - - 42,793
Direct assistance 9,120 - - - 9,120
Total welfare 425,734 - - - 425 734
Culture and recreation:
Library 3,525,025 - - - 3,525,025
Recreation 1,208,788 - - - 1,208,788
Lynches River County Park 335,044 - - - 335,044
Direct assistance 5,000 - - - 5,000
‘ Total culture and recreation 5,073,857 - - - 5,073,857
§ Education:
| Literacy Council 4,515 - - - 4,515
Total education 4,515 - - - 4,515
Total expenditures $ 47,203,791 $ 12,112 $ (13,867) $ 3,039 $ 47,206,175
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINES, ASSESSMENTS, AND SURCHARGES

VICTIM/WITNESS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Magistrate Court Fines
"~ Court fines collected
Court fines retained by County

Court fines remitted to the State Treasurer

Magistrate Court Assessments
Court assessments collecfed
Court assessments retained by County

Court assessments remitted to the State Treasurer

Magistrate Cowrt Surcharges
Court surcharges collected

Court surcharges retained by County

General Sessions & Circuit Court Fines
Court fines collected
Court fines remitted to solicitor
Court fines remitted to municipality
Court fines retained by County

Court fines remitted to the State Treasurer

General Sessions Court Assessments
Court assessments collected
Court assessments retained by County

Court assessments remitted to the State Treasurer

General Sessions Court Surcharges
Court surcharges collected

Court surcharges retained by County

Victim Services
Magistrate Court assessments allocated to Victim Services
Magistrate Court surcharges aliocated to Victim Services
General Sessions Court assessments allocated to Victim Services
General Sessions Court surcharges allocated to Victim Services
Investment Income

Funds allocated to Victim Services
Victim Services expenditures

Funds available for carryforward

173

$ 1,209,729
(1,167,209)
$ 42,520
$1,614,584
(115,395)
$ 1,499,189
352,079
$ 52,079
$ 40,886
(7,797)
(2,085)
(40,075)
$ 71
$ 79,631
(6,902)
S 72729
$ 44582
$ 44,582
$ 115,395
52,079
6,902
44,582
74
219,032
(188,247)
$ 30,785



STATISTICAL SECTION
This part of Florence County, South Carolina’s comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the

financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says
about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the government’s financial performance and
well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess
the government's most significant local revenue source, the

property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess
the affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the
future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators
to help the reader understand the environment within which
the government’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to
help the reader understand how the information in the
government’s financial report relates fo the services the
government provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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FLLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percentage of

Note: Details regarding the county's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimated
Fiscal General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable
Year Ended Obligation Available in Debt Value of Per
June 30 Bonds Service Fund Total Property Capita
2003 17,421,430 $ 1,133,842 16,287,588 0.26% 128
2004 15,462,044 920,854 14,541,190 0.23% 114
2005 12,835,605 1,280,207 11,655,398 0.18% 90
2008 12,042,944 1,442,329 10,600,615 0.15% 82
2007 18,801,248 1,742,763 17,058,485 0.23% 130
2008 17,881,167 1,279,467 16,601,700 0.22% 126
2009 18,986,357 1,498,580 17,487,777 0.23% 132
2010 17,676,639 1,625,795 16,150,844 0.21% 120
2011 17,472,979 2,284,844 15,188,135 0.18% 111
2012 17,130,609 3,193,493 13,937,116 0.17% 101

See the Scheduie of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property on page 184 for property

value data.

See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page 192 for population data.

186



L8l

‘e, 001 S1igep Buiddeueao au Jo sieys s AUnod ay; ‘auoiarey] Aunco ey jo Aizpunog owdeiBosd ey}
LIYUM PRUIBILIOS Afjoum 2.4 ssuepunod oiyderBoab asoym saniadiommni 10 SIZUISIP 100UDS Jaune Ag panss! 1 199D Buiddepsac auy jo iy

qaunLerof Buiddepenc yoes 10 ‘Jgap Uy Bulkeds) lo) s|gisuodsas 21000y} pUB ‘JBpISA) € 8]

Jakedxe] Adoas 1By AjdLLE JOU SSOPR SIL] JSASMOH JUNOSOR OlUl USYE] 80 DINOYS S3SSalIsNg pue siUapIsal SU Ag SUI0Q uspIng Jasp siue
U ‘1qep wuel-Buc; Aedal pue anss) o} Ajljige sjustuweaob sy Bulepisuod usym eyl seziuBooas sseooud Sy BUNOIRD INOS ‘AIUNOD
20URI0{d JO STSSBUISNY PUR SJUBNRISSS 2yl A awog s Jey: sjuswiuianol Buiddeusac ascy; jo 1gap Buipueisine au) Jo uojiod ay) ssjewilse
BINPALOS S -AUNoD Byl 1o seuepunog oydeiBoal ayy Yim ‘Led ulises)| 1 ‘apIouod 1Byl ssoy) are sjuswuwianct Suiddepaag 910N

"B §L2INseal] AUNOT 20UsI0l4 8Ul AQ papircid Suipueisine
198 Io0 S0UpNY AlUNoS aouaI0|d U Ag papinoid sebejusniad ajgeondde S1LNSS 0} PDBSR BB SN|BA PISSIESE 1330108

00Z' PL9'0.L & 1gqep Buiddeiano pue e
TZY0GL 6L 1qap 1o84p BUOIRD UINOS ‘AlUNOT SoUSI0L
9..'ceB'0g 1gep Buddeueao ‘21o1ans
000'610'2 %00°001 000'GLOE S# o8I j00LDg sauRIo]d
RLL'EGZ'y %00°a01 g/l'cor'y b 1OLISIC 100UDS D0UBIG] 4
000'086'L %00°001 o00'0es't £# JousI j00yog 80USI0|d
000'699' %00°001 000's89'e C# 18I 00U0S S0USISIZ
000°000°61 $ %00°001 000°000°61 $ LE JoLasI( {ooU0g a3USIoiH
:soxe] Apedosd ypm predal 1geQ
¥Rg ajqesyjddy Bugpuelsing U [EIUBLLIGACE)
Suiddepeap abejuaniag 308g
o aieug pajewssy
pajewnsy

Zi0z ‘g sunp
19230 SALLIALLOV TVINIWNYIACD ONiddVTHEIAC ANV LOF4HIA
YNITOXVYD HiNOS ‘ALNNOD FONFHO T




£iFeLe'el ¢ udsew 1qop j2ba
TB090ELLL yy 0} Bjqeaydde 1gap 1oy Bje L
809°0ELLL spucqg UoneBigs esalen

‘03 siqeondde 1qaQg

Ze0erL'se (anjea passesse (B8]0 30 %8) NuAl 1980

GLLESE'BEYS
08LZLOLL
S65'05L°8TrS

BN{EA POSSSSSE {BJ0L
Apadosd nusw jdwexs NoBq PPY
ANEA PISSASSY

LLOZ dBa A 1094l Joj uopenaien uibiey 1qag 1eba

281

%%l 2P %E0°09 %HETLS %04°G5 %EF'ES %E8es %10°.E %0T ek %HTTLE %¥8'LS
eip'gLoel § Lr8IGELL 8 09.°528'9L 8 09%'L80°GLS £65'996'51 8 169'08Z'FL 8 688'96Y'028 S00'P8S 'L S £89.'6ZL 7L 8 [£4- g2 NAR
809°0SLLL 8.6'2IV 1L 6£9'8/9'41 26£'088'81 L91'188°L) 8vz'L0R'81 L CEA AN 5og'eEe’zl FrOZer G OEY LY LL
ZZO'GFL'SE § 9ZRYIE'YE § 662905 vES 219'e807ES 0L 29¥'¢eEs 66'L20'ees EES'6EE'EES 0Lg'sLY'0ES L2 L8L0ES TSZ'990'DES
(A4 [ %174 1] 2+ 600¢ 2002 002 2002 5002 ¥o02 £00T
SUVIA IVOSId N3L LSV

NOILLVIWHO NI NIDYVIN 1830 TvoaT
YNEIOYVYO HINOS ‘ALNAOD SONTHOT

L] 3g8p jo abejuaniad e 52
MW 43 0] B|gEdHddeE 199p JaU [BI0L

ubizw 3q9p jeba
Hwi| o} sjqesydde 1gap 15U |20 L

i aeq



FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

{1
Fiscal
Year Ended
June 30 Population

2003 127,038
2004 128,055
2005 129,037
2006 129,924
2007 130,852
2008 131,886
2009 132,800
2010 134,208
2011 136,885
2012 137,862

Data sources:

(1
(2)

NFA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

L}

(1

)

Personal Per
Income Capita

{amountis expressed Personal Unemployment

in thousands) Income Rate
$ 3,429,834 26,998 8.1%
3,637,153 28,403 8.8%
3,807,933 29,510 8.4%
4,137,310 31,844 8.5%
4,349,440 33,239 6.1%
4,510,735 34,202 6.7%
N/A N/A 12.1%
N/A N/A 11.1%
N/A N/A 11.9%
N/A N/A 10.2%

South Carolina Budget and Control Board - Office of Research and Statistics
South Carolina Employment Security Commission

Not available
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Members of County Council
Florence County
Florence, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Florence County, South Carolina (the County), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
December 21, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standords, issued by the Comptroiler General of the United States.

internal Controt Over Financial Reporting

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting. in planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
County's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned casts, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control
over financial reporting, that we consider to be a material weakness and another that we consider to be a
significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reascnable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. Woe consider the deficiency
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2012-1 to be a material
weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2012-2
to be a significant deficiency.

Hliott Davis LLC | Elliott Davis PLLC § www. elliottdavis.com
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed an
instance of noncompliance or other matter that is required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item
2012-2,

The County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and guestioned costs. We did not audit the County’s responses and accardingly, we express no opinion
on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, County Council, others within the
entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

éhbmf(( [PWRTER ot

Columbia, South Carolina
December 21, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WiTH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT
ON EACH MIAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Members of County Council
Florence County
Fiorence, South Carolina

Compliance

We have audited Florence County, South Carolina {the County’s} compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circulor A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The County’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’'s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the reguirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2012. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with
those requirerments, which is required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2012-3.

Elliott Davis LLC | Elliott Davis PLLC | www . elffottdavis.com
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internaf control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A maoterial weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we
identified a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency
as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2012-3. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

The County's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the response.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, County Council, others within the
entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

ELismrcd Drash UL

Columbia, South Carolina
December 21, 2012
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal Federal
Program/ Grant Grant CFDA Award
Grant Agency Number Number Expended
Federal Assistance
Department of Education
Passed Through South Carolina
State Library
Summer Reading SC State Library LSTA HD-11-28 45.310 $ 1,000
National Storytefling SC State Library LSTA {HA-11-10 45310 481
Virtual L&M SC State Library LSTA IID-11-01 45310 50,768
PLA SC State Library LSTA I1A-11-21 45.310 750
Total Department of Education 52,999
Department of Health & Human Services
Passed Through South Carolina Department
of Health and Environmental Control
Waest Nile Virus SCDHEC 793241 93.283 499
Passed Through South Carolina
Department of Social Services
Child Support SCDSS €12021C 93.563 335,117
Enforcement Program
Service of Process SCDSS C12067C 93.563 38,775
County Expense Reimbursement SCDSS N/A 93.667 179,334
Total Department of Health & Human Services 553,725
Department of Transportation
Passed Through SC Emergency
Preparedness Division
HEMP S.C. Emergency HM-HMP-0247 20.703 3 3,847
Prep. Division -11-01-00
Total Department of Transportation 3,847
(continued)
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FLORENCE CQUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal Federal
Program/ Grant Grant CFDA Award
Grant Agency Number Number Expended
{continued)
Department of Homeland Security
Passed Through SC Emergency
Preparedness Division
EMPG S5.C. Emergency  11EMPGO1 97.042 122,214
Prep. Division
Passed Through State Law
Enforcement Division

Law Enforcement SLED 9SHSP11 97.087 11,275
HAZMAT Team SLED 11SHSP65 97.067 14,000
HAZMAT Team SLED 8SHSPT1 97.067 89,499
Law Enforcement SLED 118HSP33 97.067 40,127
Total Department of Homeland Security 277,115

Department of HUD:

Passed Through South Carolina

Department of Commerce

CDBG:McCall Farms Dept of Comm 4-N-02-011 14.228 6,718
Total Department of HUD & 6,718

Department of Justice:

JAG Program Cluster
E. Byrnes JAG usnol 2011-BJ- 16.738 39,315
BX-3118
E. Byrnes JAG UsDod 2010-DJ- 16.738 11,867
BX-0808
{continued)
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program/ Grant Grant
Grant Agency Number
(continued)
Passed Through State
Department of Public Safety
Drug Lab SCDPS 16511023
Drug Lab SCDPS 1G10027

Total JAG Program Cluster

Highway Safety Cluster

Law Enforcement SCDPS 2JC12012
Network
Law Enforcement SCDPS 2JC11012
Network

Total Highway Safety Cluster
Totat Department of Justice

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards

Federal
CFDA

Number

16.738

16.738

20.600

20.600

Federal
Award

Expended

61,268

11,106

123,556

6,327

18,970

26,297

148,863

$ 1,043,257

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the County and is presented on the
modified accruat basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular

A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations.
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Section I, SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditar’s report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

@ Material weakness identified? _X _ vyes no

o Significant deficiency identified? X yes none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

a Material weakness identified? - yes X _ . no

° Significant deficiency identified? X yes none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with Section 510(a)

af OMB Circular A-1337? yes X no

tdentification of major federal programs:

CFOA# Program / Cluster Name

93.563, 93.667 U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services - Child Support Enforcement

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B programs $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X ono
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FLORENCE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Section Il. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
Item 2012-1: Prior Pericd Adjustment

Condition: It was discovered during the current year that the County's other postemployment benefits
obligation reflected on its government-wide statement of net assets for governmental activities was
understated by $2,524,305 as of June 30, 2011. Accordingly, its net assets were overstated by this amount.

Criteria: In accordance with the Government Accounting Standards Board's Statement No. 45 “Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”, the other post-
employment benefits obligation as of year-end should reflect the prior year's other postemployment
henefits obligation increased by the current year's adjusted cost of other postemployment benefits,

Cause: The County recorded the other postemployment benefits obligation as of June 30, 2011 based on
guidance received from its actuary and predecessor auditor,

Effect: The County’s other postemployment benefits obligation and net assets as reflected on its
government-wide statement of net assets for its governmental activities were understated and overstated
by $2,524,305, respectively. As a result, its financial statements as of June 30, 2011 were materially
misstated.

Recommendation: We recommend that the County’s Finance department periodically review GASB
Statement No. 45 and all other applicable standards to ensure its financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the standards and include all required disclosures.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: As noted above, the County relied on
guidance it received from its actuary and predecessor auditor when it recorded its postemployment benefits
obligation as of June 30, 2011. In future fiscal years, the County will review GASB Statement No. 45 and all
other applicable standards to ensure its financial statements are prepared in accordance with the standards
and will include alt required disclosures.
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Section . FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS, CONTINUED
Item 2012-2: Cash Collateral

Condition: As of June 30, 2012, the County held cash deposits with one financial institution in excess of
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC} insurance limits by $115,502. As of June 30, 2012, sufficient
callateral was not maintained to protect these deposits in the event that the financial institution was to fail.

Criteria: The County is required by State Law to maintain sufficient collateral for all of its deposits through
arrangements with its financial institutions.

Cause: The County does not have internal controls in place to enstre that deposits held in excess of the FDIC
insurance limits are properly secured by deposit insurance, surety bonds, investment securities or letters of
credit to protect the County against loss in the event of insolvency or liquidation of the financial institution
or for any other cause.

Effect: By not maintaining sufficient collateral, the County is at risk of losing deposits in excess of FDIC
insurance limits in the event of insolvency or liquidation of the financial institution or for any other cause.

Recommendation: We recommend that the County implement procedures to ensure that ali of its deposits
in excess of the FDIC insurance limits held at each financial institution are properly secured so that it can
prevent the risk of losing such deposits in the event of insolvency or liquidation of the financial institution or
for any other cause.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: With the application of deposits and
withdrawals of monies for use by the entities that the Treasurer’s office serves, this is a very intricate
halancing act. Sometimes when the Treasurer's office makes large deposits, it may take the financiai
institution a day or so to procure collateral to match the deposits that were made. On the other hand, when
the Treasurer's office has to withdraw substantial amounts of money to meet the obligations of Florence
County’s customers, there may be too much collateral. In this instance, the Treasurer’s office has to take
the necessary steps to release the excess colateral in order to maintain a professional and positive
relationship with the financial institution. The Treasurer believes it is better to allow the financial institution
the necessary day or s0 to collateralize Florence County’s deposits rather than keeping large sums of money
in the safe located in the Treasurer’s office.

in the instance where the external auditors discovered that collateral was demonstrated to be short, they
would have noted that the collateral was indeed procured and added to our coilateralization within one day
if they had waited one more day to confirm the collateralization. We have successfully operated with the
financial institution for the last twelve years, and it has pledged to collateralize our funds to the maximum.
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Section [ll, FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Item 2012-3; Child Support Enforcement Program; CFDA No. $3.563;
Grant Period - Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Condition One: The Clerk of Court did not certify the Multiple Activities Personnel Timesheets that are
completed for employees who work in the Family Court and other areas of the Clerk of Court’s office.

Condition Two: The funding sources (unit cost reimbursements or incentive funds) used to support the
salaries and wages of employees who work in the Family Court and other areas of the Clerk of Court’s office
were not documented on the Multiple Activities Personnel Timesheets.

Criteria; Where the federal fund support of the salaries and wages of employees who work in the Family
Court area of the Clerk of Court's office, and who work as well in other areas of the Clerk of Court’s office, is
heing documented, a Multiple Activities Personnel Timesheet must be completed by the Clerk of Court for
each such employee for a representative period of one week per month, in accordance with the following
requirements:

(a) The report must reflect an after-the-fact distribution of the actual activity of each employee;

{b} The report must account for the totaf activity for which each employee is compensated;

{c} The report must be prepared at least monthly and must coincide with one or more pay periods; and
{d) The report must be signed by the employee.

Fach Multiple Activities Personnel Timesheet completed by the Clerk of Court must be maintained locally by
the Clerk of Court for a perigd of three years from the date of its completion and made available to the
South Carolina Department of Social Services upon its request.

Cause: The Clerk of Court’s office does not have internal controls and procedures in place to ensure that
Multiple Activities Personnel Timesheets are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the grant
agreement.

Effect: Hours documented for the amaunt of time spent on collecting and disbursing child support monies
may not be accurate and the cost of receiving federal assistance through the South Carolina Department of
Sacial Services may be disaliowed.

Context: A random sample of twelve Multiple Activities Personnel Timesheets was selected for testing. Our
test discovered that all twelve did not indicate the nature of the funding sources and were not certified by
the Clerk of Court.

Recommendation: We recommend that the Clerk of Court’s office implement a policy that states that all
Multipte Activities Personnel Timesheets will be prepared and maintained in accordance with the provisions
of the grant agreement.

Views of Responsible Officials and Plonned Corrective Actions: Multiple Activities Personnel Timesheets will
be prepared in their entirety and maintained by the Clerk of Court upon being submitted to the Clerk of
Court by the employees. Inclusive in this process will be the review of hours submitted, funding sources and
certification of each by the Clerk of Court. The completed and certified Multiple Activities Personnel
Timesheets will be maintained in the Clerk of Court’s office accordingly.
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